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1. Strategic Report 
 
 

Welcome to our Annual Report which covers the financial period from 1st April 2013 to 31st 
March 2014. 

Trust profile 

Originally established in 1998 from the 
merger of Ashford and St Peter’s 
Hospitals, the Trust has been on a long 
journey of development and improvement 
to its current position as the largest 
provider of acute hospital services to 
Surrey residents, and having become a 
Foundation Trust in December 2010. 

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust serves a population of 
over 410,000 people living in the boroughs 
of Runnymede, Spelthorne, Woking and 
parts of Elmbridge, Hounslow, Surrey 
Heath and beyond.  The Trust employs 

3,300 staff and in 2013/14 our turnover for 
the year was £246 million.   

The Trust provides a whole range of 
services across its two hospital sites in 
Surrey - Ashford Hospital, situated along 
the A30 close to the border with 
Hounslow, and St Peter’s Hospital in 
Chertsey.  The majority of planned care, 
like day case and orthopaedic surgery             
and rehabilitation services, is provided at 
Ashford hospital, with more complex 
medical and surgical care and emergency 
services at St Peter’s Hospital.

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our catchment area   

Contains: Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database 
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Our services 

We provide the following hospital and community based health services to our catchment 
population: 

• Admitted patient care for planned surgery and emergency medicine and surgery 
• Accident and emergency services 
• Critical care 
• Outpatient services, both in the hospitals and across a number of community settings 
• Community midwifery services 

 
Services are split across our two main hospital sites as follows: 
 
 

Ashford Hospital 
 

St Peter’s Hospital  

Day-case surgery  Accident and emergency services 

Stroke and rehabilitation care Intensive care 

Elective orthopaedic surgery Emergency surgical and medical care 

Ophthalmology Elective and day-case surgery 

Outpatients (including paediatrics) and 
diagnostics; X ray, ultrasound, and MRI 
scans 

Orthopaedics (Rowley Bristow unit) 

 Maternity care 

 Paediatric services (children’s services) 

 Neonatal intensive care unit which provides 
care for acutely ill babies  

 Outpatients and diagnostics; X ray, 
ultrasound, CT scans, endoscopy (using 
cameras to look inside the body) and MRI 
scans 

 Pathology services 

 Paediatric services 

 
We run many specialist clinics in the community - for example at Woking, Weybridge, Walton and 
Cobham Community Hospitals, at the Heart of Hounslow Centre for Health, Teddington Memorial 
Hospital and others – providing more accessible care, closer to where our patients live.  

We’ve been busy ….. 
Over the last year we have: 
 

• Treated 24,000 emergency admissions 
• Admitted 38,000 people for planned inpatient and day case treatment 
• Seen 92,000 people in our A&E department 
• Treated 350,000 patients in our outpatient clinics 
• Helped deliver 4,000 babies 
• Had a turnover of £246m and generated an operating surplus of £1.4m 
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Statement by the Chairman and Chief Executive 
 

Overall this has been another positive year for Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust, our third full year as a successful Foundation Trust.  

Providing high quality, joined up patient 
care is central to our vision and we have 
continued to make good progress 
developing and improving our services for 
patients.  We were proud to be made a top 
40 hospital once again by CHKS (a 
national provider of healthcare 
intelligence), based on a number of 
important quality and safety indicators.  
We were also in the top five and three for 
quality of care and data quality 
respectively. 

Improving patient experience continues to 
be one of our key priorities and in April 
2013 we welcomed the introduction of the 
new Friends and Family Test which we’ve 
rolled out across our hospitals.  Listening 
to what patients tell us is the best way to 
make the right improvements and we have 
continued to do this from the Board to the 
front line, actively encouraging all 
feedback, good or otherwise.   

This year has been marked by a number 
of significant capital developments 
modernising and improving services for 
patients most notably the opening of our 
new £2.8 million outpatient department at 
Ashford, a brand new £2.9 million cardiac 
unit at St Peter’s in addition to our new 
hybrid vascular theatre.  In addition work 
continued on our purpose built Abbey Birth 
Centre (led by midwives rather than 
doctors) alongside the maternity unit at St 
Peter’s. 

We continue to work hard to improve the 
experience of patients who come to our 
hospitals as an emergency and have 
introduced a number of new services to 
improve patient flow and reduce 
inappropriate hospital admissions which 
are described in more detail on p.50.  
Supporting this and one of the highlights 

of the year was our Spring to Green week 
in March.  A whole Trust effort, the week 
focused on converting as much time as 
possible to direct clinical care, with 
additional support from non-clinical staff 
as Ward Liaison Officers, allowing us to 
take stock of and deal with unnecessary 
delays.  There was definitely a buzz in the 
air which brought lots of different groups of 
staff together, and involved many of our 
partners in the local health economy. 

This year also saw the first review on 
urgent and emergency services from Sir 
Bruce Keogh, Medical Director for NHS 
England.  This sets out a vision for urgent 
care, with two clear levels of emergency 
care – around 70 ‘Major Emergency 
Centres’ to deal with heart attacks, 
vascular emergencies, strokes and so on, 
and a wider network of other emergency 
centres similar to many current A&E 
departments.  Our aim is to position St 
Peter’s Hospital as a Major Emergency 
Centre and our work to further develop 
specialist services – for example our 
cardiovascular services - will help us with 
this ambition. 

At the same time, we have been working 
in partnership with The Royal Surrey 
County Hospital, developing a clear 
clinical vision to improve services for local 
patients.  Working together will give us the 
critical mass to develop a greater range of 
specialist services as well as increased 
opportunities for quality improvements 
such as seven day working.  As this report 
goes to press, we have just announced 
our intention to develop a full business 
case for merging our two organisations 
which will allow us to maximise benefits 
for local patients and ensure clinical and 
financial sustainability for us both.   
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Our staff continue to work hard on behalf 
of patients.  Strengthening the way we 
engage staff has been a key priority, 
particularly through our new staff 
experience and culture programme.  
Highlights this year include a number of 
internal conferences - Pride in Nursing 
and Midwifery, Therapies Showcase and 
our first Consultants’ Conference all of 
which were really energising.  Introducing 
Schwartz Rounds – where different staff 
come together to talk confidentially about 
emotional challenges – has also been a 
positive development.   

And the talent of our staff has not gone 
unnoticed nationally - more details on our 
award winners on p. 42.  We are 
particularly proud of the efforts made by a 
number of staff who ran an appeal for 
goods following the terrible devastation in 
the Philippines.  Staff here filled an 
incredible 225 boxes to send out to 
affected areas.  We are proud to have a 
large Filipino staff community within the 
Trust and made sure we gave full support 
to any member of staff personally affected. 

We continue to maintain a positive 
working relationship with our Council of 
Governors and wider membership, and 
Governors have continued their 
involvement with the work of the Trust 
offering fair challenge to the Board.  We 
held elections for a number of seats this 
year and are delighted to welcome new 
Governors for Elmbridge Barbara 
Mogensen and Roderick Archer, 
Bhupendra Vyas for Hounslow, Denise 
Saliagopoulos for Spelthorne and 
Volunteer Governor Richard Docketty.   

On the Board we were sad to say goodbye 
to Non-executive and Senior Independent 
Director Peter Taylor who has retired from 
the Board after five years of valuable 
contribution.  In his place we welcome 
Carolyn Simons who brings a wealth of 
commercial and not-for-profit Board 

experience.  Last summer we also 
welcomed Louise McKenzie as our new 
Director of Workforce Transformation in 
place of Raj Bhamber who moved to 
Medway NHS Foundation Trust.   

We would also like to say a big thank you 
to everyone who has made a contribution 
over the last year; to our staff and 
volunteers but also to NHS colleagues and 
commissioners, our partners in local 
voluntary and community organisations, 
carers, our Leagues of Friends, Hospital 
Radio Wey, and all those who raise funds 
for our hospitals.  Thank you.   

As this report goes to press we are sorry 
to announce that Andrew Liles has 
decided to step down as Chief Executive 
later this year to follow a new direction in 
healthcare consultancy.  We have already 
begun our search for a new Chief 
Executive and are confident we will be 
able to secure the right leadership to take 
the Trust forward successfully.  

After a positive year, albeit not without its 
challenges, we look forward to the next 12 
months from solid foundations.  With our 
plans to develop a case for merger with 
The Royal Surrey County Hospital this will 
be an exciting year with lots of opportunity. 
That said, managing business as usual 
will remain our priority and we will ensure 
that Ashford and St Peter’s remains a safe 
and high quality environment to receive 
care and treatment. 

          
 
Aileen McLeish Andrew Liles 
Chairman  Chief Executive  

 

    



11 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Business Review 
In this section we give an overview of the business of our Foundation Trust, including our 
vision and objectives, performance and future plans. 
 
Business Overview   

Overall the Trust has performed well 
against its corporate objectives this year 
(see our Directors’ Report for a more 
detailed analysis).  With a turnover of 
£246m, we met all our financial and 
statutory duties with a savings plan of 
£10.1m, although our final year end 
surplus was lower than planned (£1.4m 
against our agreed plan of £3m).  This 
financial performance, within what is a 
continuing challenging financial climate, 
ensured we achieved a Continuity of 
Services Risk Rating of 3 from our 
regulators, Monitor. 
 
The Trust received a positive report 
following an unannounced visit by the 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) in 
January.  This themed inspection to our 
Maternity, Paediatric and A&E 
departments in January reported 
compliance with all four areas inspected – 
care and welfare, safeguarding, 
supporting staff and governance.   The 
Trust has no outstanding concerns from 
the CQC and we have continued to 
perform well against the majority of our 
quality targets. 
 
We continue to report lower than expected 
mortality rates (Source:  Dr Foster 
Hospital Guide 2013) across the range of 
different mortality indicators, and were 
cited amongst the best nationally for 
mortality rates across all 7 days of the 
week.  We have also reported lower than 
expected rates of clostridium difficile (10 
against a target of no more than 13) and 
although we didn’t meet our MRSA target 
of no hospital acquired cases, we 
recorded just two for the full financial year.   

 
Further details on our quality targets are 
given in our Quality Report on p. 65. 
 
We have continued to work hard this year 
to sustain delivery against the four hour 
A&E target, meeting the 95% standard for 
Quarters 1, 2 and 3.  Despite concerted 
efforts, we were unable to meet the target 
for Quarter 4, but came very close 
reaching 94.6%.  Like many trusts across 
the country, we experienced some 
extremely busy days in our hospitals 
during winter and early Spring and 
although the overall number of A&E 
attendances hasn’t increased year on 
year, there has been a rise in patients with 
complex needs.  In particular we saw a 
significant rise in the number of patients - 
particularly frail, older people with complex 
care requirements staying in hospital 
whose discharge required a lot of co-
ordination, often involving community 
health, adult social care and others. 
 
We have been advised and supported by 
the Department of Health’s Emergency 
Care Intensive Support Team, building on 
improvements made in previous years, 
primarily through investment in more 
senior clinical decision makers and a 
series of projects to improve the way we 
manage care for our emergency patients – 
more detail is described on p. 50.   
Despite these improvements performance 
remains fragile and we recognise further 
work is still needed to sustain delivery of 
this key target in the future.   
 
The Trust undertook a significant 
improvement programme on planned care 
during the year, and was advised by the 
National Intensive Support Team on how it 
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might improve the pathway and 
experience for patients coming into 
hospital for planned surgery.  During this 
programme of work we identified a 
process error which has adversely 
affected our performance during the year 
for the 18 week standard (patients being 
seen and treated within 18 weeks of a GP 
referral).  This means that we failed to 
meet the target for both Quarters 3 and 4 
for the admitted standard (patients whose 
treatment ends in a hospital admission, 
usually surgery).  However, we met the 
target across all four quarters for the non-
admitted standard (patients whose 
treatment does not end in a hospital 
admission) and for the incomplete 
pathways standard.  More detail on the 
specific targets is given in the table 
overleaf. 
 
We have put in place a significant action 
plan to address the issues we identified, 
including reissuing our access policy, 
training our staff and improving internal 
systems and processes. In addition we 
have put in place significant additional 
capacity to meet the additional demand 
identified during 2013/14 and continue to 
work hard to recover our position.    
 
We have continued to invest in developing 
our services particularly in specialist 
services such as radiology, vascular and 
cardiology, all of which have increased 
activity.  This includes a new hybrid 
theatre for vascular surgery, two new 
cardiac catheter labs and a new 10 year 

equipment replacement programme to 
replace all our imaging equipment in 
partnership with Philips Healthcare (more 
details are given in our Directors’ report). 
The Trust has also expanded its 
community bariatric programme due to 
increased demand. 
 
During the course of the year we have 
established a positive relationship with our 
new commissioners, North West Surrey 
Clinical Commissioning Group, our 
principal commissioner in the new NHS 
structure from 1st April 2013.  We also 
began developing a new and positive 
relationship with the local area team for 
NHS England who commission in the 
region of £30 million of specialist activity at 
our hospitals. 
 
We have also continued to develop our 
partnership with The Royal Surrey County 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust with a 
number of joint clinical projects in 
development (focused particularly on 
cancer and stroke services).  The recent 
decision by our Board and by The Royal 
Surrey County Hospital Board to start 
work on developing a full business case 
for merger will give us the joint critical 
mass to develop more specialist services 
for Surrey and the opportunity to drive 
forward key quality improvements such as 
7 day working and the introduction of 
electronic patient records (more on our 
future strategy is given on p. 20) while 
saving money on corporate and support 
activities.
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Summary of performance with the Monitor Risk Assura nce Framework 
 

 
* We continue to work hard to improve our emergency care pathway to ensure sustained future delivery of the 
four hour waiting target – more details are given on p. 50. 

** We continue to work through a robust action plan to bring performance back in line for treating patients within 
18 weeks of referral for the admitted pathway (i.e. hospital admission), as described on p.12.  
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Monitor risk ratings 
The Trust is regulated by Monitor, to whom it submits its annual plan for the forthcoming 
year. On the basis of the information contained in the annual plan, including financial plans, 
and the national targets set by the Care Quality Commission (CQC), Monitor assesses and 
assigns risk ratings for each Foundation Trust.  These are updated every quarter. 

From April – September, Monitor used the following risk ratings: 

Financial risk ratings - reflecting the likelihood of a financial breach of an NHS foundation 
trust’s terms of authorisation  (with 5 reflecting the lowest level of risk and 1 the highest). 

Governance risk ratings – measuring compliance/performance against a Trust’s terms of 
authorisation assigned as follows: 

• Red – likely or actual significant breach of terms of authorisation 

• Amber-red – material concerns surrounding terms of authorisation 

• Amber-green – limited concerns surrounding terms of authorisation 

• Green – no material concerns 

 
In October 2013, Monitor changed the way it assigned its risk ratings: 

Continuity of services risk rating – 
assesses financial risks that could lead to 
a Foundation Trust’s financial failure and 
so threaten the continuity of its key 
services.  There are four rating categories 
ranging from 1, which represents the most 
serious risk, to 4, representing the least.   
 

Governance rating – assesses how well a 
Foundation Trust is governed, including 
how they oversee care for patients, deliver 
national standards and remain efficient, 
effective and economic.  Trusts are rated 
green if no issues are identified and red 
where Monitor is taking enforcement 
action. 

Risk ratings 2012/13 

The following table gives our ratings for each quarter of 2012/13: 

 Annual Plan 
2012/13 

Quarter 1 
2012/13 

Quarter 2 
2012/13 

Quarter 3 
2012/13 

Quarter 4 
2012/13 

Financial risk 
rating 

3 4 4 4 3 

Governance 
risk rating 

Amber Red* Green Green Green Amber Red 

*Declared as a result of previous concerns raised by the CQC and with our failure to consistently 
meet the four hour waiting target for A&E. 
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Risk ratings 2013/14 

The following table gives our risk ratings compared to our annual plan for 2013/14: 

Risk ratings 
April - 
September 

Annual 
Plan 

2013/14 

Quarter 1 
2013/14 

Quarter 2 
2013/14 

New ratings 
from 

October 

Quarter 3 
2013/14 

Quarter 4 
2013/14 

Financial risk 
rating 

(Annual Plan 
rating under the 
new Continuity 
of Services 
criteria from Oct 
2013) 

3 

 

(4) 

 

3 3 Continuity 
of services 

 

3 3* 

Governance 
risk rating 

Amber 
Red 

Amber 
Red 

Green New 
governance 
rating 

Green Green* 

*Subject to final verification by Monitor

Financial risk rating/continuity of services 
– the Trust produced a surplus of £1.4m in 
2013/14 compared to £3.4m in 2012/13. 
This generated a full year Continuity of 
Services Risk Rating of 3 for the full year, 
against a plan of 4 within the Annual Plan 
submission to Monitor (under the new 
Continuity of Services risk rating criteria). 
Commentary on the financial performance 
for 2013/14 can be found in Section 5 of 
this Annual Report. 

Governance risk ratings – the Trust 
declared Amber Red in 2012/13’s Annual 
Plan due to failure to meet the waiting time 
target in both Q3 and Q4 of the previous 

year (2011/12).  Similarly the Trust failed 
to meet the four hour waiting time target in 
Q4 2012/13 triggering Monitor’s criteria for 
consideration of investigation in the line 
with their Compliance Framework, hence 
an Amber Red risk rating was declared for 
the 2013/14 Annual Plan.  Monitor decided 
in May 2013 that the Trust would not be 
formally investigated but kept our risk 
rating at Amber Red until such time as 
they were satisfied that the Trust had 
returned to sustainable compliance with 
the waiting time target.  In Q2 2013/14 
Monitor returned our risk rating to Green. 
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Detailed activity review 
Over the last year the total number of 
patients treated in our hospitals has 
remained relatively stable at just over half 
a million attendances, although we have 
seen more marked increases in day case 
and outpatient procedures (see more 
below). 

We have seen a decrease in the number 
of first outpatient appointments compared 
to last year and a reduction in follow-up 
appointments. The number of first – or 
new - outpatient attendances has reduced 
due to both improved out of hospital 
services and a change in the way we 
record some of these – some new 
outpatient attendances are now recorded 
as outpatient procedures which is a more 
accurate reflection of the type of 
appointment.  

The reduction in follow up appointments 
reflects a move for more of these to be 
carried out in GP practices where 
appropriate, providing more convenient 
care for patients.  Outpatient procedures 
however have increased by around 21% 
as the trend continues to treat patients in 
the most appropriate setting for their 
needs (i.e. many simple procedures can 
now be carried out in an outpatient setting 
rather than the day surgery setting).  

Our A&E attendances have remained 
similar to previous years which reflect the 
active work programme with our partners 
to encourage patients to choose 
alternatives to A&E for simple care. 

The Trust has seen a decline in the 
number of emergency admissions 
compared to last year. This is partly due to 
improved services for emergency patients 
within our hospitals (for example new 
walk-in assessment units which can see 
and treat patients without needing to admit 
them into hospital).  We have also been 
working with our local community and 
social care partners to develop more 
services outside hospital where patients 
can be more appropriately treated.    

In terms of planned surgery, day case 
admissions also increased with the 
continued shift away from overnight stays 
in hospital for many procedures. As a 
result, we saw a further decline in the 
number of inpatient stays which builds on 
the reduction in previous years.  Day 
cases also increased as a result of 
increased demand for endoscopy services 
and ophthalmology following our 
successful bid to run community eye 
services in Hounslow in 2012/13. 

Finally, the Trust saw a slight drop in the 
number of births, which reflects a small 
decline in the number of pregnant women 
attending our largest referring GP 
practices.  A similar pattern has been seen 
across Surrey. 
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1.  New outpatient 
attendances   

This year sees a slight reduction in 
new or first outpatient attendances 
from 113,219 to 110,743 this year, 
as a result of changes to the way 
we record some of these and the 
implementation of improved out of 
hospital services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Outpatient follow up attendances 
This year saw a 6% reduction in 
follow up Outpatient attendances 
from 211,887 to 198,436 this year, 
as a result of agreed changes to 
clinical pathways to discharge 
patients back to the care of their 
GPs for follow up appointments 
where appropriate.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Outpatient procedure attendances 
Outpatient procedures however 
have increased by around 21% as 
the trend continues to treat patients 
in the most appropriate setting for 
their needs (i.e. many simple 
procedures can now be carried out 
in an outpatient setting rather than 
the day surgery setting). 

 

 

 

New 
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4. A&E attendances   
A&E attendances remain at 92,215 
which is the same level as the 
previous year.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Emergency admissions 
Activity recorded as emergency 
admissions has fallen from 2012/13. 
The drop in emergency admissions 
is partly due to the redesign of our 
emergency care pathways. Our 
ambulatory assessment units 
prevent the need for certain patients 
to be admitted. During 2013/14 
3,500 patients were cared for in our 
ambulatory care/assessment units. 

 
 
 
6. Day case procedures   
Our day case procedures have 
increased significantly, from 27,966 
last year to 31,911, reflecting a 
continued shift away from overnight 
stays in hospital for many 
procedures.  We are in the top 25% 
nationally for Trusts for day case 
rates. 
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7. Elective (planned) admissions   
 
We have seen a drop in the 
number of planned overnight 
stays, from 6,292 last year to 
6,147, partly due to an increase 
in the number of procedures 
now undertaken as day surgery. 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

8. Births   
We have seen a slight drop in 
the number of births, consistent 
with a slight decrease in the 
number of births across Surrey.  
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Our vision and strategy 
Our 5 year Foundation Trust business 
plan describes our vision ‘to be one of the 
best healthcare Trusts in the country’.  We 
set ourselves four strategic objectives         
to deliver this vision – having the highest 
standards of quality, a high performing 
workforce, delivering our clinical strategy 
and improving productivity and efficiency.   

This work is underpinned by our values – 
the 4 Ps – which we are using to guide us 
in how we realise our vision and 
objectives: 

• Patients first 
• Personal responsibility 
• Passion for excellence 
• Pride in our team 

Our objectives for 2013/14 were 
developed within the context of our 
strategic objectives and our new contracts 
with Clinical Commissioning Groups 

(particularly our principle commissioner 
North West Surrey CCG) and NHS 
England.   

In developing our plans we took into 
account two key challenges: 

• A rising demand for acute healthcare, 
from an ageing population; 

• Reduced levels of funding – rising 
costs and a reduction in tariff (the price 
we are paid for our services) – with a 
savings plan of £11.8m for the year. 

In summary, our plan for the year was: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To achieve the 
highest possible 
quality of care and 
treatment for our 
patients 

To recruit, retain 
and develop a 
high performing 
workforce 

•••• Improving patient experience 

•••• Reducing mortality rates in hospital 

•••• Eradicating preventable harm  - focusing 
particularly on falls, pressure ulcers and 
diabetes 

•••• Reducing inappropriate readmissions to 
hospital 

 

•••• Making sure we have the right workforce to 
be successful 

•••• Develop the skills of our people and teams 

•••• Improve staff experience and engagement 

•••• Put in place a new devolved organisational 
structure, with strong performance 
management 
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Progress against these objectives is given in our Directors’ Report on p.28. 
 
Future plans and development 
There are a number of external factors 
and uncertainties that will impact on the 
future of our business and our ability to 
continue to offer the best healthcare to 
patients: 

• Healthcare itself is changing – 
people are living longer, often with 
complex health conditions, and 
increasing demand for our 
services, particularly emergency 
services 

• Continuing policy changes and 
more emphasis than ever on 
quality and safety, particularly post 
the Francis Report on Mid 
Staffordshire Hospital 

• Continued financial challenge, with 
rising costs and reductions in tariff 
(the price we are paid for our 
services) 

• Potential impact of the Better Care 
Fund which is likely to transfer 
activity and income from hospital 
care into community settings 

 
More and more mid-sized Trusts are 
finding it increasingly difficult to continue 
working as they are and particularly to 
retain and develop specialist services.  
Many specialist services require expertise 
only gained across large catchment areas 
- populations of 500,000 to one million 
(our catchment for most services is 
410,000).   

To deliver the 
Trust’s clinical 
strategy of joined 
up healthcare 

To ensure 
financial 
sustainability 
through business 
growth and 
efficiency gains  

• Working with our partners to ensure better, 
more seamless care for patients in and out of 
hospital 

• Continue to develop our specialist services 

• Enhancing our elective services 

• Enhancing our clinical services by increasing 
the level of consultant delivered care and 
through innovation and research 

• Meeting our savings plan of £11.8 million 

• Making the right clinical and corporate 
efficiencies 

• Growing our (profitable) business as an 
alternative to cost cutting 

• Reviewing our long terms capital plan 

• Using developments in technology to become 
more efficient 
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During the course of this year we decided 
the time was right to refresh our overall 
strategy as we have made good progress 
against many of our original ambitions, 
and particularly as the external context 

since we first set these has changed 
significantly.  Our new strategy will help 
ensure we are better placed to face these 
external challenges and changing 
environment.

 
Having engaged extensively with Governors, staff and patients, we have revised our vision 
and strategy, illustrated below: 

 
 
Our revised vision ‘Creating excellent 
joined up patient care’ captures our 
ambition to join up care within our 
hospitals, and care into and out of 
hospital, stressing the need for excellence 
and putting patients at the centre of 
everything we do. 

Our longer term strategy is to continue to 
develop our hyper-acute services with the 
aim of positioning St Peter’s Hospital as a 
Major Emergency Centre under Sir Bruce 

Keogh’s new vision for emergency care.  
At the same time we want to continue to 
develop Ashford Hospital as a centre for 
elective surgery and diagnostics, with a 
strong outpatient department for the local 
community.   
Our partnership with The Royal Surrey 
County Hospital and subsequent decisions 
by both Boards to start developing a case 
for merging our two organisations will help 
to strengthen our future development and 
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put us in a stronger position to realise our 
long-term ambitions.  In addition, we 
believe that by working together we can 
create real benefits for patients across 
both our catchment areas: 
 

• Increased opportunities for 7 day 
working 

• Better local access to specialist 
services, rather than going to 
London 

• Improved access to cutting edge 
treatments and innovations – 
particularly in partnership with 
Surrey and Royal Holloway 
Universities 

• Maximising benefits of digital 
technology, e.g. developing an 
electronic patient record. 

Part of our work will be to move closer to a 
full merger which is likely to take place 
within 12 – 18 months.  This will involve 
developing a full business case for merger 
as well as a number of regulatory 
approvals with the Competition and 
Markets Authority and Monitor.  We will 
also be developing an Integration Plan for 
bringing the two organisations together. 
 
In addition we will continue to progress our 
key objectives for 2014/15;  to improve 
patient experience and clinical outcomes, 
developing skilled, motivated teams and 
delivering top productivity.  A key focus 
will be to ensure business as usual across 
our services at the same time as working 
towards a full merger. 

 
Principal risks 
Taking into account both external and internal factors and uncertainties, as part of its risk 
management process the Trust has identified the following key risks to our strategic 
objectives which are summarised below:   
 
Objective 1 - Best Outcomes                                                  

Key Risks  

1.1 If the quality governance and impact assessment processes fail during the design of CIPs this could 
lead to poor quality of care. 

1.2 If divergent and multiple organisational priorities compete with and undermine staff engagement 
leading to a distraction from the focus on high quality care. 

1.3 If there is poor capacity and flow in the emergency pathway and insufficient frequency in senior 
decision making this could result in poor outcomes and patient experience. 

1.4 If the Trust workforce was not appropriately aligned to demand and acuity, agency usage and pay 
costs, resulting in poor patient outcomes. 

Objective 2 - Excellent Experience  

Key Risks  

2.1 The Friends and Family results are not used as a driver for improvement leading to persistently poor 
experience. 

2.2 Lack of awareness of key issues relating to vulnerable groups may lead to compassionless care and 
poor patient experience. 
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For more detail on how we manage and respond to risk see our Annual Governance 
Statement on p.170.   
 
Our business model  
We have developed a more devolved 
business structure, which from April 2013 
has comprised four clinical divisions with 
increased accountability and strong 
performance management.  Performance 
is reviewed monthly both at Clinical 
Divisional level and across all 26 individual 
clinical specialties.  This has also helped 
to strengthen accountability. 
 
This new structure has strengthened 
quality and efficiency within each Division, 
as well as allowing more opportunity for 

direct staff engagement in divisional 
objectives.                                                    
Our four clinical divisions are: 

• Medicine & Emergency Services 
• Theatres, Anaesthetics, Surgery & 

Critical Care 
• Women’s Health & Paediatrics 
• Trauma & Orthopaedics; Therapies 

& Diagnostics 
 
Each division is led by a Divisional 
Director, Associate Director of Operations 
and Associate Director of Nursing.   

2.3 If the Trust fails to adopt the culture of a listening, kind and compassionate organisation in dealing with 
complaints then our patients, within the course of their care and treatment, will have a poor experience. 

2.4 Administrative delays and cancellations to appointments leading to poor patient experience. 

Objective 3 - Skilled, Motivated Teams  

Key Risks 

3.1 The inability to recruit and retain high calibre staff would lead to lack of skilled and motivated teams. 

3.2 If individuals and teams do not feel valued or motivated resulting in poor patient care and staff 
experience and ineffective team working. 

Objective 4: Top Productivity  

Key Risks 

 4.1 Poor alignment of the clinical workforce around the Trust’s efficiency improvement programme could 
lead to insufficient productivity. 

4.2 A failure to deliver the clinical quality incentives (CQUINS), the performance standards or to respond to 
the admission thresholds/readmission caps/ambulance turnaround penalties within the 2014/15 
contract leads to an under recovery of income and reduction in productivity. 

4.3 A failure to deliver 2014/15 CIPs to the level required and/or pay and non-pay expenditure exceed 
budget without a compensating increase in income may lead to a reduction in productivity. 

4.4 Financial or service pressures on third party providers of health and social care or commissioners 
cause operational difficulties or to enforcement of contract levers more aggressively than expected 
leading to reduced income and inability to achieve top productivity. 
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Further support for our business priorities 
has been given through our Programme 
Management Office, particularly for those 
projects which are more complex and go 
across divisions (see p. 58 for more 
details).  Further support has been given 

via our corporate teams who have 
developed their own business plans – 
including health informatics, estates and 
facilities, research and development and 
communications and engagement. 
 

 
Employee matters – employee matters (including workforce performance and planning 
and our approach to equality and diversity) are described in our Directors’ Report on p.28.  
 
Environmental matters  
In today’s environment it is important for all organisations to take responsibility for 
conducting their business in a sustainable manner and taking responsibility for the impact 
their business makes on the environment.   

The NHS has set itself some challenging sustainability targets, with three national 
environmental goals: 

1. A commitment to reach 34% 
reduction in carbon emissions by 
2020; 

2. All NHS Trusts should prepare for 
the impacts of climate change and 
have plans in place to deal with 
events such as heatwaves, 
flooding and other weather 
extremes; 

3. Health and Wellbeing Boards 
should inform local strategies that 
further integrate the principles of 
sustainable development to 
achieve public health and 
sustainable development 
outcomes. 

Measuring our carbon footprint 

Like many organisations the Trust uses 
the measure of a “carbon footprint” to 
gauge the overall environmental impact 
and financial cost of our activities. 
“Carbon” is used as a shorthand way of 
referring to all the polluting gases released 
into the atmosphere that cause climate 
change through the process of global 
warming. The footprint considers “direct 
emissions” that are under direct 
management control of the Trust, such as 
electricity and gas use, waste and 
transportation. The footprint also takes 
account of “indirect emissions” such as the 
emissions arising from the procurement of 
goods and services.    

 

The Trust’s target to reduce carbon 
emissions has until this year followed NHS 
England’s targets set in 2010. This was to 
achieve a 10% reduction by 2015 against 
a 2007/8 baseline. Following changes to 
UK government carbon reduction targets, 
the NHS England strategy was updated in 
2014 to reflect national targets of 34% by 
2020 and by 80% by 2050. These are the 
targets that NHS Trusts are now working 
towards. 

Looking at our performance, the Trust’s 
carbon footprint for 2013/14 has been 
reviewed and our emissions were 
calculated to be equivalent to 51,921 
tonnes of CO2 (tCO2e).  
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Compared against the baseline year 
2007/8 our total carbon footprint has fallen 
by -0.5%. Although falling short of the 
national target, in the same period the 
Trust’s output and economic activity has 
grown by a proportional +3.6%.  Excluding 
outsourced emissions from procured 
suppliers’ goods and services, Trust-
managed activities have however 
delivered a 12% CO2 reduction – a good 
on-target result.  

 

Tackling outsourced emissions generated 
by our suppliers is however a challenging 
target. Clearly there is more work to do to 
consider sustainability issues arising from 
our supply chain and achieve the carbon 
reduction targets set by government. The 
Trust’s action plan for 2014-15 will aim to 
address this issue. 

 

 

 

Our Sustainable Management Plan 

To help ensure we achieve the carbon 
reduction targets set by government we 
have developed a Sustainable 

Development Management Action Plan, 
focusing on the following key areas: 

•••• Estates 

Carbon Source: 

 

2007/08 

(Base 
year) 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 
% of  
total  

footprint 

% reduction 
against 

base year 

Procurement  

(*outsourced 
emissions) 

                 
38,390  

             
39,774  

             
36,933  

                       
39,775  77% 4% 

Energy use 13,035 13,606 12,777 11,800 23% -9% 

Business Transport 
361 

                   
149  

                   
158  

                             
111  <1% -69% 

Staff Travel 
                              

128  
                   

106  
                   

108  
                             

116  <1% -9% 

Waste production 
100 24 

                      
23  

                                
25  <1% -75% 

Water/Sewage 180 171 112 107 <1% -40% 

TOTAL 52,195 53,830 50,111 51,934   -0.5% 

TOTAL *excl. 
outsourced emissions 13,804 14,056 13,179 12,159    -12% 



27 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

•••• Waste 

•••• Travel and transport 

•••• Procurement 

•••• Food 

•••• Staff communication/engagement 

•••• Governance 

Over the past year this work has included: 

•••• Engaging staff in this year’s 
Climate Week including an inter-
active online Wall where staff could 
discuss sustainability issues;   

•••• Launching a Commitment to 
Sustainable Development signed 
by the Chairman and Chief 
Executive;   

•••• £250,000 of new LED and high 
efficiency lighting; 

•••• £1.4m of new building control and 
ventilation systems including an 
automatic computer power-off 
software system, saving over 
£20,000 a year; 

•••• A detailed annual waste audit to 
monitor and improve waste 
segregation, and an action plan for 
site waste management for 
projects costing over £300,000; 

•••• The removal of the costly and 
underutilised Peterbus vehicles; 

•••• Implementation of a managed car 
park scheme with supporting 
initiatives e.g. car share and the 
promotion of alternative transport; 

•••• Using local distribution depots for 
fruit, vegetables, dry goods, 
confectionary and frozen goods; 

•••• Ensuring meat supplies and dairy 
products have “The Red Tractor” 
accreditation which guarantees 
quality and origin; 

•••• The use of seasonal menus and 
local suppliers’ information. 

 
 
 
 
Disclosures 
The accounts for 2013/14 (see p. 178) have been prepared under a direction issued by 
Monitor under the National Health Service Act 2006.  After making enquiries, the directors 
have a reasonable expectation that Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.  For 
this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts. 
 

 
 
Andrew Liles 
Chief Executive 
27 May 2014



28 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

 

2.  Directors’ Report  

 
 

Introduction 

The Directors present their report for the financial year 1st April 2013 to 31st March 2014, 
which incorporates a summary of our overall performance against our corporate objectives. 

Our Executive Team
Our Executive Team over the last year has comprised: 
 

• Andrew Liles, Chief Executive 
• Valerie Bartlett, Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Operating Officer 
• David Fluck, Medical Director 
• Suzanne Rankin, Chief Nurse 
• Simon Marshall, Director of Finance & Information 
• Louise McKenzie, Director of Workforce Transformation  - from May 2013 
• Raj Bhamber, Director of Organisational Development – until May 2013 

 
More details on our directors are given in Section 5 of this report.   
 
Director disclosures 
For each individual director currently in post at the time of approval of this report, so far as 
each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which our auditor is unaware.   
 
Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that our auditor is 
aware of that information.  Each director has also made such enquiries of their fellow 
directors and of the Trust’s auditor for that purpose and taken such other steps required by 
his/her duty as a director of the Foundation Trust to exercise reasonable care, skill and 
diligence. 
 
Directors have taken the necessary responsibilities in preparing this Annual Report and 
Accounts.  They consider that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, 
balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for patients, regulators 
and other stakeholders to assess the Trust’s performance, business model and strategy. 
 

Progress against our strategic objectives 

The following section describes our progress against each of our four corporate objectives;   
 

• Achieving the highest standard of 
quality; 

• Developing a high performing 
workforce; 

• Delivering our clinical strategy; 
• Improving productivity and 

efficiency. 
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 Corporate objective 1:   

 

Achieving the highest standards of quality 

Quality and safety are of the upmost importance in the way we run our hospitals, from the 
Board to the front line.  Our key quality priorities are described in more detail in the Quality 
Report – see p. 65 – but in terms of meeting this core objective our headline achievements 
are outlined below.   

Right patient, right place, first time 

To make sure our patients receive the best possible care while they are in hospital we need 
to get them to the right place and the right clinical team as quickly as we can.  We have 
focused a lot of work this year on making sure patients are looked after in the most 
appropriate place for their needs, getting to the right place, first time. 

Reconfiguring our wards – we realised 
that our bed configuration at St Peter’s 
Hospital did not always allow us to get our 
emergency patients to the right place as 
quickly as we would like.  Indeed, as our 
services have developed and the nature of 
our patients and their needs have 
changed, many of our beds/wards were 
simply no longer in the most sensible 
physical location.  We recognised that 
getting this right is a critical part of 
improving our patients’ journey through 
our hospitals and in particular helping to: 

• Reduce long waiting times in A&E 
and for beds; 

• Reduce overall length of stay; 

• Avoid patients having to stay 
overnight in accommodation that 
doesn’t meet Care Quality 
Commission standards; 

• Reduce the number of cancelled 
operations due to a shortage of 
beds. 

We developed an overall ‘grand plan’ to 
reconfigure our ward and bed space, our 

Capacity Allocation Programme, a project 
that was overseen by our Programme 
Management Office (see p. 58).  During 
the year this included: 

• Opening our new £2.9m cardiac 
catheterisation laboratories 
(described in more detail on p. 53) 
which will eventually link up with a 
new dedicated cardiology ward 
(due to open summer 2014) so we 
create a complete cardiac unit; 

• Expanding our Surgical 
Assessment Unit (see more on p. 
51) and increasing the number of 
surgical beds on Kingfisher and 
Falcon wards as we recognised 
that we didn’t have the balance 
between medical and surgical beds 
right; 

• Planning for a dedicate Stroke 
ward (which will be Birch ward), 
summer 2014; 

• Planning for dedicated 
medical/care of the elderly wards 
(Holly and Cedar), summer 2014; 
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• Starting building works for our new 
Admissions Lounge at St Peter’s 
which will be located closer to our 
main theatre block (due to open 
late summer 2014). 

We also carried out an extensive 
communication campaign to explain the 
overall plan and to help staff understand 

how changes in their specific area fitted 
into the bigger picture.  This work will 
continue into 2014.  We are also hoping to 
develop a specialist cancer/haematology 
ward at St Peter’s. 

Improving the flow of patients through our 
hospitals – we have continued our work 
this year on improving our emergency 
care pathway – working closely with 
ECIST, the Department of Health’s 
Emergency Care Intensive Support Team 

- particularly focusing on extending 
consultant-led care, reducing unnecessary 
delays in our pathways and developing a 
range of new services to help avoid 
emergency admissions to hospital.  This is 
explained in more detail on p. 50. 

 

Continued investment in the patient environment  

Exciting times at Ashford - we have 
continued to invest and develop services 
at Ashford Hospital including: 

• Finishing our £2.8 million project to 
refurbish and modernise the 
outpatients department, officially 
opened by well-known local 
actress, Nina Wadia (who played 
Zainab in EastEnders).  

• During summer 2013 we opened 
the newly refurbished Jasmine 
Suite, used for breast and 
gynaecology outpatients in 
response to feedback from patients 
who said the area was cramped 
and old fashioned.  We were 
delighted that this was opened for 
us by the late Mayor of Spelthorne, 
Councillor Isabel Napper and 
remain grateful for all her support 
for our Beast Unit at Ashford over 
many years. 

• Creating our new Tennyson Unit 
on the ground floor of the Hospital 
which brings many of our 

orthopaedic and therapy services 
together such as our pre-
assessment clinic and ‘Joint 
School’ (where therapists provide 
education and information for 
patients preparing for big joint 
replacement operations).  The new 
unit is also another example of 
how we are continuing to re-invest 
in Ashford for the local community.   

 

Making further improvements at St Peter’s 

• Last summer we opened a new 
downstairs entrance at St Peter’s 
Hospital to improve access for 
disabled patients and visitors.  The 
changes, inspired by our disabled 
access working group, include a 
brighter, more colourful corridor, 
better signage, a new entrance 
door and covered waiting area as 
well as improved parking facilities 
for blue badge holders. 

• During the year we began work to 
build our new birth centre 
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alongside the Abbey Wing, close to 
our current maternity services.  
The new Abbey Birth Centre, 
which opened in May 2014, is run 
by midwives rather than doctors, 
providing a ‘home from home’ 
environment for women who have 
normal and uncomplicated 
pregnancies.  The new unit will 
give local women more choice on 
where and how to have their baby, 
and has been finished to an 
extremely high specification.   

• Following a successful bid last 
year for £150,000 of Department of 
Health funding to improve the 
environment on the labour and 
post-natal wards, we completed 
the refurbishment of our communal 
area on Joan Booker our post-
natal ward. 
 

• A new Cancer Support and 
Information Room within 
Outpatients, inspired by the Trust’s 
Improving Cancer Care Action 

Group.  Supported by The Friends 
of St Peter’s Hospital and 
Macmillan Cancer Support, the 
room offers a relaxed space for 
talking, reading and reflection for 
patients, families and carers.  The 
room was officially opened by ‘The 
Green Goddess’ Diana Moran in 
June 2013. 

 
• A new Ambulatory Emergency 

Care Unit outside A&E for patients 
requiring urgent care who are 
unlikely to need hospital admission 
(see more on p. 51) opened by the 
Mayor of Runnymede Councillor 
Yvonna Lay. 

• Opening of our new vascular 
Hybrid Theatre (see more on p. 53) 
- a lead lined, state-of-the-art 
theatre that enables complicated 
vascular surgery to be done in a 
minimally invasive way.  The 
Theatre was officially opened by 
former Olympic Gold Medal winner 
Adrian Moorhouse.   

 

Good patient environment scores – once 
again we received good scores for the 
quality of our environment in the new 
Patient-Led Assessments of the Care 
Environment (known as PLACE).  These 
new patient-led environment assessments 
(replacing the former PEAT inspections) 

were introduced to ensure patients are at 
the centre of all inspections of hospital 
environments.  Our scores were as 
follows: 

 

 Ashford 
Hospital 

St Peter’s 
Hospital 

National 
Average 

Cleanliness (of ward areas) 99% 99% 96% 

Food and hydration 90% 88% 85% 

Privacy, dignity and wellbeing 93% 92% 89% 

Condition, appearance and maintenance 
(of sites) 89% 85% 89% 



32 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Our scores compare very well with the 
national results and are above average for 
almost all areas, with particularly high 
scores for cleanliness of our ward areas.  
However our score for the condition and 
appearance of our St Peter’s site is just 
below the national average, despite a 
range of recent refurbishments including 
our audiology, ophthalmology, paediatric 
and maternity departments.  As a result 
we agreed some initial actions including 

replacing floors in A&E and our Medical 
Assessment Unit, renewing corridor 
seating and upgrading a number of public 
toilets across the site, a total investment of 
around £100,000. 

During the year all but one of our ten 
public and staff restaurants (including our 
two nurseries) were given the top five-star 
food hygiene rating by local Environmental 
Health Inspectors. Aspects Restaurant at 
Ashford received a 4* rating (out of 5).

Focus on nutrition and hydration   

We have continued to promote the 
importance of good nutrition and hydration 
as part of basic care for our patients.  
Highlights this year have included the 
appointment of a new Nutrition Support 
Nurse, our volunteer feeding programme 
(where non-clinical staff volunteer to help 
with mealtimes on the wards), our Mission 
Nutrition campaign (an internal campaign 

to promote aspects of nutrition and 
hydration to staff) and celebrating national 
Nutrition and Hydration week in March.  
This included a global afternoon tea where 
staff helped to hand out cupcakes to 
patients and a special evening drinks 
round, supported by additional staff 
volunteers.

 

Listening and acting 

We continue to gather and act on patient feedback, whether positive or negative, to make 
the right improvements in our hospitals and ensure patients have the best possible 
experience.  We do this through a number of different ways: 

National surveys – in this year’s National 
Inpatient survey, published in March 2014 
(sent to patients who had spent at least 
one night in hospital in the summer 2013) 
we experienced a small improvement 
against our performance last year 
although nationally our overall results 
scored ‘about the same’ as other Trusts.  
This was below the level of improvement 
we had aspired to.  Of the 66 questions, 
we scored significantly better on the 
following four areas:   
 

• Quality of hospital food; 
• Staff taking patients’ family or 

home circumstances into account 
when planning their discharge; 

• Patients asked to give views on the 
quality of their care; 

• Providing information on how to 
complain. 

 
On only one question - “Were you told 
how to take your medication in a way you 
could understand?” -  was the Trust’s 
rating significantly worse than last year. 
Overall, areas where we haven’t scored as 
well as others have been around 
communication and we will be supporting 
our divisions to develop robust 
improvement plans to reflect these. 

The recent Maternity Services Survey – 
published by the CQC in December 2013 
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– shows considerable improvement since 
the last survey in 2010.  Results confirm 
that women say they are receiving a high 
standard of care at the Trust.  Specifically, 
results show that we are getting better at 
involving women in decisions about their 
pregnancy care and in giving good quality 
information about their physical recovery 
and the type of emotional changes they 
may experience.  One issue the survey 
results did highlight was around women 
being able to see the same midwife most 
of the time during their pregnancy.  The 
department is focusing on improving this 

and has recently increased staffing in the 
community midwifery teams.   

NHS Choices - NHS Choices and other 
websites, such as Patient Opinion, have 
become a popular way for people to 
instantly share experiences and feedback. 
We have developed the way we monitor 
and respond to these comments, making 
sure we post timely and personalised 
replies.  Both Ashford and St Peter’s 
hospitals currently have 4.5 star ratings on 
NHS Choices (the highest being 5), 
reflecting users’ ratings of the hospitals. 

 

Launch of new national Friends and Family Test  

From 1st April 2013 we introduced the new 
national Friends and Family Test, where 
all patients staying in hospital and those 
treated in emergency departments are 
asked the same simple question – “How 
likely are you to recommend our ward to 
friends and family if they needed similar 
treatment?” This replaces our ‘Your 
Feedback’ survey. 

We receive a monthly score on areas 
surveyed, plus any extra comments that 
patients write on their questionnaire. The 
scores help us compare our performance 
against other hospitals and guide where 
and how we can make improvements.  

From April 2013 the Friends and Family 
Test provided feedback from our wards 
and A&E.  The Trust has introduced 
feedback via mobile phone text messaging 
in A&E which has been well received. 

In October 2013 the test was extended 
nationally to Maternity Services.  This is a 
more intensive survey which asks for 
feedback at four points in a patient’s 
maternity journey – at 34 weeks, at birth, 
following the birth, and post-natally.   

 

 

 

PALS and Complaints 

PALS - over the past year 1646 people 
contacted our PALS service, an increase 
of 28% compared to the previous year.  
With a rising number of patient contacts 
for the Trust as a whole, our PALS 
contacts have increased from 0.17% to 
0.23% of total activity. 

Complaints - there has been an increase 
in formal complaints received this year, 
from 485 to 548, an increase of 63 cases 

(13%).  However, as a % of total patient 
activity the number of complaints has 
remained relatively constant at 0.09% 
(0.08% for 2012/13).   

During 2013/14 the Trust was notified               
of eight complaints referred to the 
Parliamentary and Health Service 
Ombudsman (PHSO) for review.  Of these 
one request has not been upheld, one has 
been returned to local resolution (and 
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closed), one which the Ombudsman has declined to investigate and five are still active. 

 

Issues raised through complaints 

 

The chart above provides a breakdown             
of the 548 formal complaints raised in 
2013/14.  Within these complaints a total 
of 1,183 different issues were recorded 
with the most issues raised relating to              
the category of treatment and care (228), 
followed by communication (100).  Each of 
our clinical divisions takes responsibility 
for monitoring their level of complaints and 
importantly the issues raised, with 
appropriate actions and learning taking 
place as a result.   

Ensuring the right learning takes place – 
we take all feedback very seriously and 

we regularly meet patients face to face to 
discuss their concerns in more detail and 
to help them understand where things may 
have gone wrong.  Wherever possible we 
act on the feedback we hear in a 
continuous cycle of listening and learning. 
We continue to offer to meet with 
complainants to hear their experience as a 
routine part of our complaints handling. 

Examples of improvements that have 
been made as a result of patient feedback 
include improving the food selection for 
patients waiting in A&E 

 

 

Quality Governance Strengthening  

In October 2013, we restructured our 
Quality, Research, Medical, Nursing and 
Midwifery corporate departments to 
facilitate each clinical division having their 
own Head of Quality along with a quality 
team to help monitor, analyse and improve 
quality performance.  This has allowed a 
significant improvement in the Trust’s 

ability to respond to complaints in a timely 
manner and to improve the issues raised 
within complaints and PALS.  To make 
sure safety is right at the top of our 
agenda we have appointed a Chief of 
Patient Safety, a senior-level medical 
position undertaken by our Deputy 
Medical Director.



 

35 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Candour and honesty 

Partly in response to the Francis 
recommendations, this year the Trust has 
committed to performing a mortality review 
within a month of every death that occurs 
in our hospitals.  As part of this process, 
families are contacted immediately if new 
information comes to light as a result of 

these reviews.  Families have welcomed 
this openness and honesty and clinicians 
have remarked that this proactive 
involvement of families has resulted in a 
much quicker resolution and closure to 
families where a loved one has died. 

 

Working with our patients and the local community 

Good engagement with our patients and 
the wider community continues to be of 
upmost importance to the Trust, helping 
us understand what people need and 
expect from the services we provide.              
We continue to develop a variety of ways 
to engage with these key groups, including 
the development of our social media 
strategy with increasing use of Twitter 
(now over 1000 followers) and more 
recently Facebook (with over 200 likes).  

We have continued our proactive 
approach to engagement, linking with 
appropriate local groups on issues 
relevant to them. For example, the 
opening of our new entrance at St Peter’s 
Hospital was the result of engagement 
work with local community groups 
representing disabled people. 

Governors and members – we have been 
helping our governors to reach out to their 
individual membership groups and 
continue to publish a quarterly ‘Members 
Matters’ newsletter and run a programme 
of Member’s Health Events to keep our 
members up-to-date. See p. 157 for more 
details. 

Members of our Patient Panel have been 
involved with a variety of groups and 
committees across the Trust particularly 
focused on improving patient experience. 
Our regular Panel meetings provide a 
positive environment for dynamic 
discussion and feedback on key issues. 

Public accountability – we have kept in 
regular contact with Surrey County 
Council’s Health Scrutiny Committee, local 
MPs and county and borough councillors, 
making sure they are kept aware of key 
Trust developments. We have also begun 
developing positive relationships with the 
newly formed Surrey Healthwatch. 

We have begun a wide programme of 
engagement with local stakeholders and 
patient groups on our developing 
partnership with The Royal Surrey County 
Hospital.  We have also engaged local 
stakeholders on our plans to close the 
Hydrotherapy pool at Ashford Hospital 
because of continuing health and safety 
concerns around bacterial problems in the 
water.  These have proved almost 
impossible to eradicate due to the age and 
condition of the pool.

 

Together We Care – developing a Nursing and Midwife ry Strategy

During the year we held a successful 
Pride in Nursing day, celebrating best 
practice amongst our nursing and 

midwifery workforce, and where we began 
to develop our new Nursing and Midwifery 
strategy, ‘Together we Care’.  The new 
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strategy reflects the Government’s new 
vision and strategy for nursing, centred 
around six core values of care, 
compassion, competence, communication, 
courage and commitment (the 6 Cs) as 
well as our own local priorities and 
aspirations.   

This centres on safe care, professional 
competency, kindness, respect and 
understanding as well as reflecting the 

increasing focus on personal responsibility 
and developing a culture of openness and 
honesty.  In July 2013 we were pleased to 
welcome Dr Peter Carter, Chief Executive 
and General Secretary of the Royal 
College of Nursing to the Trust to meet 
staff and discuss our emerging strategy.  
The strategy has now been agreed and 
will be published and made available to 
staff over the coming months. 

Ensuring Best Care 

We have adopted the Best Care 
Programme which is an assessment and 
accreditation system based on a number 
of clinical outcomes and specifically looks 
at the environment and leadership of the 
ward/unit area.  Our aim under the 
programme is to ‘ensure that all patients 
receive the very best care which is 
planned, delivered and evaluated in a 
personalised way in order to best meet 
their particular needs.’  This involves the 
whole ward team, not simply the nursing 

staff, and puts patient care at the centre.  
Each of our wards is measured against 14 
quality and safety indicators that form the 
fundamental care that each patient should 
receive, regardless of their diagnosis or 
reason for admission.  Best care accredits 
each ward with a coloured level, green, 
yellow, amber or red.  A best care 
dashboard is presented to the Trust Board 
every month as part of its review of 
quality. 

 

Improving clinical outcomes 

Mortality rates  

The latest mortality data (published 
nationally by Dr Foster) continues to 
demonstrate low mortality rates at the 
Trust.  In this year’s Dr Foster Good 
Hospital Guide, the Trust is one of only 
eight in the country with very low mortality 
rates on both weekdays and weekends, 
reflecting the high standards of care and 
good staffing levels that we provide seven 
days a week. 

Mortality rates for hospitals are measured 
in several different ways with the Trust 
recording lower than expected rates for 
each separate measure indicating a good 
overall picture.  Each indicator takes into 

account factors such as age and type of 
illness. 

For example, for the Summary Hospital 
Level Mortality Indicator, which includes 
deaths within 30 days of leaving hospital, 
the Trust reported a ratio of 94.1 (where 
100 would be the expected level, lower 
figures being better).  For the main in-
hospital indicator (the Hospital 
Standardised Mortality Ratio) the Trust 
reported a ratio of 83.8, again where 100 
would be the expected level.   
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Improving outcomes for patients with hip fractures 

Hip fracture is one of the most serious 
consequences of falls in the elderly, with a 
mortality of 8% at one month and 30% at 
one year.  Elderly patients with hip 
fractures have complex medical, surgical 
and rehabilitation needs and a well-
coordinated multidisciplinary team 
approach is essential.  

In 2010 we set up an Orthogeriatics 
Project Team to improve outcomes for this 
patient group and this year they were 
nominated for a national BMJ award.  The 
multi-disciplinary team includes 

orthogeriatricians, a trauma coordinator, 
trauma surgeon, anaesthetist, hip fracture 
nurse, physiotherapist and occupational 
therapist.   

Over the last three years the team has 
shown significant improvements, 
achieving best care for their hip fracture 
patients, achieving 83% of best practice 
this year (with the national average sitting 
at 55%).  In addition, our mortality rate at 
30 days (post hip fracture) is just 4.9% 
(improved from 5.3% in 2013) which ranks 
us amongst the best Trusts nationally.    

 

Enhancing Quality and Enhanced Recovery Programmes  

The Trust actively participates in the 
Enhancing Quality and Enhanced 
Recovery Programmes, a regional 
coalition across Kent, Surrey, and Sussex 
which use evidence based quality 
standards to improve patient care and 
experience.  In 2013/14 the regional 
coalition introduced a new scoring system 
for measuring Trust performance called an 
‘appropriate care score’.  The new ‘all or 
nothing’ score means that a patient must 

receive all applicable clinical care 
measures in the bundle to meet the 
pathway target.  This is harder to achieve 
than the former ‘composite care score’ 
used in 2012/13 which allowed a patient to 
pass on individual measures.  A 
comparative baseline has been included 
for the prior year.  Each Trust in the region 
has an individual ‘trust specific’ 
improvement target. 

 

1. Enhancing Quality Programme 

The Trust has made significant 
improvements against heart failure 
targets.  Results for community 
pneumonia have dipped against last year 
and areas for improvement going forward 
include both antibiotic prescribing and the 
documentation of risk factors (for example 
we are measured against offering smoking 
cessation advice so ensuring this is well 
documented can affect performance).   

The dementia target applies to only a 
small subset of our dementia patients 
(those who are discharged from hospital 

on very specific medication) and efforts 
are under way to improve identification of 
these patients to improve compliance.  An 
e-learning module for junior doctors has 
been rolled out recently in order to 
improve performance for 2014/15.   
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PATHWAY Baseline 
2012/13 

Target 2013/14  Actual 2013/14  

 Heart Failure 59.1 67.7 68.0 

Community 
Pneumonia 

69.7 75.9 63.7 

Dementia 21.5 95 16.1 

   

2. Enhanced Recovery Programme 

The Enhanced Recovery Programme 
promotes the recovery of patients during 
their surgical journey.  In hip and knee 
replacement surgery performance against 
the target (which includes providing the 
right information to patients) has dipped 
due to the difficulty in finding evidence that 
both written and verbal information has 
been provided to patients.  A new system 

has been introduced to rapidly improve 
performance for 2014/15.  Both 
gynaecological surgery and colorectal 
surgery have considerably improved 
performance this year and exceeded their 
improvement targets.  These are small 
specialties who follow a common 
procedure making it easier to reach all 
patients consistently.

 

PATHWAY Baseline 
2012/13 

Target 2013/14  Actual 2013/14  

Hip and Knee 
Replacement 

78.6 83.8 69.6 

Gynaecological 
Surgery 

18.7 37.7 73.6 

Colorectal 
Surgery 

32.5 46.8 88.9 

 

Further clinical outcomes  

More detail on our work to improve clinical 
outcomes and improve quality standards 
in areas such as infection control, 
(preventing) falls in hospital, reducing 

pressure ulcers and hospital acquired 
blood clots (venous thrombo-embolisms) 
are contained in our Quality Report. 

 

Meeting Care Quality Commission quality and safety standards 

The CQC carried out an unannounced 
visit to the Trust in January 2014.  In their 

published report following the visit, they 
reported that we successfully met all four 
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standards inspected; care and welfare; 
safeguarding (children and adults); 
support to staff; and governance 
processes.  This was a routine annual 
visit, the first for over a year, and focused 
specifically on Maternity, Paediatrics and 
A&E.   

The report also highlights a number of 
positive patient comments and comments 
on good team working across clinical 
disciplines.  

• Maternity:  “Although the staff must 
deal with lots of people they have the 
ability to make you feel as if you are the 
most important and provide individual 
care and support.”  

• Paediatrics (children’s services):  
“The nursing staff are really friendly 
and that gives you real confidence 
about your child’s care.” 

• A&E:  “So grateful for the quick 
treatment, they have been fantastic” 

Last October the CQC published the first 
of their Intelligent Monitoring Reports for 
acute Trusts.  Each Trust is given a ‘risk’ 
banding, based on a number of indicators 
of quality, including infection control rates, 
mortality rates, waiting times, staff surveys 
and staffing levels.   

Ashford and St Peter’s was categorised in 
the lowest (best) risk band - 6 - a position 
which was maintained in the CQC’s 
second wave of reports published in 
March 2014.  These reports act as early 
intelligence for the CQC, giving a detailed 
view on how a hospital is performing, as it 
prepares to inspect individual hospitals 
under its new inspection regime.  
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Corporate objective 2:  developing a high performing  
workforce 

 

This year our focus has remained on ensuring our workforce is appropriately recruited and 
trained in order to provide the best quality care for our patients.  

Developing our staff 

Leadership development 

Throughout the year, clinical teams from 
across the Trust have been supported to 
build team resilience, spirit and leadership 
through the Team ASPH programme. Our 
focus has also been on individual 
leadership programmes, including 
development for ward managers, new 
consultants and specialty leads. We have 

taken advantage of joint working with 
colleagues across Kent, Surrey and 
Sussex with successful applications from 
our staff for illustrious programmes named 
after inspiring leaders;  Elizabeth Garrett 
Anderson, Edward Jenner and Mary 
Seacole. 

 

Education and training 

During the year mandatory training 
requirements have continued to be 
embedded across the Trust, making it 
clear to all staff exactly what training they 
need to do and how to access it. By the 
end of the year the Trust’s compliance 
rate was 88% of all mandatory training 
completed. This figure shows a decrease 
from last year’s figure of 98%. The 
Mandatory Training Committee continues 
to monitor divisional plans and 
compliance. 

Further to the introduction of a 6 day 
Induction Programme for first year 
Foundation Doctors, we have extended 
the shadowing period to comply with the 
Foundation School requirements. 

This has been key in improving the 
handover between the outgoing and 

incoming Foundation Year One Doctors 
improving continuity of Patient Care. 

We continue to support undergraduate 
medical, nursing, midwifery and allied 
health professional students and to 
provide work experience placements 
throughout the year to promote NHS 
careers to young people in our local 
community. 

Facilities for Junior Doctor teaching have 
been improved and the lecture theatre at 
St Peter’s Hospital has been completely 
refurbished with technology enhancement. 

We have also had very positive reviews 
from the Kent, Surrey and Sussex 
Deanery for our doctor training and both 
Imperial College, London and St George’s, 
University of London for our Medical 
Students. 
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Roles and Responsibilities 

Equality and Diversity 

We have now moved to the single Equality 
Delivery System which celebrates 
individuality – rather than specific strands 
of Equality and Diversity. During the 
course of the year we have ensured that 
we are fully compliant with the Public 

Sector Equality Act and undertaking 
Equality Impact Assessments. In January 
2014 we published our annual Equality 
and Diversity Workforce report in line with 
Public Sector Equality Act.  

 

Relationship with unions and formal staff engagemen t  

We continue to enjoy good working 
relationships with our union and staff 
representatives and our Staff Governors. 
Our Employee Partnership Forum meets 
on a monthly basis and is where staff 
representatives meet with managers to 
share information and work together on 
important issues affecting our 
organisation.  In addition, Staff Side 

representatives are invited to attend other 
groups and committees to develop true 
partnership working. The Trust also has 
an active Local Negotiating Committee, 
which is supported by the British Medical 
Association. 

 

Appraisal and Revalidation 

Revalidation is the process used to renew 
a doctor’s licence to practice in the UK 
and assures patients and the public, 
employers and other healthcare 
professionals that licensed doctors are up 
to date and fit to practice. Between 1st May 
2013 and 31st March 2014, 52 doctors 
were due to be revalidated. Of these, eight 

were deferred due to insufficient 
supporting information and one was 
deferred due to a local on-going process. 
Of the nine deferred, all except one have 
since been revalidated with the final 
revalidation expected within the next few 
months.   

 
Inspiring and Supporting 

Engagement 

During 2013/14, we introduced the Staff 
Experience and Culture Programme, 
aiming to set a refreshed cultural tone for 
the organisation, with strong leaders who 
role model Trust values, highly engaged 
staff and empowered teams. To this end, 
we have engaged with staff in a different 

way: the Chief Executive’s Sounding 
Board has become a valuable source of 
meaningful conversation; and we have 
utilised crowd-sourcing solutions such as 
the ‘ASPH Interactive Wall’ on the Trust’s 
intranet, to provide a forum for open and 
honest dialogue on relevant topics. 
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Our values 

Throughout autumn, we used the ASPH 
Wall to further define the Trust values as 
expected standards of behaviour and we 
are starting to use these described 
behaviours to guide recruitment and 
selection, development and appraisal. 
Staff have also helped us to shape our 

Employee Promise – the promise the 
Trust makes to support its staff to 
demonstrate the highest standards 
consistently. 

 

 

 

Celebrating ‘WOW’ achievements 

More than 130 members of staff and 
guests of Ashford and St. Peter’s 
Hospitals celebrated the Trust’s Staff 
Achievement Awards on April 1st April 
2014. 

Hosted by Trust Chairman, Aileen 
McLeish, the event began with a 
champagne afternoon tea before the 
winners’ of nine awards were announced. 

The WOW! Awards scheme was 
introduced to the Trust in 2012 as a 
means of thanking and rewarding staff 
who exceed expectations in areas such as 
leadership, living the corporate values and 

volunteering. Since then hundreds of 
nominations have been received about our 
staff by their colleagues and patients and 
some of these were shortlisted for the 
awards ceremony. 

Derek Williams, Chief Executive of The 
WOW! Awards, was the master of 
ceremonies. Widely regarded as the guru 
of customer service, Derek is passionate 
that people should be recognised for 
getting things right and being ‘WOW!’ in 
their working lives. 

Congratulations to everyone who was 
nominated. 

 
 
National and regional winners  
Our Releasing Time to Care project won a 
national award in the Lean Healthcare 
Academy Awards, and our Care of the 
Elderly team received a Highly 
Commended Award for their Falls Project.  
We also scooped a number of awards in 
the Surrey/Sussex Proud to Care Awards; 
Di Lashbrook our Clinical Nurse Leader for 

Outpatients won the Individudal 
Commitment Award, our Typhoon Haiyan 
Appeal Team led by Clinical Nurse Leader 
Romel Mendoza and Ward Sister Rizelda 
Ramirez won a runners-up award, and 
Sarah Charlier Healthcare Assistant was 
also a runner-up in the Individual 
Communication Award.  
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Staff Survey 2013 

The National Staff Survey provides an 
opportunity to build up a picture of staff 
experience and, with care, to compare and 
monitor change over time and to identify 
variations between different staff groups. 
Such feedback is vital for driving real 
service improvement in the Trust. 
 
For the 2013 survey, 43% of staff returned 
a completed questionnaire, which was 
eight per cent lower than our response last 
year. It is below average for acute trusts in 
England (49%). 

This year’s results remain static on the 
whole although there is a significant rise 
since the 2012 survey in the proportion of 
staff who would recommend the Trust as a 
place to work or receive treatment.  These 
have risen from a score of 3.43 out of 5 in 
2012 to 3.57 out of 5 in 2013.   
 
Our top five ranking scores follow and 
compare well with other Trusts nationally. 
 
 

 

 2013/2013 2013/2014 Trust commentary 

Top five ranking 
scores 

Trust National 
Average 

Trust National 
Average 

 

% of staff witnessing 
potentially harmful 
errors, near misses or 
incidents in last month 

32 34 30 33 Improvement since 
2012/13. 

% of staff suffering 
work-related stress in 
last 12 months 

38 37 34 37 Significant 
improvement on 
previously year’s 
score. National 
average is static. 

% of staff experiencing 
physical violence from 
patients, relatives or 
the 
public in last 12 months 

15 15 13 15 Slightly better score. 

% of staff experiencing 
physical violence from 
staff in last 12 months 

3 3 2 2 Slightly better score. 

% of staff experiencing 
harassment, bullying or 
abuse from patients, 
relatives or the public 
in last 12 months 

28 30 28 29 Static score and 
slightly below 
national average. 

 
These scores appear to show that on a day-to-day basis staff feel secure in their work 
environment, are in control and able to meet daily demands. 
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However, it was disappointing that some of our results did not compare well with those of 
other Trusts. Here are our five bottom ranking scores. 
 

 2012/2013 2013/2014 Trust position 

Bottom  four 
ranking scores 

Trust National 
Average 

Trust National 
Average 

 

% of staff receiving 
job-relevant training, 
learning or 
development in last 
12 months 

77 81 75 81 Disappointing score. 

Fairness and 
effectiveness of 
incident reporting 
procedures 

3.40 3.50 3.38 3.51 Marginal 
deterioration 
compared to last 
year but work still to 
be done to meet and 
exceed national 
average. 

Support from 
immediate managers 

3.48 3.61 3.49 3.64 Very slight 
improvement. 

Staff job satisfaction 3.51 3.58 3.49 3.60 Slight deterioration 
but faired better on 
other advocacy 
scores since 2012. 

% of staff believing 
the trust provides 
equal opportunities 
for career 
progression or 
promotion 

79 88 80 88 Slight improvement 
and a focus area for 
2014/5. 

 
When the National Staff Survey 2013 was 
issued to staff in October 2013, the Trust 
was in the initial stages of development 
and implementation of a staff experience 
and culture programme. The programme 
of work has focused on four key priorities 
– citizenship, leadership, teamwork and 
employee experience and has had not had  
much time to create an impact on the 
Trust’s culture yet. 

 
This programme will continue in 2014/15 
and will include the new Staff Family and 
Friends Test where staff will be asked 
quarterly [except when the National Staff 
Survey is issued in the autumn] whether 
they would recommend the Trust as an 
employer and provider of choice. 
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Health and Wellbeing  

In September this year our Occupational 
Health Service entered into a partnership 
arrangement with Royal Surrey County 
Hospital as part of our overall partnership 
strategy. The new service brings together 
a team of 16 individuals with a variety of 
expertise in the field of Occupational 
Health. Our objective remains to support 
employees to achieve their potential at 
work by supporting health in the 
workplace, understanding the link between 
good work and good health as well as 
recognising the challenges of working in 
an acute NHS Trust.  
 
Efficiencies and improvement are being 
created by sharing IT systems and by 
pooling clinical expertise, sharing best 
practice and developing shared policies 
and procedures.  
 
Over the past year the service has been 
involved in creating a Health and 
Wellbeing ‘Calendar of events’ to 
encourage staff members to become more 

active and to take responsibility about how 
they look after themselves at work.  

This year the service was shortlisted as 
runner up in the Healthcare People 
Management Association Awards for its 
good work in raising the awareness of 
Health and Wellbeing at work. This has 
included ‘warming up for work’, ‘workout at 
work day’ and ward walkabouts. It remains 
a challenge to engage clinical staff and 
ward walkabouts have proved successful 
and will be developed next year.  

The on-going health and wellbeing plan 
will build on the successes of this year and 
seek to engage staff more by offering 
more sessions in the workplace as well as 
re-launching lifestyle assessments to 
make them more accessible for all. 

The service also supported the Trust in 
achieving a final uptake of 51.2 % for 
seasonal flu vaccination amongst clinical 
staff. 

 

Health and Safety 

The number of staff injuries continues to 
fall (to 206 for this this year) as 
demonstrated by the chart opposite: 

 
 

 
Number staff of injuries for the last 5 years 

 
 
  

 

 

 

Level of injury 
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All accidents are investigated and 
preventative measure put in place if 
appropriate, however, 94% are eithor 
minor or no harm. The chart opposite 
shows the breakdown by severity. 

 
 
  
 
 
The main breakdown of causes of accidents 
is shown in the chart below.   
 

 
 

An important aspect of a good health and 
safety culture and an effective way to 
minimise accidents is training. At the end 
of March 2014 the percentage of staff 
compliant with Health and Safety training 

was 97.2%. Methods of delivery of the 
training are continually being developed to 
ensure that it remains relevant and 
effective.  

 

Workforce Performance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Type of injury 

Severity of injury 
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The Trust employed 3,106 (whole time 
equivalent) staff at 31 March 2014 
increasing from 2,918 last year.   There 
were 2,423 members of staff working full-
time (69%) and 1,108 working part-time 
(31%), a total of 3,531 members of staff 
overall (headcount) and a modest shift 
towards full-time working from the 68:32 
ratio last year. 

Our male/female ratio at the end of the 
year was as follows: 

 Female Male 

Directors 6 7 

Senior 
Managers 

112 49 

Other staff 2566 791 

 

We reduced our vacancy rate from 8.4% 
to 5.9% during the year by recruiting 564 
staff including new employees and internal 
appointees from our internal bank. Nearly 
300 of these new staff were nurses, 
midwives and healthcare assistants, 
strengthening our established clinical 
workforce. In August we successfully 
recruited 51 Portuguese Nurses who 
joined the Trust in October and November 
2013, and have become well-established 
in A&E, Theatres and Medical and 
Surgical wards. 

Turnover reduced from 14.9% to 14.6% 
with dedicated programmes focusing on 
reviewing the role of Healthcare 
Assistants, reducing vacancy levels for 
unqualified and qualified nursing and 
reviewing the medical workforce including 
the use of temporary staff. We launched 
exit interview with leavers during the year, 
and information from 134 undertaken have 
helped to understand reasons for staff 
leaving. As a result, stability of the 
workforce has improved from 85.5% to 
87.7%. 

Our standards for Mandatory Training 
have remained high with compliance at 
88%, all of our staff are partially compliant 
and working towards full compliance. 

In August 2013 we launched Bank on Us, 
the Trust’s internal temporary staffing 
service. To date we have 349 Nurses and 
Healthcare Assistants, 78 doctors, 220 
admin, 78 therapy and 85 support staff 
registered on the bank to provide 
additional staffing to cover for vacancies, 
and other absences. The Bank on Us 
supply has increased from an average of 
162 Whole Time Equivalent per week in 
the launch month to 194 WTE staff 
working per week through the bank in 
March 2014. We introduced weekly pay as 
a recruitment incentive for the bank 
nursing staff.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

48 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Voluntary Services 

Ashford and St Peter’s is proud and 
appreciative of its volunteer workforce 
which has risen in number to 350 
volunteers in the last year. Volunteers 
enhance the patient and family experience 
and support staff in over 50 different 
locations across both sites. Volunteers 
offer services including guiding to clinics, 
ward mealtime and hearing support, 
fundraising, gardening and administration. 
Specialist services with volunteer input 
include the Pastoral Care Team, 
Community Radio Wey and Heartbeat.  

Highlights over the year include: 

• Following the presentation of the 
Queen’s Award for Voluntary 
Service in 2012, four lucky 
volunteers attended the Queen’s 
Garden Party at Buckingham 
Palace in June 2013, while eight 
further volunteers were taken on a 
tour of the Palace of Westminster 
and entertained to lunch in the 
Strangers’ Dining Room by 
Jonathan Lord, MP for Woking, 
who had formally supported the 
Trust volunteers’ successful 
nomination for the Queen’s Award. 

• In Volunteers’ Week our Ashford 
volunteers were celebrated at a 
ceremony held by Voluntary Action 
In Spelthorne. 

• At Christmas 130 volunteers 
enjoyed a special Thank You 
Lunch and enjoyed the inaugural 
concert of the impressive and 
talented ASPH Staff Choir. 

• Following the appointment of new 
Staff Governor, Richard Docketty, 
regular drop-in sessions for 
volunteers have been held to hear 
volunteers’ feedback.  

• Following the roll-out of self-check 
in kiosks across both sites 
volunteer teams have helped 
patients to become familiar with 
the new system. 

• Ward Mealtime Support volunteer, 
Melanie Cumper, raised £1,407 at 
a Champagne Cream Tea held in 
her garden to buy a Standezee for 
Holly Ward. 

• Hospital Radio Wey won three 
National Radio Awards for the 
second year running. 

 

Our Hospital Leagues of Friends 

The teams of volunteers who work with 
both hospitals’ Leagues of Friends – the 
Friends of Ashford Hospital and the 
Friends of St Peter’s – continue to               
make an invaluable contribution to both 
hospitals.   

Ashford Hospital League of Friends 
highlights – the Ashford Hospital League 
of Friends - in existence since 1962, 
continues to make donations to 
departments for the benefits of patients 
and staff.  Although the nature of 

fundraising has changed the League 
continues to encourage and foster interest 
from the public in support of the hospital 
and the work done by its volunteers.  
The funds are raised through the Charity 
Shop at Ashford hospital; through the 
Community Matters Scheme run by 
Waitrose; table sales both at the hospital 
and outside events (like Ashford on the 
Map) and recently by a tin collection 
outside both Ashford and Sunbury Tesco 
stores.     
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Over the course of the year the Ashford 
Hospital League of Friends have funded 
the purchase of specialist wheelchairs, 
plants for the hospital gardens, furniture 
for the waiting room of the Rapid Access 
Centre, a breast tattoo machine for the 
Breast Unit, chairs for patients in the Eye 
Ward,an Ultrasonic Hand Therapy 
machine and gifts for the patients at 
Christmas. 
 

St Peter’s Hospital League of Friends 
highlights – The Friends of St. Peter’s 
Hospital continue to support St. Peter’s 
and during the past year have made 
various donations to a number of hospital 
areas. The most significant donation was 
for the purchase of a hi-tech operating 
table, at a cost of £68,000, for the new 
Hybrid Vascular Operating Theatre at St. 
Peter’s. 

They have also provided bariatric beds 
and equipment for the WREN unit 
(Bariatric Unit) and Day Surgery and 
refurbished over 180 further chairs in the 
hospital patient waiting areas. 

The new Cancer Information room in 
outpatients has been completely 
refurbished and equipped by The Friends 
and is now in full use. 

The Friends continue to support the 
Hospital Chapel and maintain the Chapel 
garden. Currently there are plans for the 
refurbishment and operating of a room in 
the Duchess of Kent Wing as a shop and 
base to enable The Friends to raise funds 
and promote their activities. 

The Friends continue to provide and 
distribute presents for inpatients in St. 
Peter’s Hospital on Christmas morning. 

 

We would like to publicly thank both our Hospital L eagues of Friends and all the 
volunteers for their continued hard work on behalf of our patients and staff.

 

Joint Winners of our Special Achievement Award for staff, carpenters Kathryn Kennard and Andrew Miles 

 



 

50 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

 

Corporate objective 3:  delivering our clinical str ategy  

 

Our strategy has focused on continuing to develop our clinical services, particularly in our 
emergency pathway and for a number of our more specialist services and in providing more 
consultant delivered care.  We have continued to work with our partners to redesign local 
health services, creating alternatives to hospital admission, reducing length of stay and 
supporting earlier discharge.   

Improving the Emergency Care Pathway 

One of our key priorities has been to continue to make improvements to the way we manage 
our emergency patients, in particular the journey these patients make through our hospitals, 
from admission (usually via A&E), through treatment to final discharge.  In particular we 
know that it’s in the best interests for patients – particularly our older more frail patients – to 
have as short a stay in hospital as possible as sometimes a prolonged stay can cause loss 
of independence and deterioration in a patient’s overall health and wellbeing. 

We have continued to work with the Department of Health’s Emergency Care Intensive 
Support Team, building on work undertaken last year, and continuing to find the right ways 
to support sustainable delivery of the four hour waiting target. 

Key milestones this year included: 

OPAL – Older Person’s Assessment and 
Liaison Team - a new dedicated service to 
support the hospital's frail elderly patients, 
which started on 1st October 2013. The 
core team consists of an OPAL nurse, 
therapist and geriatrician, with support 
from a pharmacist and dietician. The 
service is based on our Medical 
Assessment Unit (MAU) and provides a 
multidisciplinary assessment service for 
patients admitted to MAU, focusing on 
patients who meet a specific set of frailty 
criteria.  
 
This investment of specialist time and 
resource on admission, allows early 
identification and management of issues 
helping to reduce length of stay, facilitate 
safe effective discharge and prevent 
unnecessary readmissions.   
 

During the first 6 months the service saw 
over 1200 patients, reviewing all 
emergency patients over 85 and all 
patients over 75 who meet the frailty 
criteria.  For over 85s we have seen a 
reduction in the number of ward 
admissions from MAU and a reduction in 
length of stay by one day.  We have also 
seen a reduction in readmissions for this 
age group. 
 
We have also worked with Virgin Care and 
Adult Social Services to develop an 
integrated service model for frail older 
people. This has included, for example, 
Rapid Response In-reach Nurses in A&E 
which aims to avoid admission facilitating 
discharge from A&E and providing a 
community alternative to hospital 
admission. 
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Ambulatory Emergency Care Unit –
located close to A&E this new unit is for 
walk-in patients who need some medical 
treatment but who are unlikely to need 
hospital admission.  Patients are seen and 
assessed quickly by a consultant, have 
any necessary tests with a treatment plan 
agreed within a few hours.  This type of 
unit nationally recognised as best practice 
for ambulatory care and is likely to save 
bed days and avoid unnecessary hospital 
admissions.  The unit is run by consultants 
and acute physicians from A&E and MAU. 
 
Recruitment of additional A&E consultants 
– we have continued to recruit additional 
A&E consultants this year, increasing the 
number from 5.4 (whole time equivalent) 
to 6.9 by the end of the year with an 
additional full-time consultant starting in 
June and plans to reach 9.9 by October. 
 
Expansion of Paediatric A&E – in 
December 2013 we expanded our 
Paediatric A&E with two additional 
consulting rooms, more waiting spaces 
and a drug preparation room and the 
recruitment of two paediatric A&E 
consultants. 

Expanding our ‘hot’ outpatient clinics –
access to quick outpatient appointments 
for patients who come to A&E. This helps 
to avoid unnecessary hospital admission 
by providing quick access to specialist 
care for patients who don’t need 
admission but who do need an urgent 
review. 

Extension and improvements in the 
Surgical Assessment Unit - in November 
we completed work to transform our 
Surgical Assessment Unit into a new 
Surgical Assessment and Short-stay Unit 
(SASU), speeding up the assessment 
process and improving patient experience. 
The unit has been expanded with 11 
short-stay beds, five assessment trollies in 

a dedicated bay (which means patients 
can be transferred quickly from A&E), and 
a revamped waiting area with 10 
assessment chairs (for patients who don't 
need to wait on a trolley).  The unit is also 
open for direct referrals from GPs who can 
call the unit directly to either discuss 
referrals, get advice on alternative 
treatment options or arrange for the 
patient to come in.  
 
Changes to surgical consultants' rotas are 
also making a big difference; surgical 
consultants are now on duty from 8am - 
8pm Monday to Friday, and from 8am - 
2pm on Saturdays and Sundays (and on-
call outside those times). This means 
quicker access to senior decision making, 
and more regular ward and board rounds 
significantly improving performance.  

For example, readmission rates for the 
unit have gone down from around 11% to 
9.5%, and length of stay for emergency 
surgical patients has reduced from 4.5 to 
3.5 days.  Patient experience is following 
suit - with significantly improving Friends 
and Family Test scores for our surgical 
wards, from under 40 to just over 70. 

Another significant development has been 
the introduction of a Virtual Ward; this 
means that some patients are managed at 
home - still under the care of the surgical 
team - while they are waiting for tests, 
results or for their surgery but still under 
the hospital's care. The team will actively 
monitor them while they are at home, 
whilst the patients have direct access to 
SASU by telephone if they need further 
help.  These are big improvements that 
help our hospitals run more smoothly, but 
more importantly improve the care and 
outcomes for patients. 

Early supported discharge scheme – in 
March we began a six month pilot project 
to support orthopaedic patients 
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(particularly those with a fractured hip) to 
leave hospital earlier, with support and 
continued rehabilitation given at home or 
at their usual place of residence (e.g. a 
nursing home).  Funded through the Chief 
Executive’s Innovation Fund, the Trust has 
employed a dedicated team, based on 
Swan ward, comprising a physiotherapist, 
occupational therapist, nurse and two 
therapy assistants.   Following the 
patient’s discharge the team give support 
at home for up to 15 days.  Up to 8 
patients can be supported at any one time.  

This project is helping to reduce length of 
stay significantly (reducing by 25% for 
Swan ward in the second month, 
compared to the same time last year) and 
improve patient experience – 100% of 
patients on the scheme have said they 
would recommend the Trust when asked 
via the Friends and Family test.   

 

 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Spotlight:  Our Spring to Green Reset Week 

In March 2014 we held a hospital ‘reset’ 
week – Spring to Green – focused on 
making sure patients receive the care they 
need, in the right place, with no hold ups 
or unnecessary delays.  This is a 
technique used by other hospitals, and 
recommended by ECIST, to allow 
organisations to have a comprehensive 
focus on patient flow and eliminating 
unnecessary delays.  By converting as 
much time as possible to direct clinical 
care, with additional support from non-

clinical staff on the wards (working as 
Ward Liaison Officers), we were able to try 
out new ways of working and take real 
stock of where unnecessary delays were 
occurring. 

  

This was a whole hospital effort, with lots 
of positivity experienced at both hospitals 
and we learnt a lot.  We were able to 
make many improvements for both 
patients and staff which we want to 
sustain moving forward.  These include:   

  

•••• A Command Centre - staffed 7 days a week allowing any issues which cause patients to 
wait for more than an hour to be escalated to a senior team. 

•••• Ward Liaison Officer (WLO) -  we will look to recruit these supporting roles to help ward 
staff with general administration tasks and for escalating issues to our Command Centre. 

•••• Twice Daily Ward Rounds - to continue moving forward providing better care for our 
patients and earlier discharge.  

 
Importantly the week also involved our 
partners, with particular support from 
North West Surrey Clinical Commissioning 

Group, Virgin Care and Social Services 
and helped to build more understanding of 
the whole system. 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

All these changes have helped to ensure a 
better flow of patients through our 
hospitals and to reduce emergency 
admissions, although we recognise that 
there is still more to do and our delivery 

against the four hour waiting target, whilst 
improving, remains fragile.   

Nationally, emergency pressures continue 
to be widely reported and there will 
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continue to be high level political scrutiny 
on how the NHS responds to this.  In the 
coming year we will expedite a number of 
further actions to support our emergency 
care pathway including:   

• Repeat of our Spring to Green week 
w/c 29th September 2014 

• Ward based care – twice daily ward 
rounds seven days a week (we are 

recruiting more consultants to enable 
this) 

• Streamlining and improving our A&E 
processes 

• Strengthening our A&E workforce 
including more consultants 

• Creating an acute hub 

 

Developing our specialist services 

Developing specialist vascular services – 
last summer our new Hybrid theatre – 
which enables complicated vascular 
surgery to be carried out in a minimally 
invasive way - became operational.  
Procedures such as Abdominal Aortic 
Aneurysm (AAA) repairs can now be 
carried out as key hole rather than open 
surgery, with real-time imaging equipment 
helping to guide surgical instruments 
through the blood vessels.  The addition of 
this new theatre is an important 
development for St Peter’s as a major 
cardiovascular centre and in our ambition 
to become a Major Emergency Centre. 

We are now one of the best performing 
Trusts in the country for vascular surgery, 
as well as being the major player for 
vascular surgery in Surrey.   

Cardiology services – we have continued 
to develop our specialist cardiology 
services including the addition of our new 
Cardiac Unit and its two cardiac 
catheterisation laboratories.  The purpose-
built unit, a partnership between the Trust 
and InHealth, is fitted out with state of the 
art diagnostic imaging equipment used to 
visualise the arteries and chambers of the 
heart and treat any abnormalities. The 
new laboratories replace existing ones 
and bring all the Trust’s cardiac diagnostic 
facilities together in one place. Ambulance 

crews are able to take certain cardiac 
patients directly to the new unit rather than 
to A&E so they can receive the specialist 
treatment they require more quickly. 

Stroke services – as part of our joint work 
with The Royal Surrey County Hospital we 
have worked together to formulate a plan 
for a joint 7 day rota for our Stroke 
services, which we hope to implement 
later in 2014.  We have also been working 
on plans to open a new dedicated stroke 
ward with 23 beds and are recruiting an 
additional stroke consultant. 

Accreditation for our endoscopy service – 
during the year our endoscopy team 
achieved accreditation from the Joint 
Advisory Group for gastro-intestinal 
endoscopy (known as JAG) which 
confirms we are meeting important 
national quality and safety standards.  
This means the department can now 
develop to become, for example, a 
national bowel screening centre.  Demand 
for endoscopy services at the Trust is 
growing by about 10% a year, with around 
10,000 procedures being undertaken last 
year.  Waiting times have dramatically 
reduced with the service now provided at 
weekends as well. 

Trauma unit accreditation - as a member 
of the South West London and Surrey 
Trauma Network, St Peter's hospital is a 
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designated trauma unit. The network is 
made up of a main Trauma Centre based 
at St George's in Tooting (which deals 
with the most severe cases of trauma), 
with seven trauma units - at St Peter's, 
The Royal Surrey, Frimley Park, East 
Surrey, St Helier, Croydon and Kingston 
hospitals.  
 
To maintain our status as a trauma unit we 
have to be regularly inspected against a 
number of criteria to make sure we have 
the right facilities, leadership, governance 
and reporting in place, and that we are 
meeting all the latest developments and 
best practice. Following an inspection in 
February, St Peter’s has retained its 
trauma unit status and received a very 
positive report. In particular we were 
praised for good data quality and a 
positive commitment by the organisation 
to the trauma agenda. We were also 
commended for good local trauma 
education, particularly in general surgery, 
vascular, anaesthetics and nursing.  

Our status as a trauma unit is important 
for us as a major acute hospital and our 
longer-term aim for St Peter’s Hospital to 
become a Major Emergency Centre. 

Developing our specialist endometriosis 
service – the Trust is one of 18 centres in 
the country with accreditation for surgical 
treatment of advanced endometriosis and 
offers a specialist minimally invasive 
gynaecology service.  During the year we 
recruited a specialist pelvic pain nurse to 
consolidate our status as a specialist 
centre, which has helped to improve 
quality for women accessing the service 
as well as increase referrals. 

Cancer services at Ashford Hospital – as 
part of our partnership work with The 
Royal Surrey County Hospital we have 
been developing a joint chemotherapy 
service at Ashford Hospital.  Initially for 
breast patients we plan to widen this out to 
other tumour groups. 

 

Improving our imaging services 

This year we began a ten year Managed 
Equipment Service to maintain and 
upgrade all our imaging and x-ray 
facilities, as well as refurbishing patient 
areas, in partnership with Philips 
Healthcare.  The first step in the 
programme was a brand new state-of-the-
art C-arm fluoroscopy unit – which 
enables moving images inside the body to 

be projected on-screen to assist in 
surgical procedures - opened at the end of 
October by Trust Chairman Aileen 
McLeish and Worldwide Chief Executive 
Officer of Philips Healthcare Deborah 
DiSanzo.  As part of this we are working 
closely with Philips and our imaging team 
looking at diagnostic pathways and how 
these can be improved. 

 

Expanding planned care 

Market share – during 2013/14 one of our 
local competitors went into liquidation. As 
a result of this the Trust expanded its 
market share in the Woking area for 
gynaecology, orthopaedics and general 
surgery. Further work with local GP 

provider companies has meant that our 
market share in the Cobham area has also 
continued to increase.  

Tenders – North West Surrey Clinical 
Commissioning Group tendered during the 
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year for the direct access ultrasound 
service and ambulatory blood pressure 
monitoring. The Trust successfully 
retained the ultrasound service and is 
currently awaiting the outcome of the 
second proposal. The Trust has also been 
successful at the preliminary stage for the 
Surrey Downs diabetes service and the 
Hounslow Diabetes Intermediate Care 
Service (HDICS). 

New services - the Trust implemented two 
new services this year developed in 
conjunction with our local commissioner, 

one to provide community dermatology 
services in Ottershaw and the second the 
creation of a stable glaucoma monitoring 
service. Both these services were 
designed to create better value for 
commissioners and provide services in 
locations that are more convenient to 
patients. 

Our strategy is to continue to bid for 
services where we believe we can provide 
high quality care for patients and which 
also provide a positive financial return for 
the Trust. 

 

Further partnership working 

The Trust continues to be proactive in 
developing relationships between partner 
organisations in North West Surrey – such 
as community services (Virgin Care) and 
Social Services, particularly to develop 
services outside hospital.  

The Trust is also developing a closer 
relationship with other local healthcare 
providers. For a number of years we have 
had a close working relationship with 
Greenbrook Healthcare who provide the 
Walk-in Centre at Ashford Hospital. We 
are also working closely with EpsoMedical 
who run the Cobham Day Surgery Unit. 
The Trust has developed a joint ear, nose 
and throat (ENT) service with 
EpsoMedical and is working with them to 
create further joint clinical services. 

We continue to work with Virgin Care and 
Social Services on a number of joint 

projects including supported discharge 
and admission avoidance schemes. We 
will continue to explore opportunities with 
both Virgin Care and Social Services over 
the coming year to integrate care 
pathways across Surrey for the benefit of 
patients, while contributing to the financial 
sustainability of all organisations. 

The Trust has continued to support 
programmes of care that deliver services 
within patients’ homes through our 
partnership arrangements with Medihome 
and Virgin Care for example, 
commissioning services directly from them 
to support discharge and ensure that 
patients continue to receive the care they 
need when they get home, (e.g. home 
visits to administer intravenous antibiotics) 
without which they would need to spend 
longer in hospital.   

  

Working with GPs 

We have continued to develop our 
relationship with local GPs, particularly in 
their new commissioning role.  Our 
business development team has regular 
contact with practices within our 

catchment area and provides a GP liaison 
service.  The team also provides a hotline 
for GPs to contact to resolve issues and 
problems quickly.  This continued close 
contact is enabling the development of 
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new services in a variety of specialities 
particularly for common conditions.  

We also hold regular meetings between 
our consultants and GPs to help improve 

communication and resolve issues.  We 
distribute our electronic GP newsletter, 
‘GP News’ to practices across our 
catchment area and beyond. 

Further clinical developments 

•••• Piloting a Gynaecology Assessment 
Unit (GAU); 

•••• Continuing the development of our 
one-stop gynaecology service for 
women referred under the two week 
rule with access to ultrasound 
scanning, hysteroscopy with a senior 
medical review. This has meant that 
many women have a diagnosis before 
they leave the clinic and some even 
undergo treatment (e.g. removal of 
polyps) at the same appointment; 

•••• New fortnightly colorectal clinic set up 
at Cobham to expand catchment area; 

•••• Accreditation as a specialist Sacral 
Nerve Stimulation provider – the only 
one in Surrey - and in the process of 
establishing a pelvic floor network with 
neighbouring hospitals; 

•••• Continuing the development of our 
bariatric service including a new 
specialist weight management service 
which started in September 2013. This 

is a non-surgical service that supports 
patients prior to assessment for 
bariatric surgery.  Demand for bariatric 
surgery continues to increase and the 
team expect to undertake 50% more 
cases in 2014/15; 

•••• A new paediatric speech and language 
therapy service providing assessment 
and therapy for children and small 
babies with swallowing and 
communication difficulties; 

•••• New paediatric clinic for children on 
home enteral feeds ensuring 
professional dietetic support and 
review; 

•••• Increasing our imaging service at 
Ashford at weekends to help with 
seven day working; 

•••• We have recruited a number of 
additional consultants during the year, 
strengthening clinical decision-making 
and ensuring more senior review for 
patients. 

 

 
Opening of our new Hybrid Theatre, January 2014, with Olympic Gold Medallist Adrian Moorhouse (3rd from left)
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Corporate objective 4: Improving productivity and e fficiency 

 

The Trust ended the year meeting this objective having achieved a surplus of £1.4 million 
and £10.1 million cost savings.  This gave us a Monitor Continuity of Services Risk Rating    
of 3. 

Achieving our cost improvements

In order to withstand future financial 
challenges and achieve efficiency gains, 
the Trust has adopted an approach of 
‘transformational change’ to the way 
services are delivered. 

This transformational change approach 
aims to optimise effectiveness and 
productivity but also requires careful 
consideration of the impact of cost 

improvements on quality and safety to 
ensure no disadvantage to patients or to 
the staff that provide those services.   

Over the year we achieved £10.1 million of 
cost savings (against our original plan of 
£11.8 million), split across areas as 
follows: 

 

 
 

In previous years, recognising that a more 
transformational change was needed to 
deliver the desired levels of efficiencies, a 
more formal approach to managing our 
cost improvement plans was implemented 

via our Programme Management Office 
(PMO) – see more below.  This has given 
us a framework for managing plans that 
ensures resulting changes improve 
service quality and patient safety.  
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Future cost improvement planning 

We have continued to develop our 
structures and specialty teams over the 
past year; moving forward, in 2014/15 our 
clinical divisions will drive the Trust’s 
Transformation Programme and the 
delivery of sustained change.  This means 
monitoring and delivering transformational 
projects that optimise change in the way 
we deliver clinical services.  These are 
based around five workstreams: 
emergency service design, improving 

discharge, outpatient redesign, elective 
service redesign, and modernising the 
workforce. 

A Cost Improvement Programme (CIP) of 
£14.9m, equating to 6% of income, has 
been developed for 2014/2015.  All 
schemes within the programme have 
detailed, supporting plans including an 
assessment of any impacts on service 
quality and how this will be managed 
during the year. 

A Programme Management Approach  

Our Programme Management Office (PMO) was established and launched across                  
the Trust in April 2011.  Its initial objectives were to implement standard project 
management methodologies, coaching and supporting teams in the delivery of projects.   

The PMO has established a strong 
structure that supports the delivery of 
change and service improvements, and 
provides assurance that our planned 
outcomes are delivered and associated 
benefits are achieved within the 
timescales required by the Board.  This 
year the PMO has been successful in 
supporting a number of projects and 
improvements including: 

Capacity Allocation Programme – 
changing the way some of our wards are 
configured, to make sure our capacity 
(beds) meets demand and that patients 
receive care in the best environment for 
their needs.  This has helped to reduce 
the number of outlying patients (patients 
who are not in the most appropriate ward 
for their condition) and has also helped 
reduce excessive waiting times for beds 
for patients admitted via A&E (this is 
explained in more detail on p.50). 

Releasing Time to Care – looking at more 
efficient ways of working on the wards to 
free up more time for nursing staff to 
spend on direct care with patients. The 

project, which has now formally come to 
an end, has generated huge 
improvements in direct patient time, 
increasing this by around 25% which 
equates to 3 hours per 12 hour shift per 
nurse.  One practical example is 
introducing red aprons for nurses carrying 
out drug rounds so people know not to 
interrupt them.  The project went on to win 
a national award in the prestigious Lean 
Healthcare Academy Awards in February. 

Improving delivery of our quality payments 
(CQUINs) – Commissioning for Quality 
and Innovation (CQUIN) is a quality 
improvement scheme which links a 
proportion of the Trust’s income to the 
achievement of certain quality outcomes 
and improvement goals. It is a national 
programme, introduced in 2009, for all 
healthcare providers, with both nationally 
determined and locally agreed 
improvement goals. 
 
CQUIN aims to drive quality improvement 
through incentivising and rewarding 
excellence. Payments are used to deliver 
real benefits for patients and 
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improvements in quality. In 2013/14 the 
Trust’s CQUIN programme was worth 
2.5% of the hospital contract, this is 
approximately £5m of the Trust’s income. 
 
Delivery of the CQUIN programme 
continued to benefit from a structured 
programme management approach. Some 
key achievements in quality outcomes 
were; 

• Increase in VTE risk assessment 
rate (see case study below) 

• Reduced incidents of catheter 
associated infections 

• Improved diabetes patient 
experience survey results 

• Expansion of Friends and Family 
Test 

 
The Trust achieved 81% of the CQUIN 
goals in 2013/14, which is an increase on 
2012/13 performance and equates to 
£3.8m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Case Study:  Venous Thromboembolism  

Risk assessment and prevention of avoidable venous thromboembolism (VTE) – blood clots - is a 
key clinical priority for all patients who stay in hospital. VTE can cause death and long-term 
complications, but many cases associated with a hospital admission are preventable through 
effective risk assessment and thrombo-prophylaxis (actions to reduce the risk e.g. the use of 
drugs and anti-embolism stockings).  
 
VTE prevention was a national CQUIN in 2013/14, requiring the Trust to ensure that patients 
were appropriately risk assessed with thrombo-prophylaxis provided where indicated, and a root 
cause analysis completed on any identified hospital associated clots. 
 
The Trust successfully met the CQUIN targets throughout 2013/14, maintaining risk assessment 
rates above the required 95% for Q1-Q3, and 97% for Q4.  
 
To ensure this priority was effectively delivered, during 2013/14 some key measures were 
undertaken; 

• The VTE Prevention Nurse Specialist provided face-to-face training to over 1,000 
members of staff; 

• The Trust VTE Committee was re-established, led by our VTE Clinical Lead. 
• Every ward has a nominated VTE champion, this includes junior doctor participation. 
• A root cause analysis working group meets regularly to review every hospital associated 

blood clot and reports into the Thrombosis Committee. 
• Improving the identification of hospital associated blood clots via diagnostics and 

bereavement services. 
• Ratification of a new VTE prevention policy. 

 
From 2014/15 VTE prevention becomes a national quality requirement, maintaining the national 
priority to ensure that patients are appropriately risk assessed. 
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Driving change through innovation 

To support our growth and efficiency 
objectives, we have continued our push 
across the Trust around innovation, 
particularly through the Chief Executive’s 
‘Innovations Fund’ where staff can pitch 
an idea and apply for funding.  The 
scheme has allowed individuals and 
teams the opportunity to drive forward 
projects to benefit their patients and 
services.   

To receive funding, proposals needed to 
be able to demonstrate measureable 
improvements in quality and productivity 
and successful projects funded this year 
include: 

Helping our patients with COPD  – our 
respiratory team secured funding to start a 
project providing patients with chronic 
obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) 
who come into hospital following an acute 
attack, with a rehabilitation programme.  
Evidence shows that COPD patients 
respond well to a structured programme of 
exercise and education, but waiting lists 
for existing community programmes can 
be long- hence setting up a service within 
the Trust.  Patients suffering an acute 
‘flare up’ who have been in hospital can go 
on the programme for six weeks, attending 
twice weekly sessions.  The scheme aims 
to improve quality of life and mortality 
rates plus reduce further hospital 
admission and therefore ‘bed days’ by up 
to 26%. 

Reducing our medicines waste – a project 
suggested by pharmacy staff to monitor 
unused and wasted medication on our 
wards as an estimated 50% of 
medications returned to pharmacy are 
unfit for reuse.  A one year pharmacy 
assistant post was agreed to actively seek 
out and process unwanted medicines on 

our wards and monitor the savings made.  
In its first year the project has saved just 
under £290,000. 

Positive changes for imaging – continued 
demand for our imaging services means 
we need to find more innovative and 
efficient ways to manage demand and 
capacity.  Our imaging team pitched for 
funding for an Imaging Service 
Improvement Programme led by a Service 
Improvement lead to steer, lead and 
implement positive changes, looking at 
processes such as patient pathways, 
communication and reporting 
mechanisms.  This 12 month project 
began September 2013. 

Creating an interventional pain treatment 
suite - this project involved centralising 
treatments delivered by the Pain Team to 
create a centre of excellence for pain 
management at Ashford instead of having 
services delivered across six different 
locations.  The new suite, located in our 
Day Surgery Unit, means our pain 
consultants are able to provide an equal 
and excellent service, with facilities for 
sedation/anaesthesia in a well-staffed 
environment.  This is improving patient 
experience reducing waiting times (on the 
day) for procedures, creating a more 
relaxed environment and avoiding 
cancellations due to pressure on general 
theatre space.  Equipment is now all in 
one place and is also saving staff time and 
allowing a more efficient use of resources. 
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Using information technology to drive efficiencies and improvement 

The Health Informatics strategy is moving 
forward, with much discussion focusing on 
making our services paperless.  The Trust 
has identified a number of key elements to 
achieving this objective, with the 
introduction of an electronic document 
management and scanning solution as a 
first major step. This is being part-funded 
by government funding, and the 
procurement project is being fully 
supported by the Health and Social Care 
Information Team (HSCIC).  

Other initiatives currently underway are 
feasibility studies for single sign on and 
clinical portal solutions. These will provide 
quicker, safer access to electronic clinical 
systems.  A key benefit of the proposed 
merger with The Royal Surrey County 
Hospital would be the ability to move more 
quickly towards an electronic health 
record. 

The year has also seen the introduction of 
a new solution for transcribing clinic 
letters, and this project is now more than 
two-thirds complete, helping us to forward 
letters to GPs in a timely manner. We are 
now meeting our commissioner’s target of 
sending over 95% of discharge letters to 
GPs within 24 hours. This has been 
achieved through increased use of 
existing systems, but also via the 
introduction of a discharge module within 
our Bluespier Theatres Management 
System. The take-up of this module was 
impressive, with clinicians transferring to 
the new system within four weeks.  We 
have also been able to make more 
effective use of the Bluespier system, 
which has resulted in improved processes 
and data quality with our theatres 
department. 

Visually, the introduction of self-check in 
kiosks demonstrates the Trust’s 
commitment to using 21st century 

technology to enhance the patient 
experience. These slick, modern devices 
are changing the face of our reception 
areas and their introduction is driving 
process change. Queues are shorter, 
allowing receptionist staff to perform value 
added tasks such as outcome forms. 

Other achievements include:  

• The Cancer Service has 
implemented the Somerset Cancer 
Register solution, and is now able 
to report key data including cancer 
waiting times to national standards 

• The deployment of a range of 
Qlikview dashboards giving us 
oversight of hospital flow, theatres 
utilisation, A&E activity, maternity 
pathway recording and diagnostics 
performance 

• Detailed modelling of demand and 
capacity for individual specialties to 
support the 18 week pathway 

• Introduction of a secure video 
conferencing solution allowing 
clinical staff to communicate in 
high definition to any PC, laptop or 
mobile device 

• Secured Department of Health 
funding for maternity activity by 
issuing community midwives with 
digi-pens, allowing them to record 
important antenatal and postnatal 
data. The solution is intended to 
help midwives work more 
efficiently, allowing them to devote 
more time to direct care. 

An overarching element of the work of the 
Health Informatics teams is to ensure 
there is good governance around the 
Trust’s information systems (both 
electronic and paper). The Trust once 
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again reached Level 2 for compliance on 
the HSCIC Information Governance 
Toolkit.  A thorough review of existing 
evidence took place, and the toolkit 
software now contains up-to-date, relevant 

evidence which passed internal audit prior 
to the central submission. 

 

 
 

Information governance 

As described in our Information 
Governance Policy, re-issued this year, a 
high standard of information governance is 
a crucial part of our vision to provide 
excellent joined-up healthcare.  During 
2013-14 the we have reviewed our 
information governance management 
framework, issuing new policies, 
procedures and guidance for staff, and 
focusing work on ensuring that information 
is available when needed for clinical care 
without compromising patient 
confidentiality.  This work will continue and 
be built on over the course of the next few 
years. 

The Trust’s Information Governance 
Steering Group meets regularly to ensure 
that the framework is implemented 
throughout the Trust.  Leadership is 
provided at executive level by the Medical 
Director as Caldicott Guardian, acting as a 
champion for patient confidentiality, and 
the Director of Finance and Information as 
Senior Risk Information Owner. 

Following a thorough review of many 
working practices in place at the Trust, our 
Information Governance Toolkit return for 
2013-14 was graded ‘Satisfactory’, with an 
overall score of 70%.  Further areas have 
been identified for review in the next two 
to three years, resulting in a clear 
programme of work to ensure continual 
improvement and firmly embedding 
information assurance as a core aspect of 
our activity. 

All staff have a duty to report incidents 
such as breaches of confidentiality, 

however minor, so that lessons can be 
identified and used to inform future 
practice.  All information-related incidents 
reported in 2013-14 were assessed in 
accordance with HSCIC’s “Checklist 
Guidance for Reporting, Managing and 
Investigating Information Governance 
Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation” 
(June 2013), which changed the 
assessment criteria and reporting process 
from previous years: 

•••• All incidents are scored against a 
series of ‘Sensitivity Factors’, 
which increase or reduce the 
severity of an incident, and which 
are summed to a total score of 
between -3 and +13. 

•••• A score of 2 or more is graded as a 
‘Level 2’ incident, reportable to the 
Department of Health and the 
Information Commissioner’s Office, 
and narrated individually in annual 
reports. 

•••• A score of 1 or below is graded as 
a ‘Level 1’ incident, reportable in 
aggregate in annual reports. 

•••• ‘Near misses’, where an incident is 
prevented due to fortunate events 
which were not part of pre-planned 
controls, are graded at ‘Level 0’.  
Near misses are not reportable but 
are used internally to improve 
Trust processes, in order to aid the 
prevention of actual incidents. 
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Incidents reported to the Information Commissioner’s Office 

The Trust recorded two incidents at ‘Level 2’ severity, which were reported to the 
Department of Health and the Information Commissioner’s Office and are detailed in the 
table below: 

Date of 
incident 
(month) 

Nature of 
incident 

Nature of data 
involved 

Number of data 
subjects 

potentially 
affected 

Notification 
steps 

Sep 2013 Non-secure 
disposal – 
paperwork 

Handover sheet 
listing name, date 
of birth, 
admission details 
and medical 
condition & 
treatment of 
babies 

16 Trust patients 

Paperwork from 
other Trusts was 
also involved 

Individuals notified 
by post and 
verbally 

Mar 2014 Non-secure 
disposal – 
paperwork 

Handover sheet 
listing name, date 
of birth, 
diagnosis, nurses’ 
and progress 
notes 

26 No notification – 
paperwork was 
returned promptly 

 

Further action 
on information 

risk 

The Trust supported a root cause analysis conducted on the September incident 
by NHS England’s Area Team.  The analysis concluded that the Trust had 
systems and processes in place to control the use of paper handover sheets, so 
the Trust’s risk management in this area is focused on promoting all staff 
members’ individual responsibility when handling confidential data. 
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Other information incidents 

The Trust recorded the following additional incidents at ‘Level 1’ severity against the new 
HSCIC criteria/categories.   

Category  Breach Type  Total  

 

A 

 

Corruption or inability to recover electronic data 

 

0 

 

B 

 

Disclosed in error 

 

23 

 

C 

 

Lost in transit 

 

0 

 

D 

 

Lost or stolen hardware 

 

1 

 

E 

 

Lost or stolen paperwork   

 

3 

 

F 

 

Non-secure disposal – hardware 

 

0 

 

G 

 

Non-secure disposal – paperwork 

 

3 

 

H 

 

Uploaded to website in error 

 

1 

 

I 

 

Technical security failing 

 

0 

 

J 

 

Unauthorised access/disclosure 

 

0 

 

K 

 

Other 

 

2 
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3. Quality Report 
 
 

Introduction  

The Quality Account is an annual report to the public about the quality of services that 
providers of healthcare deliver and their plans for improvement. The purpose of Quality 
Account is to enable:  

• patients and their carers to make 
well informed choices about their 
providers of healthcare; 

• the public to hold providers to 
account for the quality of the 
services they deliver; 

• Boards of NHS providers to report 
on the improvements made to their 
services and set out their priorities 
for the following year.       

There are three important quality 
improvement areas:  

• Patient Safety  – we do no 
harm to patients, ensuring 
that there are robust safety 
mechanisms in-place 

• Clinical Effectiveness – 
Utilising best practice, 
ensuring the best possible 
outcome for patients 

• Positive patient 
experience  – This means 
delivering personalised 
care with compassion, 
dignity and respect.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Quality Account summarises 
performance and improvements against 
the quality priorities and objectives which 
were set for 2013/14 and outlines the 

quality priorities and objectives which have 
been set for 2014/15.  This report also 
includes feedback from our patients, 
governors and commissioners on how well 
they think we are doing. 

Your feedback  

If you have any comments or suggestions on this Quality Account, we would welcome your 
feedback. Please contact: Suzanne Rankin, Chief Nurse via email: 
suzanne.rankin@asph.nhs.uk or telephone:  01932 722216.
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Foreword from the Chief Executive  

Welcome to our fifth Quality 
Account for Ashford and St 
Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust.  This 
publication describes just 
how seriously we consider 
quality and safety issues in 

our two hospitals and how we work 
continuously to make the right 
improvements.  We want patients, carers 
and visitors to feel confident of the quality 
of our services, and this Quality Account 
sets out our priorities for improvement for 
2014/15 and details how we have 
performed against key quality measures 
set for last year.  However, this report can 
only give a snapshot of the work we are 
doing, and there are many other initiatives 
and pieces of work continuously taking 
place in our hospitals to improve care and 
safety for our patients. 

This year we have continued to consider 
recommendations from both the second 
Francis Report into failings at Mid 
Staffordshire hospital and the Berwick 
Report on safety, both of which illustrate 
the consequences of what can happen 
when quality and safety processes fail.  
We have made significant changes to the 
way we manage quality and safety in our 
hospitals, reflecting changes in our 
business model to devolve more 
accountability and decision-making to our 
four clinical divisions.  As a result we have 
created a Head of Quality position for 
each division, each with a small dedicated 
team, to help monitor, analyse and 
improve quality performance right at the 
front-line.  And, to make sure safety is 
right at the top of our agenda we have 
created a Chief of Patient Safety role, 
which is a senior-level medical position 
undertaken by our Deputy Medical 
Director. 

We have continued to develop our patient 
feedback methods this year, welcoming 
the introduction of the new Friends and 
Family Test as we know that the best way 
to make the right improvements is to listen 
to what our patients and their families are 
telling us.  We actively encourage all 
feedback, good or otherwise, and continue 
to offer face to face meetings with patients 
and their families if they do raise 
concerns.  Led by the Board, we’re also 
spending as much time as we can talking 
directly with our staff, through organised 
listening events, sounding boards, 
informal walkabouts and so on, hearing 
what it’s like on the front-line and 
continuing to create a more open and 
transparent culture.  We also signed up to 
the Nursing Times Speak out Safely 
campaign, reassuring staff that it’s okay 
for them to raise concerns and that we will 
listen and support them.   

During the year we have seen many 
positive highlights for the Trust and 
assurance that we continue to offer high 
quality and safe care.  In December Dr 
Foster published their Good Hospital 
Guide for 2013 and we were one of only 
eight Trusts to be cited as having lower 
than expected mortality rates both during 
the week and at weekends.  There has 
been a lot of talk in the media about 
patient safety at weekends and the report 
reflects the importance we have placed on 
providing consistent care to patients every 
day;  we have put a lot of effort into 
improving weekend cover across our 
specialties and in particular into expanding 
our consultant presence and the 
availability of diagnostic services.  Our 
partnership with The Royal Surrey County 
Hospital and our decision to move towards 
merging our organisations will help to 
drive the quality agenda, particularly in 
providing more seven day consultant care. 
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We have continued to score well against 
the majority of our quality and 
performance targets (detailed more on p. 
130) with particularly low hospital acquired 
infection rates.  In January 2014, the Care 
Quality Commission undertook a themed 
unannounced inspection at both our 
hospitals and reassuringly we met all the 
quality standards they inspected over the 
two days. In addition, we have been rated 
by the CQC as a low risk Trust, placed in 
their lowest risk category (band 6) in their 
new quarterly Intelligence Monitoring 
Reports.  Ratings are based on a number 
of quality indicators including infection 
control, mortality rates, patient reported 
outcome measures, waiting times, staff 
surveys and staffing levels.  The reports 
act as early intelligence for the CQC, 
giving a detailed view on how a hospital is 

performing, as it prepares to formally 
inspect individual hospitals under its new 
inspection regime (which we haven’t had 
yet).   

Once again we are pleased to have had 
such good engagement from our 
stakeholders in developing our priorities 
for next year and in reflecting on this 
year’s achievements.  Your input and 
insight is critical in helping us continue to 
provide the very best care we can for our 
patients. 

The information in this Quality Account is 
provided from our data management 
systems and our quality improvement 
systems and to the best of my knowledge 
is accurate, and provides a true reflection 
of our organisation. 

 

 

 

Andrew Liles 

Chief Executive 

27 May 2014 
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Summary of Part 2 and 3 of the report 

All providers of NHS care are required to produce a Quality Account. This sets out the 
quality improvement priorities for the year ahead and a review of our performance 
against the quality improvement priorities that we set for the previous year. Our Trust 
Board receives quarterly updates on progress within our quality report and for ease of 
review we have developed a RAG (red, amber, green) rated Quality Account dashboard. 

This summary section is intended as an immediate overview of our progress with quality 
priorities for 2013/14 and our plans for 2014/15. This year we met with our stakeholders 
to review progress through workshops held in July and October 2013 and February and 
April 2014.  These discussions informed our quarterly reports to the Trust Board.  

In 2013/14 we set the following priorities and the progress we have made is shown below. 

Summary 

All providers of NHS care are required 
to produce a Quality Account. This sets 
out improvement priorities for the year 
ahead and a review of our performance 
against the quality indicators that we set 
for the previous year. Our Trust Board 
receives quarterly updates on progress 
within our quality report and for ease of 
review we have developed a RAG (red, 
amber, green) rated Quality Account 
dashboard. 

This summary section is intended as an 
immediate overview of our progress with 

quality priorities for 2012 and our plans 
for 2013/14. This year, for the first time, 
we will meet more regularly with our 
stakeholders to review progress.   

Workshops are planned for July and 
October 2013 and January and April 
2014.  These discussions will then 
inform our quarterly reports to the Trust 
Board.  

In 2012 we set the following priorities and 
the progress we have made is shown 
below. 

 

 

 

Progress on our priorities for 2013/14 

 

Achieved and 
surpassed 

 

 

Improve the care of patients with dementia and supp orting carers 
(priority 1) 

We are pleased to report that we achieved the two targets set;  

• Over 90% of emergency admissions patients aged 75 years old or 
over to be screened 

• Over 90% of dementia patients are appropriately assessed  

(Please see pages 12-14) 
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Achieved and 
surpassed 
(ctnd) 

To improve all aspects of communication with patien ts (priority 3)  

We are delighted to report that we achieved the three targets: 

• % response rates for the NHS Friends and Family test (target 20% by 
Quarter 4) 

• Inpatients promoter score for NHS Friends and Family test (70), by 
March 2014 

• To reduce formal complaints related to communication by 10% value 
2012/13 (<196) 

(Please see page 94) 

Improving harm-free care as measured within the Saf ety 
Thermometer (priority 5) 

The Trust exceeded both the targets set for this priority by: 

• Reducing new hospital acquired harm (<6%)  
• Reducing hospital acquired CAUTIs (<1.2%). 

(Please see page 81) 

 

Nearly/mostly 
achieved  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To provide s afe, high quality discharge for patients (priority 2) 

Two of the three measures set were achieved: 

• To reduce complaints relating to discharge by 5% from the 2012/13 
value of 72 (achieved) 

• To increase electronic discharge summaries sent within 24 hours, 95% 
by March 2014 (achieved) 

• To increase timeliness of discharge of patient (before 15:00), target 
66% (not achieved)  

(Please see page 77) 

To provide effective risk assessment and prophylaxi s for venous 
thromboembolism (hospital acquired thrombus) (prior ity 6)  

The Trust has successfully met the required CQUIN target for 2013/14, 
maintaining risk assessment rates above the required 95%. However the 
Trust missed the target set for reduction of hospital associated VTE (<24). 

(Please see page 83)  

Improve the  safety culture (priority 4)  

The Trust achieved the Friends and Family test target however did not 
achieve the reduction in the number of formal complaints.  

• Promoter score for the NHS Friends and Family test (70) (achieved) 
• Reduce complaints (<450) (not achieved) 

(Please see page 80) 
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Nearly/mostly 
achieved 
ctnd 

 

To reduce the hospital emergency and elective readm ission rate 
(priority 9) 

The Trust met the target regarding reducing elective readmissions (28 days) 
and closely missed the reduction in emergency readmission target  

(Please see page 89) 

To improve the quality of nursing care using indica tors for 
pressure ulcers and falls (priority 8) 

The Trust improved performance throughout 2013-14 however did not met the 
three targets set:  

• To reduce patient falls (total falls) 
• To reduce patient falls resulting in harm (grade 3 and above) 
• To reduce hospital-acquired pressure ulcers (stage 2 and above) 

 

(Please see pages 86) 

Moving forward, the Trust will ensure 2013/14 improvements are fully 
implemented & built upon and a multi-disciplinary team approach is adopted 
to prevent and reduce falls.  

Improving the care of patients with diabetes and re ducing their 
length of stay (priority 8) 

The Trust made many improvements to the diabetes service however missed 
the target % of patients assessed for diabetes (100% by year end). Trust 
achieved 81% average for 2013/14, with 99% recorded for March 2014.  

(Please see pages 88) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

72 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Our priorities for 2014/15 and what we are doing to  achieve them  
  

Patient Experience  

Priority 1.  

Improve the care of patients 
with dementia and supporting 
carers 

With funding agreed for a 
Specialist Dementia Nurse we 
will seek to build upon 
improvement work undertaking 
in 2013/14, including improving 
carers support, implementation 
of a training strategy and 
strengthening relationships with 
external stakeholders in health 
and social care.    

 

Priority 2.   

To provide safe, high quality 
discharge for patients 

With the expansion of the 
discharge support team, the 
team will continue to provide 
specialist support to ensure 
safe, high quality patient 
discharge. The improvements 
from 2014/15 will continue to be 
embedded and built upon.  

 

Priority 3.  

To improve all aspects of 
communication with patients 

In-line with the 
recommendations from Ann 
Clwyd and Tricia Hart, the Trust 
will conduct an in-depth review 
of its complaints process and 
source feedback from 
complainants pertaining to the 
process. Further initiatives will 
be introduced to ensure 
patients and public are central 
to quality improvement for 
example Secret Shopper 
experience feedback.  

Patient Safety  

Priority 4.  

Improve the safety culture   

The Trust is looking to conduct 
a patient safety culture staff 
survey (the Manchester Patient 
Safety Framework) to assess 
the patient safety culture across 
the Trust. Following this, 
actions will be implemented to 
improve. The Medical 
Leadership Development 
programme and Organisational 
Development programmes will 
continue to be implemented. 

 

 

Priority 5.  

Improving harm-free care as 
measured within the Safety 
Thermometer 

The Trust will continue to build 
upon improvement work for 
falls, pressure ulcers and VTE. 
We will seek to reduce the 
number of patient falls and 
hospital associated Hospital 
Associated Thrombosis (HAT), 
through staff training and 
education. We will continue to 
review performance on a 
monthly basis. 

  

Priority 6.  

To provide effective risk 
assessment and prophylaxis 
‘for hospital acquired 
thrombus’    

We will continue to build upon 
improvement work conducted 
throughout 2013-14 including 
introduction of Intermittent 
Pneumatic Compression (IPC) 
for Stroke Patients, 
development of competencies 
& care plans and development 
of patient information 
application. 
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Clinical Effectiveness 

Priority 7.  

To improve the quality of 
care and clinical outcomes of 
patients with Sepsis  (new) 
2014/15 improvement work will 
review its cultural approach to 
improvement around Sepsis 
patients. Initiatives will include a 
Sepsis club, an internal network 
of nurses and doctors 
committed to measuring and 
improving both the process and 
outcome performance relating 
to the Sepsis bundle.  

Priority 8.  

Improving the care of 
patients with diabetes and 
reducing their length of stay 

The diabetes team will continue 
to implement the Think Glucose 
programme. Further specialist 
training and focussed support 
will be provided to staff, with the 
drive to improve incident 
reporting relating to diabetes to 
identify further areas for 
improvement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Priority 9.  

To reduce the hospital 
emergency and elective 
readmission rate   

We will build on work from the 
Readmission Prevention 
Programme which commenced 
in April 2013. This will include 
the review of all of the 
readmission prevention 
initiatives to ascertain those 
that were successful in actually 
reducing the incidences of 
patients returning to hospital, 
with a view to rolling out ‘more 
of the same’. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

74 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Part 2 Performance against our Quality Improvement 
Priorities for 2013/14  

During 2013/14 we held workshops with our stakeholders to monitor progress against our 
quality improvement priorities for 2013/14. 

Our Priorities 2013/14 

We want to ensure the highest possible 
standards of quality for our patients, 
meeting and exceeding their expectations 
in terms of patient experience, patient 
safety and clinical effectiveness. Each 
year we set ourselves a number of key 
priorities under each of these headings 
which helps us to focus on those areas 
most in need of our attention and 
continued vigilance. 

In this section we describe our 
achievements against each of the key 
priorities we set ourselves in the 
previous year and our plans for further 
improvement in 2014/15. 

 

 

Review of our key priorities for 2013/14 

Last year we set ourselves nine priorities under the following headings: 

Improving Patient Experience: 

1. Improving the care of patients with dementia and supporting carers  

2. To provide safe, high quality discharge for patients  

3. To improve all aspects of communication with patients  

Patient Safety: 

4. Improve the safety culture  

5. Improving harm-free care as measured within the Safety Thermometer 

6. To provide effective risk assessment and prophylaxis for ‘hospital acquired 

thrombus’  

7. To improve the quality of nursing care using indicators for pressure ulcers and falls 

Clinical effectiveness: 

8. Improving the care of patients with diabetes and reducing their length of stay  

9. To reduce the hospital emergency and elective readmission rate  
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Priority 1 – To improve the care of patients with d ementia and 
support carers  

 

Why was this selected as a priority?

Dementia is a common condition that 
affects about 800,000 people in the UK. 
Due to an ageing population the number of 
people living with dementia is expected to 
double by 2050. The term ‘dementia’ is an 
umbrella term used to describe certain 
diseases which result in an on-going 
decline of the brain’s ability to function 
usually without cure. This includes 
Alzheimer’s disease, vascular dementia etc. 
Common symptoms include memory loss, 
changes in mood and behaviour, problems 
with communication and problem solving.  

The symptoms affect physical, 
psychological and social wellbeing of an 
individual and those of their loved ones/next 
of kin. People with dementia are often more 
vulnerable to a range of physical health 
problems. They require assessment and 
treatment by health care professionals and 
services that are skilled and equipped to 
meet the needs of people affected by 
dementia. For information see the NHS 
Choices Dementia Guide.  

 

 

What did we do in 2013/14? 

A range of actions were undertaken including:  

• The Trust developed a care 
pathway for patients with 
dementia and updated 
relevant policies/guidelines 

• We produced a formal system 
for gathering information 
pertinent for a person with 
dementia and recruited two 
Specialist Dementia 
Therapists.  

• Indicators related to patients 
with dementia e.g. delayed 
discharges, transfer rates, 
readmission rates and falls, 
were introduced into our Trust 
Board dashboard 

• We rolled out our Butterfly 
Scheme meaning clear 
identification of patients with 
dementia  

• We increased awareness and 
training through staff 
mandatory induction  

• Funding for a full-time 
Specialist Dementia Nurse for 
2014/15 was secured  

• We created an Older Persons 
Assessment Liaison Service 
(OPAL) specifically aimed at 
the frail elderly which 
encompassed the early 
assessment of people with 
dementia  

• Our OPAL Lead Nurse (who 
has a background in dementia 
and elderly care) led on our 
dementia improvement work 

• We refurbished Birch Ward to 
ensure the ward is dementia 
friendly. Refurbishing will 
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continue into the early part of 
2014/15  

• Representatives from the 
Trust attended monthly 
Interface meetings with 
external stakeholders to 

ensure effective 
communication streams, best 
practice and learning are 
shared 

 

 

How did we perform in 2013/14? 
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The graph above demonstrates that the Trust performed higher than the target of >90% 
throughout 2013/14. 

And, year to date, 96.1% of emergency admissions patients aged 75 years old or over were 
screened. The target set was >90%. 

Comment 

We continue to strive towards 
improving the experience, safety and 
outcome of people with affected by 
dementia. With funding agreed for a 
Specialist Dementia Nurse we will 
continue to build upon the 
improvement work already 
established in creating a dementia 

friendly hospital. In addition, we also 
aim to strengthen our relationships 
with external stakeholders across 
health and social care to develop 
jointed up ways of working.  

Priority 1 for 2014/15 will focus on 
improving the experience of patients 
with Dementia and their carers. 
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Priority 2 –  To provide safe, high quality discharge for patient s

__________________________________________________________________ 

 

Why was this selected as a priority? 

Normally, when patients come into 
hospital a care plan for treatment is 
developed which also includes details 
for leaving the hospital or transfer. 
This usually happens within 24 hours 
of admission. For further information 
on discharge see the NHS Choices 
website. 

Our patients and their carers tell us 
that their experience of being 
discharged from hospital is not 
always as good as it should be. We 
also know that poor discharge can 
lead to preventable readmission.   

What did we do in 2013/14?  

• The Trust Policy on Discharge 
for Adult Patients was 
updated and re-ratified in July 
2013. 

• The discharge team 
expanded from three to eight 
registered nurses and a 
Placement Officer which 
improved communication with 
patients and relatives, which 
provided more specialist 
advice, training and support 
for staff 

• The discharge team provided 
seven day weekly coverage 
(which includes bank 
holidays) throughout the year, 
with a specialism in complex 
discharge  

• During the year, a close 
working relationship with 
social service, NHS funded 
care and community teams 
have been forged.    

• The discharge team ensured 
early escalation to senior 
management 

• The discharge team visited all 
complex discharge 
patients/relatives providing 
support and information 

• The Senior Discharge 
Coordinator attended and 
presented at the March 2014 
Nursing and Residential 
Homes forum.  

• The discharge team 
contributes to the monthly 
Mandatory Induction 
programme  

• Each Discharge coordinator 
has an allocated ward to 
support and provide personal 
training to. 

• The discharge team attends 
ward morning handovers (now 
based in the same area) 
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How did we perform?   

 

Criteria  Target/limit set  Performance  

Increase timely discharge of 
patients (before 15:00hrs 

Target – 66% 50.6%, March 2014 (target 
not achieved) 

Reduce complaints relating 
to discharge by 5% of 
2012/13 value  

Target – 68 56, 2013/14 (target achieved) 

Increase electronic 
discharge summaries sent 
within 24 hours of discharge  

Target – 95% 95%, March 2014 (target 
achieved) 

 

Comment 

A substantial amount of work has been undertaken by the discharge team and staff to 
provide safe, high quality discharge for patients. The good work will be built upon in 2014-15. 

In the annual Inpatient Survey 2013, a significant improvement was recorded for the 
question “Did hospital staff take your family or home situation into account when planning 
your discharge?” (Trust score 2013, 7.3/10 vs Trust score 2012, 6.5/10. 

 

 
Chief Nurse Suzanne Rankin with Medical Director, Dr David Fluck
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Priority 3 – To improve all aspects of communicatio n with 
patients  

Why was this selected as a priority?  

Discussion with stakeholders highlighted 
that good communication, verbal and 
written information closely link to high 
quality of patient care and the patient 
experience. Results from patient surveys, 
complaints and Patient Advice & Liaison 

Service (PALS) have shown us that we can 
do much more to engage with our patients 
and ensure they have all the information 
they want to support a positive experience 
whilst in our care.  

 

What did we do in 2013/14? 

• During the year a Project Lead co-
ordinated the Trust implementation 
of the Friends and Family test 
within in-patients, Accident & 
Emergency services and maternity 
services.   

• The percentage of response rates 
and scores within each ward area 
are monitored on a monthly basis 
through a dashboard reported into 
the Trust Board and the sub-Board 
Integrated Governance & 
Assurance Committee (IGAC) 

• Awareness was created through 
each ward and each public area 
having a poster of Friends and 
Family and leaflet racks containing 
“What if I have a concern?” 
booklets.  In addition, all ward 
areas contain copies of the NHS 

Constitution for patients and staff 
to reference when necessary.  

• A focus group and weekly tracking 
of complaints occurred to ensure 
the Trust improved its timescales 

• The Trust expanded the PALS 
team. A 22% increase of PALS 
contacts was recorded over 
2012/13 figures.  

• “Your Discharge” information 
leaflets where updated and re-
published 

•  A substantial amount of patient 
and public involvement was 
sourced for the planning of The 
Abbey Birth Centre 

• Paediatric services implemented 
the Institute of Parental Pregnancy 
& Birth records  

 

How did we perform in 2013/14? 

• % Response rates for the NHS 
Friends and Family test (target = 
20% by Quarter 4). The Trust 
achieved this by recording 22.8% 
in Quarter 4  

• Promoter Score for the NHS 
Friends & Family test in-patients 

(target 70% by year end). The 
Trust achieved 72% by year end. 

• Reduce formal complaints re. 
communication by 10% (196 value 
2012/13). The Trust achieved over 
10% reduction. 170 value 2013/14   
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Comment 

Following on from the Francis Report published in February 2014 and the 
recommendations from the reviews into complaints handling in England & Wales 
conducted by Ann Clwyd & Tricia Hart and the mandatory implementation of the Friends 
& Family test, 2013/14 has been a pivotal year for communication with patients. The 
Trust actively seeks to implement learning and best practice to ensure to improve all 
aspects of communication with patients.     

 

Priority 4 – Improve the safety culture 

Why was this selected as a priority? 

We know that public confidence in the care 
provided by the NHS has been shaken 
following the inquiry into Mid Staffordshire 
NHS Foundation Trust. We want to do 
everything we can to assure our community 
of the very good care and hard work that 
goes on every single day here in our 
hospitals. 

It is really important to consider carefully 
what the Francis report published in 
February 2013 means for us as individual 
practitioners, and for this hospital Trust. We 

are making good progress with our 
improvement plan but recognise that we 
must continue to be relentless in our pursuit 
of excellence for all of our patients, all of the 
time. This includes our work to collect and 
use patient feedback, to improve our 
response to complainants and to increase 
the time we spend meeting patients and 
carers and discussing their experiences, 
concerns and issues.  

      

 

What did we do? 

• A Chief of Patient Safety was 
appointed, whose role includes offering 
expert advice on matters relating to risk 
and improving medical engagement 

• The Trust’s ward performance 
accreditation/audit scheme “Best care” 
was improved in-terms of defining clear 
indicators/measures and methodology. 
This included regular surveillance 
meetings, chaired by the Chief Nurse 
and Deputy Chief Nurse – Associate 
Director of Quality, whereby Ward 
Managers were invited to present their 
results and recommendations for ways 
to improve were discussed 

• An internal “Risk Summit” process was 
introduced for wards showing 
worsening or concerning performance 
data  

• The Trust implemented a programme 
which sought to review every death.  

• The Trust updated over 80% of out-of-
date Trust policies relating to patient 
care, nursing, risk management, 
medical devices, infection control and 
major incidents 

• The Serious Incidents Policy was 
updated with input from the North East 
Surrey Clinical Commissioning Group  
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• All our safeguarding adults policies and 
processes were reviewed and updated 

• We continued our good work regarding 
the Enhancing Quality programme. 
There are currently five work streams 
in the programme; Pneumonia, Acute 
Myocardial Infarction, Heart failure 
(Acute), hip & knee and dementia 

• The Trust participated in a high number 
of National Clinical Audits and local 
service level clinical audits 

• We continue to improve our openness 
and transparency. For example on 
many of the Trust’s 
Committees/Groups there are 
commissioner, patient involvement and 
other external stakeholder involvement, 
in-line with The Duty of Candour  

 

 

How did we perform? 

The Trust achieved the Friends and 
Family test target however did not achieve 
the reduction in the number of formal 
complaints.  

• Promoter score for the NHS 
Friends and Family test (70) 
(achieved) 

• And reduce complaints (<450) (not 
achieved) 

 

 

Comment 

Many initiatives have been implemented during 2013/14. In 2014/15, the Trust will seek 
to assess the patient safety culture.

 

 

Priority 5: Improving harm-free care as measured wi th the Safety 
Thermometer  

Why was this selected as a priority? 

Approximately 30,000 people use 
healthcare services every hour each day. 
The vast majority of patients receive safe 
and high quality care, however, 
sometimes things go wrong, and mistakes 
are made. Recent high profile cases show 
that there is still a lot to do to ensure 
everyone is treated safely when they use 
healthcare services. Following publication 

of the Francis report there is an increased 
drive for a new culture of ‘zero harm’ and 
compassionate care and this priority links 
closely with many of our other priorities. 

The Safety Thermometer programme aims 
to reduce four types of avoidable harm 
during episodes of health care: pressure 
ulcers, falls, catheter associated urinary 
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tract infections (CAUTI) and venous 
thromboembolism (VTE). Data are 
collected on all inpatients on one day per 
month to provide a ‘snapshot’ of harms. 

We can then use this data to monitor our 
improvement and compare our progress 
with other Trusts. 

 What did we do in 2013/14? 

We focused on our good practice to 
reduce the four types of avoidable harms:   

•••• Pressure Ulcers  

•••• Falls  

•••• Catheter associated urinary tract 

infections (CAUTI)  

•••• Venous thromboembolism (VTE)   

 

 

How did we perform in 2013/14? 
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• The graph above demonstrates that we were consistently under the 6% target for 
reducing new hospital-acquired harms. 

• The target to reduce hospital acquired CAUTIs (<1.2%) was achieved. The Trust 
produced an average of 0.3% 

 

Comment 

The Trust reduced the incidence of hospital acquired CAUTI whereby in 2012/13 we 
had a higher incidence of CAUTIs compared to the national and regional averages.  
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Priority 6 – To provide effective risk assessment a nd 
prophylaxis for ‘hospital acquired thrombus’ (HAT) 

______________________________________________________________ 

 

Why was this selected as a priority?  

Risk assessment and reduction of 
preventable Venous Thromboembolism 

(VTE) is a key clinical priority for all 
hospitalised patients. VTE can cause 
death and long-term morbidity, but many 
cases associated with a hospital 
admission are preventable through 

effective risk assessment and 
thromboprophylaxis (actions to reduce the 
risk e.g. the use of drugs and anti-
embolism stockings). All healthcare 
professionals within the UK are advised to 
follow current NICE recommendations on 
risk assessment and prevention of VTE. 

 

What did we do in 2013/14? 

•••• The VTE Prevention Nurse 
Specialist provided face-to-face 
training to 1023 members of staff 
during 2013 (this number excludes 
e-learning training)  

•••• Every ward has a nominated VTE 
champion, this includes junior 
doctor participation. 

•••• The Trust VTE Lead chairs the re-
invigorated VTE Committee. The 
Committee met four times during 
2013/14  

•••• A Root Cause Analysis working 
group meets regularly to review 
every Hospital Associated 
Thrombosis (HAT) and reports into 
the Thrombosis Committee      

•••• Patient leaflets and posters are 
well promoted and visible within all 
ward areas.  

•••• Implemented a monthly, Trust wide 
thromboprophylaxis audit 

•••• The VTE Prevention Nurse 
Specialist has forged closed links 
with Kings College Hospital, local 
Trust VTE Prevention teams and 
the VTE Prevention Exemplar 
Centre Network 

•••• Improved the identification of 
Hospital Associated Thrombosis 
via Diagnostics and Bereavement 
Services 

•••• Ratification on a new VTE 
Prevention Policy 

 

 

How did we perform? 

The Trust has successfully met the required CQUIN target to date in 2013/14, maintaining 
risk assessment rates above the required 95% for Q1 – Q3 and 97% for Q4. This has been 
achieved through: 
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• Daily monitoring of risk 
assessment rates per ward via 
Real-time, and reminders emailed 
to ward areas. 

• Support provided to individual 
wards where required to facilitate 
measures to increase risk 
assessment rates. 

• Communication and promotion of 
the clinical rational behind the 
target through engagement with 
teams and provision of training. 

• The CQUIN also required the Trust 
to complete RCA on any HATs 
within two months of notification. 
To enable the Trust to achieve this, 
the VTE Prevention Nurse leads 
the HAT identification process and 
oversees completion of the RCA’s 
within the required timescale. 

The chart below shows the percentage of 
patients risk assessed by month for 
2013/14, and demonstrates that we met 
the CQUIN target throughout the year. 

 

93.00%

94.00%

95.00%

96.00%

97.00%

98.00%

99.00%
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assessed 
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VTE Risk Assessment Rates 2013/2014

Trust Performance

Target

 

We also monitored hospital 
associated VTE. We set our target by 
using the baseline from the previous 
year, which was the first time 
performance of outcome in relation to 
a preventative measure, VTE 
assessment, was measured. Now that 
two years of measuring outcome has 
been completed it is clear that the 
original baseline was inaccurate due 

to minimal identification and reporting.  
Since implementing identification of 
hospital associated thrombosis via 
diagnostics in, we have seen an 
increase in the number of cases 
identified.  We are expecting to see a 
further increase during 2014/15, as a 
result of the improved identification 
process.  We identified 52 cases in 
2013/14. 
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Rebecca Bushby, our VTE specialist nurse 

 

 

(Left) Cecilia Chapman, Falls Nurse 
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Priority 7 – To improve the quality of nursing care  using 
indicators for pressure ulcers and falls  

 

Why was this selected as a priority?  

Two key areas of focus have been the 
prevention of hospital-acquired pressure 
ulcers and patient falls. The incidence of 
falls and hospital acquired pressure ulcers 
are considered to be good indicators of 
the quality of nursing care. 

 

As our patient population becomes 
increasingly elderly and vulnerable we 
want to ensure that we are continuously 
reviewing and improving our nursing are to 
meet the needs of our patients and 
promote their well-being. 

 

What did we do during 2013-14? 

•••• The Trust reviewed and 
updated the Policy for Pressure 
Ulcer Prevention & 
Management which included 
the update of the care plan and 
associated paperwork 

•••• The Trust recruited a Specialist 
Nurse Tissue Viability  

•••• The Trust hosted its’ annual 
“Stop the Pressure Conference” 
which was well attended  

•••• The Lead Nurse Tissue Viability 
conducted weekly face-to-face 
drop in training for wards 

•••• A new process whereby the 
Lead Nurse Tissue Viability 
meets with every in-patient with 
a pressure ulcer was introduced 

•••• The Lead Nurse Tissue Viability 
conducted a trend analysis and 
review of severe pressure 
ulcers with an external expert. 
The final report will be 
presented at a Trust Board 
meeting  

•••• During 2013/14 the Trust 
reviewed and updated the 

Patient Falls Policy, which 
includes a risk identification and 
intervention assessment form.  

•••• Two hundred ward staff have 
received face-to-face training 

•••• The Falls Lead Nurse provides 
on-going support to front-line 
staff  

•••• The Trust has invested in 
equipment including senior 
alarm and bleep system, one-
way glide sheet chairs and no 
slip socks and stockings     

•••• Falls data is monitored on an 
on-going basis with remedial 
actions put in-place where 
appropriate 

•••• Information leaflets and cards 
regarding falls prevention and 
management has been 
designed for ward staff 

 

 

 

 



 

87 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

How did we perform? 

• The Trust did not met any of the three targets 

• To reduce patient falls (total falls) target 700. The Trust’s year end position for 

2013/14 was 721 

• To reduce patient falls resulting in harm (grade 3 and above) target <15. The Trust’s 

year end position for 2013/14 was 21 

• To reduce hospital-acquired pressure ulcers (stage 2 and above) target <139. The 

trust’s year end position for 2013/14 was 141  

 

Comment 

Moving forward, the Trust will ensure 2013/14 improvements are fully implemented & built 
upon and a multi-disciplinary team approach is adopted to prevent and reduce falls. We 
continue to closely monitor all patients to prevent the development of pressure ulcers and 
falls. 

 

 

 

Stop the Pressure Conference in October 2013 
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Priority 8 – Improving the care of patients with di abetes and 
reducing their length of stay 

____________________________________________________________________  

Why was this selected as a priority? 

Diabetes is a common life-long health 
condition. There are 3 million people 
diagnosed with diabetes in the UK and an 
estimated 850,000 people who have the 
condition but don’t know it. Diabetes is a 
condition where the amount of glucose in 
your blood is too high because the body 
cannot use it properly. This is because 
your pancreas does not produce any 
insulin, or not enough, to help glucose 
enter your body’s cells – or the insulin that 
is produced does not work properly 
(known as insulin resistance). 

We have a growing number of patients 
who come in to hospital with diabetes and 
know that we can improve their care and 
response to treatment by ensuring they 
have staff who are well trained to help 
monitor and control their condition. A 
better outcome for our patients will mean a 
shorter length of stay in hospital. 

 

What did we do? 

• The Diabetes Team implemented 
the Think Glucose programme 
which helps to improve care of 
patients with known diabetes. This 
programme included development 
of a new assessment form, which 
included a traffic light system, to 
help with appropriate referrals and 
planning discharge. 

• Production of new inpatient leaflet 
given to patients on pre 
assessment and throughout the  
hospital 

• Increased information about the 
ward food available for patients 
with diabetes 

• The Diabetes team produced a 
resource folder which have been 
disseminated to all wards within 
the Trust, found to be most value 
by ward staff  

• The Diabetes team also provided 
vast amounts of specialist training 
for staff  

• The Trust implemented changes 
which have improved the patient 
experience that has been 
highlighted in the National 
Diabetes Inpatient Audit. 

• As part of a CQUIN and to help 
identify those patients who have 
not yet been diagnosed with 
diabetes and to enable faster 
diagnosis and quicker 
intervention. 

• All patients are to have a capillary 
blood glucose test within 24 hours 
of admission. If found to be raised 
a further blood test should be 
carried out. This result will be 
cascaded via a pathway back to 
the patients GP to allow follow up 
management 
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How did we perform? 

In March 2014, audit results captured via the Safety Thermometer found that 98% of patient 
had capillary blood glucose testing within 24 hour of admission to hospital. 

Comment 

Continuous improvement work including the Think Glucose programme has been 
implemented to improve appropriate referrals to the Diabetes team. This good work will 
continue into 2014/15. 

 

Priority 9 – To reduce the hospital emergency and e lective re-
admission rate   

____________________________________________________________________  

Why was this selected as a priority? 

It is important for patients to have the most 
effective care that leads to discharge in a 
timely and safe manner with the required 
support to avoid being readmitted back 
into hospital. Whilst some emergency 
readmissions are an unavoidable 

consequence of the original treatment, 
other could potentially be avoided by 
delivery of optimal treatment and careful 
planning and support. 

 

 

What did we do? 

• A Readmission Prevention Programme commenced in April 2013, this was 
sponsored by the Trust’s Medical Director  

• This programme consisted of four projects within the programme: respiratory, 
cardiology, frequent readmissions,  information, emergency – emergency  

o Emergency – emergency project: readmission risk stratification.  Risk 
assessed all emergency medical patients. (LACE tool) High risk score – 
basket of readmission prevention interventions 

� South East Coast Ambulance database 

� Contacted GP 

�  Calling patients 2 days following discharge 

� Teach- back technique – how we educated on their medication 
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How did we perform? 

Demonstrates actual 30 day readmission rate for all unplanned admissions following an 
unplanned episode, against the Quality (CQUIN) targets for 2013/14 

Comment 

Thirty day emergency readmissions were 
reduced over the first 3 quarters of the 
year to enable the Trust to meet targets 
for Q1, 2 and 3. 

Time is now required over the next year to 
embed and roll out to all areas of the Trust 

all the new readmission prevention 
interventions to try and ensure 
readmission levels remain static and do 
replicate the normal seasonal rise over the 
winter period.  
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Part 3 - Our Quality Improvement Priorities for 2014/15 

During the year we will continue to hold workshops with our stakeholders to review 
progress with priorities. All of our priorities will be monitored via our Quality Account 
Dashboard which is reported quarterly to Trust Board in the quality report (available 
on our website:   

http://www.ashfordstpeters.nhs.uk/about-us/about-the-trust/meetings-and-minutes)  

How our priorities were chosen 

During 2013/14 we held workshops with 
our stakeholders in July and October 
2013, February and April 2014 to review 
progress with our priorities for the year 
and recommend priorities for 2014/15. 
Trust staff leading on key improvement 
areas participated in detailed discussion 
of issues, actions and achievements. 
Stakeholder attendance included: 
Governors, Commissioners, Health 

Scrutiny Committee, patient 
representatives from our Patient Panel 
and members of the former Local 
Improvement Network and HealthWatch 
Surrey.    

The Trust also reviewed the emerging 
quality priority areas by considering the 
recommendations from the Francis 
report. The following priorities have been 
endorsed by the Trust Board.  
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Patient Experience 

Priority 1 – To improve the care of patients with 
dementia and support carers  

 

2014/15 improvement work will include:   

•••• The Trust has commissioned a 
study whereby the Patient 
Association will seek to source 
carers’ experience  

•••• Within our Acute and Medicine 
Division, two wards will focus on 
stroke and elderly care   

•••• A dementia strategy will be 
implemented to strengthen 
dementia awareness to all staff 

•••• Carer support will significantly be 
increased through education for 
ward staff, information for carers 
as well as other initiatives  

•••• Improved collaboration with 
external stakeholders through 
representation and involvement 
of local implementation groups 
and Dementia Partnership 
Boards. 

•••• Following feedback from a 
themed CQC Dementia 
inspection, the Trust will seek to 
make improvements 

•••• A focused training programme 
will be implemented during 
2014/15   

 

 

What will our targets be for 2014/15? 

We aim to achieve 90% for each of the 
below: 

1) The screening of all emergency 
patients admitted to hospital aged 
75 years and over for signs of 
dementia. 

 

2) Ensuring that Trust staff are 
appropriately trained to care for 
patients with dementia. 

3) Ensuring carers of people with 
dementia feel adequately 
supported. 

 

 

How will we measure our improvement? 

We will measure improvement through the Dementia CQUIN, which continues during 
2014/15. Performance will be monitored via CQUIN monitoring arrangements.  

  

 

 



 

93 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Priority 2 –  To provide safe, high quality discharge for patient s 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 

2014/15 improvement work will include:   

• The discharge team will 
continue to provide 
comprehensive support 
for staff to ensure safe, 
high quality discharge 

• The Senior Discharge 
Coordinator will attend 
the Nursing and 
Residential Homes forum 
meetings throughout the 
year  

• Work will commence to 
develop an Older Peoples 
Assessment Liaison and 
RADAR model  

• The Trust will seek to roll 
out its Early Discharge 
scheme, which is 
currently only 
implemented in 
Orthopaedics 

 

• A member of the 
discharge team will attend 
the Medworxx conference 
2014. 

• Ward liaison roles will be 
created to reduce delays 
in patient journeys. 
Remedial action will result 
in improving patient flow 
and reduce risks to 
patients with regards to 
prolonged stay in 
hospitals. 

• The improvement work 
from 2013/14 will 
continue and be built 
upon 

 

What will our targets be for 2014/15? 

1. Increase the proportion of 
patients discharged before 14:00 
hour.  

2. Increase electronic discharge 
summaries sent within 24 hours 
of discharge. We are currently 

running at 95% (however not 
consistently); the aim is to 
improve this rate to consistently 
meet 95%. 

 

 

How will we monitor and report our improvement? 

We will measure our improvement by monitoring our discharge and re-admission rates. 
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Priority 3 – To improve all aspects of communicatio n with patients  

__________________________________________________________________ 

 

2014/15 improvement work will include:    

• The Trust will undertake an in-depth 
review of our complaints process, in-
line with the recommendations of Ann 
Clwyd and Tricia Hart 

• We will obtain feedback from 
complainants about the experiences of 
the complaints process, which will 
enable us to improve our 
communication with them 

• We seek to introduce further 
initiatives to ensure patients and 
the public are central to improving 
quality improvement around 
communication, for example 
Secret Shopper experience 
feedback.  

 

 

How will we measure our improvement? 

Progress with improvements will be monitored by the Patient Panel, the Patient 
Experience Group of the Council of Governors and the Improving Patient Experience 
Programme Board with reports presented to the Trust Board. 

 

What will our targets be? 

1. A response rate for Q4 that is at least 20% for A%E and at least 30% for inpatients 

2. Promoter rates for the NHS Friends & Family test to be reported on individual areas as 
follows:  

a. In Inpatients a Friends & Family test score of >73 

b. In Maternity a Friends & Family test score of >73 

c. In Accident and Emergency a Friends & Family test score of >55 
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Safety 
 

Priority 4 – Improve the safety culture   

2014/15 improvement work will include:    

• A Trust-wide Patient Safety Culture 
survey (the Manchester Patient Safety 
Framework) will be undertaken to 
assess the patient safety culture 
amongst staff.   

• The Trust will continue to implement 
the Medical Leadership Development 
and Organisational Development 
programmes  

• We will continue to introduce new 
ways of working and best practice to 
improve patient safety 

What will our targets be? 

The Trust will implement the 
Manchester Patient Safety 
Framework (MaPSaF), which is a tool 
to help NHS organisations and 
healthcare teams assess their 
progress in developing a safety 
culture.  

1. By the end of Q3 the 
assessment will be 
completed. 

2. By the end of Q4 an 
improvement action plan will 
be developed  

 

How will we measure our improvement? 

In addition to reporting to stakeholders and the Trust Board, we will monitor progress 
through our Quality Improvement Discussions meetings and our Patient Experience 
Group of the Council of Governors.   
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Priority 5 Improving harm-free care as measured wit h the Safety 
Thermometer  

 

2014/15 improvement work will include:    

We will continue to collect and closely monitor safety thermometer data.  

 

How will we measure our improvement? 

The Trust will continue to closely monitor data through varies forums. 

What will our targets be? 

• To maintain Safety Thermometer Performance better than (i.e. demonstrating a 
lower rate than) the national average. 

 

 

Priority 6 – To provide effective risk assessment a nd 
prophylaxis for ‘hospital acquired thrombus’ (HAT) 

____________________________________________________________________ 

2014/15 improvement work will include:   

• Introduction of Intermittent 
Pneumatic Compression (IPC) 
for Stroke Patients  

There is a new body of evidence 
suggesting that IPC is an effective 
method of reducing VTE in a 
variety of patients who are 
immobile after stroke.  This is 
significant as thromboprophylaxis 
is predominantly contraindicated in 
this cohort of patients.  The VTE 
Prevention Specialist Nurse will 
design and lead an implementation 
programme.  The aim is to reduce 
avoidable harm from preventable 
HAT and improve outcomes in this 
group of patients.  

 

• Development of Competencies 
and Care plans 

The VTE Prevention Nurse 
Specialist will launch VTE specific 
competencies in conjunction with 
the practice development team. 
The purpose of the competencies 
is to provide a framework for the 
transfer of theoretical knowledge 
into practice. To ensure practice 
remains evidenced based and 
current, a programme of 
revalidation has been introduced. 

 

• Development of Patient 
Information App 

Current guidance recommends 
that patients should be offered 
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verbal and written information on 
VTE Prevention as part of the 
admission and discharge process.  
The Trust issues patients with a 
VTE Prevention leaflet containing 
admission and discharge 
information, we have 
acknowledged that this form of 

communication does not suit all 
groups of patients.  Therefore the 
VTE Prevention Specialist Nurse in 
conjunction with the 
communications team will be 
exploring a patient information 
smart phone app. 

 

 

What will our targets be? 

1. We will aim to VTE risk assess 97% of patients on admission 

2. We will carry out Route Cause Analysis of 100% of identified cases of Hospital 
Associated Thrombosis 

3. The prescribing of appropriate thromboprophylaxis (chemical) will be monitored via 
monthly audit, with the aim of achieving 80% 

 

 

Our VTE Study Day for staff, Spring 2014
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Clinical effectiveness: 

 

Priority 7 – To improve the quality of care and cli nical 
outcomes of patients with Sepsis  *NEW* 

 

This is a new priority and one that is in line 
with one of the objectives within the 
Trust’s Quality, Safety and Risk 
Management Strategy 2012 -2017 around 
improving timely and effective treatment.  
The priority will be focused around 
ensuring we deliver timely and effective 
treatment of Sepsis.  

 

A new local CQUIN for 2014/15 is to 
increase compliance with the severe 
sepsis bundle for patient identified as 
having severe sepsis.  

2014/15 improvement work will include:   

Ensuring quick and accurate identification 
of sepsis and initiating the sepsis-six 
bundle within one hour of the diagnosis 
can reduce mortality and improve patient 
outcomes. 

 

The Sepsis Six consists of three 
diagnostic and three therapeutic steps – 
all to be delivered within one hour of the 
initial diagnosis of sepsis. 

1) Deliver high-flow oxygen 

2) Take blood cultures 

3) Administer empiric intravenous 
antibiotics 

4) Measure serum lactate and send 
full blood count 

5) Start intravenous fluid resuscitation 

6) Commence accurate urine output 
measurement. 

 

 

What will our targets be? 

The CQUIN target for 2014/15 is to increase compliance with the sepsis bundle within one 
hour of diagnosis in A&E. In Q4 the Trust must achieve 90% compliance with the Sepsis 
Bundle for patients identified as having severe sepsis. 
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Priority 8 – Improving the care of patients with di abetes and 
reducing their length of stay 

2014/15 improvement work will include: 

• Continued teaching to all 
members of staff about 
diabetes to improve their care 
about in-patents with diabetes 

• Further specialised training for 
insulin pumps 

• A drive improve incident 
reporting relating to diabetes to 
identify areas needing 
improvement 

• Continued training for our 
Diabetes Specialist nurses 

How will we measure our improvement? 

We will measure our improvement using 
the Safety Thermometer process to test 
how many patients had capillary blood 

glucose testing within 24 hour of 
admission to hospital.  

 

What will our target be?  

To increase the population of patients admitted who are screened for diabetes.  Performance to 
remain at 98%.

 

Priority 9 – To reduce the hospital emergency and e lective re-
admission rate 

2014/15 improvement work will include: 

• Automating the LACE score to 
enable every patient admitted 
to the Trust to be assessed for 
readmission risk 

• Continuation of the teachback 
technique and roll out to more 
specialties 

• Continuation and further training of 
the Ambulance readmission 
prevention tool  

 

• Reviewing all the readmission 
prevention initiatives to ascertain 
those that were successful in 
actually reducing the incidences of 
patients returning to hospital, with 
a view to rolling out ‘more of the 
same’ 

• Introduction of an initiative 
whereby, in-line with the LACE 
score, all patients are contacted 
post-discharge 

 

What will our target be?  

Improve emergency 30 day readmissions below the 2013/14 performance. The Trust 
achieved 12.4%, for March 2014.  
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Statements of Assurance
These statements of assurance 
follow the statutory requirements for 
the presentation of Quality Account, 
as set out in the Department of 
Health’s Quality Account 
regulations. 

Between April 2013 and March 2014 
Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust provided and/or 
subcontracted 597 services.  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust has reviewed all the 
data available to them on the quality of 
care. 

The income generated by the NHS 
services reviewed in 2013/2014 
represents 100% of the total income 
generated from the provision of NHS 
services by Ashford and St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for 
2013/2014. 

Participation in clinical audit and review

Clinical audit is a simple tool to review 
clinical practice against best evidence 
standards identifying actions to 
improve the quality of patient care and 
treatment. 

National confidential enquiry is a 
form of national clinical audit 
looking at potentially avoidable 
factors associated with poor 
outcomes for patients. 

During 2013/14, 41 national clinical 
audits and 7 national confidential 
enquiries covered NHS services that 
Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust provides. 

During 2013/14 Ashford and St 
Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust participated in 88%1 of the 
national clinical audits and 100% 
national confidential enquiries of the 
national clinical audits and national 
confidential enquiries in which it was 
eligible to participate.  

                                                           
1 We await confirmation of participation for four 
national audits.  

The national clinical audits and national 
confidential enquiries that Ashford and 
St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust was eligible to participate in 
during 2013/2014 and those that the 
Trust participated in are identified in the 
tables below. 

These tables also contain details of the 
number of cases submitted to each audit 
or enquiry as a percentage of the 
number of registered cases required 
by the terms of that audit or enquiry. 

It can be seen from the following 
evidence that the Trust is undertaking 
national audits relevant to its services. 
We also have an active programme of 
local audits to support improvements in 
the quality of patient care. 



 

101 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Table 1: National Clinical Audits – continuous with no planned end date 

Topic                      Eligible    Participated  
%Submitted                

Neonatal intensive and special care (NNAP2, (RCPCH3) Yes Yes 100% 

National Paediatric Diabetes Audit, (RCPCH) Yes Yes 100% 

Adult critical care, Case Mix Programme (ICNARC4) Yes Yes 100% 

National Adult Diabetes Audit Yes Yes 100% 

Hip, knee and ankle replacements (National Joint Registry) Yes Yes 82% 

National Elective Surgery PROMs5: Hip Replacements Yes Yes 70% 

National Elective Surgery PROMs: Knee Replacements Yes Yes 84.3% 

National Elective Surgery PROMs: Groin Hernias Yes Yes 40.5% 

National Elective Surgery PROMs: Varicose Veins Yes Yes 13% 

Coronary angioplasty (NICOR6 adult cardiac interventions) Yes Yes 100% 

Cardiac rhythm management (NICOR) Yes Yes 100% 

Acute Myocardial Infarction & other ACS (NICOR, MINAP) Yes Yes 100% 

STEMI (ST Elevated MI)    

National Heart failure Audit (NICOR) Yes Yes 103.5%7 

Peripheral vascular surgery (VSGBI8 Surgery Database) Yes Yes TBC 

Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme (SSNAP) Yes Yes 100% 

National hip fracture database9 Yes Yes 107.6% 

                                                           
2 NNAP - National neonatal audit programme  
3 RCPCH – Royal College of Paediatrics & Child Health, http://www.rcpch.ac.uk/ 
4 ICNARC – Intensive Care National Audit & Research Centre, https://www.icnarc.org/  
5 PROMs: Participation from April 2012 to March 2013; publications are provisional until the data set 

is declared finalised, http://www.hscic.gov.uk/proms  
6 NICOR – National Institute for Cardiovascular Outcomes Research, NICOR collects data and 

produces analysis to enable hospitals and healthcare improvement bodies to monitor and improve 
the quality of care and outcomes of cardiovascular patients. NICOR manages six national clinical 
audits and a number of New Technology registries, http://www.ucl.ac.uk/nicor  

7 For participation rates above 100% this shows a discrepancy between the cases we have included 
in the audit and the numbers of cases identified within our computer systems (HES – hospital 
episode statistics) and so have submitted more cases than were expected. 

8 VSGBI – Vascular Society of Great Britain and Ireland, http://www.vascularsociety.org.uk/  
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Anaesthesia Sprint Audit of Practice7 Yes Yes 44% 

National Bariatric Surgery Registry Yes Yes 100% 

Severe trauma (Trauma Audit & Research Network) Yes Yes TBC 

Lung cancer (National Lung Cancer Audit) Yes Yes 100% 

National Bowel Cancer Audit Programme Yes Yes 95% 

National Oesophago-Gastric cancer10 Yes Yes N/A 

Head & neck cancer (DAHNO)8 Yes Yes N/A 

National Emergency Laparotomy Audit (NELA)11 Yes Yes TBC 

Pulmonary hypertension Audit12 Yes N/A N/A 

Renal replacement therapy (Renal Registry)13 Yes N/A N/A 

Paediatric intensive care (PICANet) No N/A N/A 

Paediatric cardiac surgery (NICOR) No N/A N/A 

Adult cardiac surgery audit (NICOR) No N/A N/A 

Notes: 

TBC (to be confirmed) - data submitted but participation rates not confirmed.  For some 
submissions, reports are not yet available; we consider that we have identified all eligible patients. 

                                                                                                                                                                                     
9 Part of the Falls and Fragility Fracture Audit Programme, http://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/falls-

and-fragility-fracture-audit-programme-fffap-2013   
10Oesophago-gastric cancer (http://www.hscic.gov.uk/og)  and DAHNO (Data for Head and Neck 

Oncology, http://www.hscic.gov.uk/headandneck) data are submitted jointly through the Royal 
Surrey County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. 

11 NELA data entry commenced in January 2014, http://www.nela.org.uk/  
12 Trust patients will be included in this audit via designated Pulmonary Hypertension Services in 

London hospitals 
13 ASPH patients are included in submissions via the renal unit at Epsom & St. Helier University 

Hospitals NHS Trust 
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Table 2: National Clinical Audits – intermittent (samples recruited according to time period or 
sample size; one-off, with no plan to repeat patient recruitment in the future) 

Topic                                                                                                 Eligible Participated %submitted 

National Inpatient Diabetes Audit Yes Yes TBC 

National Pregnancy in Diabetes Audit14 Yes Yes TBC 

National Paediatric Epilepsy Audit (RCPCH, Epilepsy 12 ) Yes Yes TBC 

Asthma in Children (College of Emergency Medicine15) Yes Yes TBC 

Severe sepsis and severe shock (CEM)  Yes Yes TBC 

Paracetamol overdose (CEM) Yes Yes TBC 

Paediatric pneumonia (British Thoracic Society, BThSoc) Yes TBC TBC 

Paediatric asthma (BThSoc) Yes TBC TBC 

Emergency use of oxygen (BThSoc) Yes Yes 100% 

National Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD)16  Yes TBC TBC 

Paediatric bronchiectasis Yes TBC TBC 

Ulcerative colitis & Crohn’s disease (National IBD Audit)17 Yes No N/A 

Heavy Menstrual Bleeding Yes Yes 2.5% 

National Cardiac Arrest Audit Yes Yes TBC 

National Audit of Seizures in Hospitals (NASH) Yes Yes TBC 

National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion – patient 
information and consent prior to a blood transfusion 2014  

Yes Yes TBC 

Rheumatoid and early inflammatory arthritis18 Yes Yes TBC 

Prescribing in mental health services (POMH) No N/A N/A 

National Audit of Schizophrenia No N/A N/A 

                                                           
14 Results for the NPID audit will be available from August 2014, http://www.hscic.gov.uk/npid. 
15 The closing date for the 2013/14 audits was  extended to Monday 14 April 2014. 
16

 The national COPD secondary care audit opened in February 2014 with data collection until end of May 

2014, https://www.brit-thoracic.org.uk/.  
17 At the time we had no staff resource to participate, but have recruited a specialist nurse for IBD, 

https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/inflammatory-bowel-disease-audit.  
18 First report due June 2015, http://www.rheumatology.org.uk/.  
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Notes: TBC (to be confirmed) - data submitted but participation rates not confirmed. For some submissions, 
reports are not yet available; we consider that we have identified all eligible patients. 

 

Table 3: National Confidential Enquiries 

Topic                                                                                            Eligi ble Participated %submitted 
 

NCEPOD19 Lower Limb Amputation Yes Yes 94% 

NCEPOD Tracheostomy Care Yes Yes 56% 

NCEPOD Subarachnoid Haemorrhage  Yes Yes 100% 

NCEPOD Alcohol Related Liver Disease Yes Yes 100% 

Maternal Infant & Newborn Programme, MBRRACE Yes Yes TBC20 

Child Health Clinical Outcome Review Programme, CHR-UK Yes Yes TBC21 

National Review of Asthma Deaths Yes Yes N/A22 

CISH (suicide and homicide by people with mental illness)    No N/A  

 

                                                           
19 NCEPOD – National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death, http://www.ncepod.org.uk/.   
20 This study is still open and the figures have not been finalized, http://www.hqip.org.uk/maternal-

newborn-and-infant-programme/. 
21 This is a new programme, launched in 2012, http://www.rcpch.ac.uk/chr-uk . 
22 We fully participated; no cases for review were identified, the report will be launched on 6 May 2014  

http://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/national-review-asthma-deaths. 
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National and local clinical audits reviewed  

The reports of 19 national clinical audits were reviewed by Ashford and St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in 2013/2014 and as a result the Trust intends to take 
actions to improve quality of care. An outline of some of our improvement work is 
shown in the table below.  

National Audit Report  Areas of action / Comments  

CQC23 Intelligent Monitoring Report 

http://www.cqc.org.uk/  

The report reviews quality of care indicators including 
patient safety, effectiveness, care outcomes, and patient 
and staff experience. The report reviewed 92 applicable 
indicators and the Trust has maintained its band 6 ‘lowest 
risk’ grouping. Some possible risks have been identified 
covering staff turnover, support and supervision; plus a 
patient reported outcome measure regarding primary 
knee replacement. Senior management are reviewing 
these risks and implementing improvement plans. 

NHS Safety Thermometer 

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/thermometer  

Hospital associated harms (2.11%) remain below the 
national average (2.76%). Falls with harm have 
decreased since November 2013 and the incidence of 
catheter-associated urinary tract infections remains low. 
However, the incidence of hospital associated pressure 
ulcers has increased (1.73%) and is above the national 
average (1.11%). The corporate action plan for pressure 
ulcers is currently undergoing high level review led by the 
Trust Deputy Chief Nurse and the Trust Chief of Patient 
Safety. 

NCEPOD Subarachnoid 
Haemorrhage: Managing the Flow 
(2013) 

 

http://www.ncepod.org.uk/2013sah.ht
m  

The Trust is reviewing the recommendations actions 
include:  

• Annual training for GPs 
• Protocol in place for acute headache investigation 

and treatment 
• Improved communication between the neurology 

team and the care of the elderly team  to provide 
neuropsychological support for patients 

• Close working with referrals to St. George’s hospital 

                                                           
23 CQC - Care Quality Commission  
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NCEPOD Alcohol Related Liver 
Disease: Measuring the Units (2013) 

 

http://www.ncepod.org.uk/2013arld.ht
m  

The Trust is reviewing the recommendations actions 
underway include: 

Recruitment of a consultant and an alcohol liaison nurse 

• Development of hospital guidelines for alcohol-
related liver disease 

• Training / education of registrars and junior doctors 
• Development of a form to record alcohol history 
• Meeting with alcohol support services to enable 

improved communication on referrals and outcomes 
for documentation in hospital records and for 
communication to GPs 

National Hip Fracture Database 

 

http://www.nhfd.co.uk/  

Longest delays with surgery were occurring over 
weekends.  

 

• We introduced two half day weekend lists for surgery.  
• We reduced time to orthopaedic ward admission using 

a priority hip fracture bleep and improved access to air 
mattresses.  

• We instigated weekend physiotherapy and hip fracture 
exercise classes to improve mobilisation within 24 
hours of surgery. 

 

National Joint Registry 

http://www.njrcentre.org.uk/  

Data submission is improving and mortality and revision 
rates are low for both hips and knees. 

 

• Review of uncemented procedures with plans to 
increase the number of cemented procedures 

• Review and reduce the number of arthroscopies 
• Review prostheses to include ODEP24 rated for hips 

and evidence from NJR re best prostheses for knees 
• Review infection rates at every trauma meeting 
• Further develop partnership working with RSCH to 

strengthen delivery of complex procedures. 

                                                           
24 ODEP - Orthopaedic Data Evaluation Panel: http://www.odep.org.uk/  
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PROMs: hip and knee replacement, 
groin hernia and varicose vein 
operations.  

  http://www.hscic.gov.uk/proms  

  

2012-13 Practice is within the national range for groin 
hernia procedures; for hip and knee procedures we appear 
to be an outlier.  Note that these are experimental statistics 
and this data needs careful interpretation because patients 
with associated co-morbidities such as angina, or chronic 
obstructive airways disease may see no improvement in 
their overall general health score but will see an 
improvement in their local knee and hip scores.   

 

For varicose veins we submit too few patients therefore do 
not have a sufficient sample size to compare with other 
Trusts. This reduction in surgery for varicose veins follows 
the recommendation by our local commissioning body to 
offer treatment only to patients with more complex 
conditions.     

Adult critical care (Case Mix 
Programme) 

 

Reports are reviewed six monthly and our results are 
benchmarked with other units – we sit within the national 
ranges for this audit of our critical care patients.   

National Inpatient Diabetes Audit 

 

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/diabetesinpati
entaudit  

Work underway includes monthly monitoring of the 
completion of blood capillary glucose assessment, 
implementation of ‘ThinkGlucose,25’ a diabetic 
educational programme for clinical staff and training 
for all staff.   

NICOR 

 

http://www.ucl.ac.uk/nicor/audits  

 

http://www.bcis.org.uk/  

 

The Trust opened a £2.5 million cardiac unit in autumn 
2013.  

 

The aggregate report shows that we are above the 
national average for data completeness on key fields. Our 
success rate is in line with national figures and our 
emergency CABG and mortality rates are below the 
national average. 

 

Our data indicates that 100% patients with STEMI26 

                                                           
25 Think Glucose is an NHS Institute programme that delivers a clinical pathway that improves the 

management of inpatients with diabetes. 
26

 There are two types of heart attack, STEMI, for “ST-elevation myocardial infarction,” and nSTEMI, for “non-

ST-elevation myocardial infarction.” The names reflect differences in the ECG tracings, whether a portion of 

the ECG, the ST segment is elevated above baseline, or not. There are differences in the underlying cause 

of these two types of heart attack and in the initial treatment. 
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National Heart Failure Audit 

http://www.ucl.ac.uk/nicor/audits/heart
failure/documents/annualreports/hfann
ual12-13.pdf  

We are now submitting data regularly and achieving good 
participation rates. Actions include partnership working to 
improve referrals to the heart failure liaison service; 
improvement work is underway within the Enhancing 
Quality Programme.   

Peripheral vascular surgery (VSGBI 
Vascular Surgery Database) 

 

http://www.vascularsociety.org.uk/  

 

 

We are one of the best performing Trusts in the country 
for vascular surgery. We opened a new hybrid theatre to 
provide a much wider range of procedures and enable 
complicated vascular surgery to be done in a minimally 
invasive way. Procedures such as Abdominal Aortic 
Aneurysm (AAA) repairs can be carried out as key hole 
rather than open surgery, with real-time imaging 
equipment helping to guide surgical instruments through 
the blood vessels. 

National Neonatal Audit Programme 

http://www.rcpch.ac.uk/child-
health/standards-care/clinical-audit-
and-quality-improvement/national-
neonatal-audit-programme  

Generally, reports indicate good practice within our 
neonatal level three unit.  Actions include regular 
monitoring of data submission.  

 

 
National Bowel Cancer Audit 

 

http://www.hqip.org.uk/assets/NCAPO
P-Library/NCAPOP-2013-14/Bowel-
Cancer-Audit-Jul-2013-
MAINREPORT.pdf  

The Trust has good data submission and completeness; 
review is underway within the Surrey West Sussex & 
Hampshire network. Actions include increasing patients 
being reviewed by an MDT and being seen by a clinical 
nurse specialist. The Trust has implemented the 
Enhanced Recovery Programme for colorectal surgery 
since 2008.  

 National Head & Neck Cancer Audit 

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/headandneck  

 

National Audit of Oesophago-Gastric 
Cancer 

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/og  

 

Our consultants will be reviewing the data and outcomes 
in collaboration with the Royal Surrey County Hospital – 
we have joint submission of the data for these studies.   

                                                                                                                                                                                     
27 Blood pressure medications to lower high blood pressure.  
28 Anti-platelet drugs. 
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National Inpatient Survey 

 

http://www.cqc.org.uk/public/reports-
surveys-and-
reviews/surveys/inpatient-survey-2013 

Improvement work includes: 

Implementation of the NHS Friends & Family test (FFT) for 
inpatients, for A&E patients and for maternity patients.  

• Staff engagement and regular review of feedback from 
patients with actions targeting issues identified 

• Nursing ‘Best Care’ Programme to improve the provision 
of essential and specialist care with a focus on the 
vulnerable, elderly and those with dementia and at the 
end of life 

• Implementation of early supported discharge from T&O29 
with the supportive discharge team going into patient 
homes to continue their rehabilitation and care.   

• Increase in the discharge team to support improvements 
to the discharge process and support ward teams with 
‘complex’ discharges 

National Staff Survey 

 

http://www.nhsstaffsurveys.com  

The Trust’s top ranking scores (percentage of staff suffering 
stress, physical violence, harassment & reporting of 
incidents) appear to show that, on a day to day basis, staff 
feel secure in their work environment, are in control and able 
to meet their daily demands. However, the Trust’s bottom 
ranking scores (management support, harassment & 
bullying from staff, staff receiving training, job satisfaction, 
career progression) illustrate a perceived lack of support in 
their line manager relationships, work climate issues and 
their on-going job satisfaction & development.  

These results have been triangulated with: feedback from 
staff on a day to day basis, from the CEO30 Sounding Board, 
the interactive discussion wall (held on the internal website), 
internal staff surveys, reflections from the CQC inspection, 
and data from exit interviews.  

The Trust has developed and implemented a staff 
experience and culture programme in recognition of the 
need to set a refreshed ‘cultural tone’ for the Trust. This 
work has focused on 4 key priorities – citizenship, 
leadership, teamwork, employee experience. Other work 
includes:  

• NHS England implementation of the staff FFT on a 
quarterly basis 

• Leadership Academy Nursing and Midwifery   
Programme 

• 2014 Florence Nightingale Leadership Scholarships 

                                                           
29 T&O Trauma and Orthopaedics 
30 CEO Chief Executive Officer 
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Regional Programme - Enhanced 
Recovery Programme (ERP) 

 

http://www.nhs.uk/conditions/enhance
d-recovery/  

An independent regional expert peer review of our ERP 
- focussing on the surgical specialties of gynaecology, 
colorectal surgery, and hip and knee replacement found 
that the Trust demonstrated strong leadership and 
commitment to enhanced recovery and has made good 
progress. The Trust was commended for implementing a 
system to flag and capture intra-operative fluid 
management usage, which is part of the national high 
impact innovation agenda.  

Regional Programme - Enhancing 
Quality 

 

http://www.enhancingqualitycollaborati
ve.nhs.uk/  

The latest month audited is November 2013 as regional 
reporting is routinely in arrears. Heart Failure improved 
significantly in November and exceeded expectation. 
Pneumonia continues to score below the improvement 
level set by the region. Dementia is a single measure 
but performance is below expectations. An effective 
improvement is proving complex with very few patients 
in the pathway eligible for the medication review 
measure. 

The Trust will continue to seek to improve through 
networking with other Trusts in the region to establish 
best practice. 

  

The reports of more than 80 local clinical audits and 10 completed / continuous patient 
surveys were reviewed by Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in 
2013/2014 and actions have been taken to improve the quality of healthcare provided. 
Note that it is difficult to provide an accurate number of local audits as some audits 
occur on a regular basis therefore the clinical audit activity is high e.g.:

•••• Monthly morbidity and mortality 
reviews 

•••• Monthly infection control audits 
and surgical site infection audits 

•••• Monthly and quarterly ongoing 
series of maternity audits 

•••• Monthly nursing “Best Care” 
audits across every ward and 
outpatients, day surgery, theatres 
and A&E. A total of 34 areas 
undertake a detailed audit of the 
quality of patient care each 
month.   

•••• Monthly Safety Thermometer 
Census looking at patient care 
relating to pressure ulcers, 

catheter associated urinary tract 
infections, patient falls and 
venous thromboembolism  

•••• Monthly audit of nutrition 
assessment (Malnutrition 
Universal Screening Tool) 

•••• Monthly audit of blood glucose 
monitoring  

•••• Pharmacy quarterly audits of 
antibiotic prescribing 

•••• Audits of compliance with Care 
Quality Commission standards of 
practice and care 

•••• Audits of compliance with the 
Blood Transfusion Policy 



 

111 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

•••• Trust-wide audits of health 
records documentation and audits 

of the consent process.  
 

 

Results from clinical audits were presented within specialties and included in various 
reports e.g. to the Clinical Effectiveness and National Audit Review Group, Quality 
Governance Committee,  Trust Board.  Learning from audits is shared across departments 
during educational meetings.  All issues which were considered to be urgent were 
addressed by the areas immediately and progress reported directly to the Quality 
Governance Committee. 

   Some common areas of action and improvement work:  

Releasing Time to Care – the 
Productive Ward focuses on improving 
ward processes and the environment to 
provide more time for patient care by 
nurses and therapists.  The Trust 
received an National Award from the 
Lean Academy for work in this area. 

•••• The Trust held an ‘action week’ 
called Spring to Green from 17– 
23 March, aimed at ‘resetting’ our 
hospitals, unblocking unnecessary 
delays and making sure patients 
get the best possible care when 
they need it. This involved all staff 
trying new ways of working to 
improve patient care, progress 
discharge and provide a better 
understanding of where delays 
occur and how they can be 
avoided. All non-critical meetings 
were cancelled and efforts 
focused on front-line clinical care 
including twice daily consultant-
led ward rounds. Following on 
from this work a range of actions 
are underway: 'No meeting 
Mondays', ward liaison officer 
roles with a rota for Pharmacy 
runners, a 7 day/week command 
centre for patient escalation, 
bleeps for Therapies and Imaging 
services.  

•••• Schwartz Centre Rounds31, 
inspired by Boston Healthcare 
Attorney Kenneth Schwartz, are a 
forum for hospital staff from all 
backgrounds to come together to 
talk about the emotional and 
social challenges of caring for 
patients. An example is "Meeting 
with relatives after something 
goes wrong: Perspectives from 
two senior executives.” 

•••• Partnership work with The Royal 
Surrey County Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust with a number of 
projects focused on the continued 
development of specialist services 
in Surrey, a prime focus is on 
renal and cancer services. As an 
example, we have recently 
introduced a chemotherapy 
service to Ashford Hospital run 
jointly with The Royal Surrey. 

•••• Review and updating of specialty 
specific patient information 
leaflets.  

•••• Unannounced ‘mock’ inspections of 
wards and departments by senior 
management at various times 
during the day and night and 
random spot checks with feedback 
provided to areas and staff at the 
time and later in reports.  

                                                           
31 http://www.theschwartzcenter.org/  
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•••• Review and updates to policies, 
procedures and guidelines 
including review and development 
of proforma to support data 
capture and assist review of 
patient care.   

•••• Development and implementation 
of a framework for our Nursing 
and Midwifery Strategy 'Together 
we Care.' 

•••• Implementation of OPAL (Older 
Person’s Assessment and Liaison 
Team) a dedicated resource to 
support the hospital's frail elderly 
patients; it is a multidisciplinary 
team with the skills to provide a 
comprehensive geriatric 
assessment and develop an 
individual care plan for these 
patients. The core team consists of 
an OPAL nurse, therapist and 
geriatrician, with support from a 
pharmacist and dietician. 

•••• Staff training and educational 
events including: Nutrition & 
Hydration week, Surrey Stroke 
Specialist Nurse's Stroke 
Education Day, Stop the Pressure 
Conference (pressure ulcers), 
Therapies Showcase Day, 
Dementia Study Day, 
Osteoporosis Study Session for 
GPs and health professionals, 
Bariatrics Complex Handling 
Workshops, Prevention of Falls 
Training Day, the Older Person’s 
Study Day, HIV32 Testing Week, 
Stoma Care Open Day, Pride in 
Nursing & Midwifery Day, VTE33 
Study Day.  

                                                           
32 HIV Human Immunodeficiency Virus 
33 VTE venous thromboembolism 
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Participation in clinical research  
Research enables NHS organisations to 
improve the current and future health of 
their patients and the wealth of the nation.  
Patients have a right to participate in 
research studies, to have access to drugs 
and interventions which are not available 
on the National Health Service.  It is well 
established that patients who participate in 
clinical research have better health 
outcomes.  Research provides the 
knowledge and evidence for our practice 
and treatments. 

The number of patients recruited to clinical 
research has steadily increased over the last 
five years at Ashford and St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (ASPH).  
In 2009/10 ASPH recruited 215 patients, in 
2010/11 we recruited 556 patients, in 
2011/12 this figure rose to 683, but 
dropped a bit in 2012/13 to 508, but has 
substantially improved again for the last 
year, 2013/14, recruiting more than 1,400 
patients into a wide range of clinical 
studies.  

The key priorities of our Research & Development strategy are to:  

• Offer patients opportunitiy to participate in clinical research and increase patient 
recuitment year on year.  Thus enhancing ASPH as a hospital of choice for patients: 

• Increase the quality and value of research within the Trust;  

• Enhance research capacity and capability;  

• Translate research findings into benefits for patients and the Trust;  

• Strengthen Trust partnership with academia and industry. 
 

Clinical research across the Trust is varied and diverse.  Our aim is to have a variety of studies 
within all our four Divisions (see below).  We aim to have both complex interventional studies, 
which can directly influence our treatments, plus observational studies, which expand our 
knowledge of disease processes. 

Currently we have research studies (approximately 90 altogether) in the following Divisions and 
Specialities, a few examples are listed below :  

Surgery 

• Surgery: HUbBle - A multi-centre 
randomised controlled trial 
comparing rubber band ligation 
with haemorrhoidal artery ligation 
in the management of symptomatic 
second and third degree 
haemorrhoids. 

• Opthalmology: Osmolarity 
Prevalance Study - Tear 

Osmolality Prevalence in NHS 
Ophthalmology Clinics 

• Oncology:  ARISTOLE - A phase 
III trial comparing standard versus 
novel CRT as pre-operative 
treatment for MRI defined locally 
advanced rectal cancer 
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Medicine 

• Stroke: BMET - The Brief Memory 
and Executive Test - BMET - A 
multi-centre evaluation of a 
screening tool for vascular 
cognitive impairment 

• Cardiology Pacing: Respond - 
Clinical Trial of the SonRtip Lead 
and Automatic AV-VV optimization 
Algorithm in the PARADYM RF 
SonR CRT-D 

• Cardiology Drug: Odyssey 
Outcome - A Randomized, Double-
Blind, Placebo-Controlled, Parallel-
Group Study to Evaluate the effect 
of SAR236553/REGN727 on the 
Occurrence of Cardiovascular 
Events in Patients Who Have 
Recently Experienced an Acute 
Coronary Syndrome 

• Neurology: ProBand - Parkinson’s 
Repository of Bio samples and 
Networked Datasets 

• Respiratory:  Janssen - A Phase 
2a, Randomized, Double-Blind, 
Placebo-Controlled, Multicentre, 
Parallel Group Study of JNJ-
38518168 in Symptomatic Adult 
Subjects with Uncontrolled, 
Persistent Asthma 

• Rheumatology: RAFT - Reducing 
Arthritis Fatigue - clinical teams using 
cognitive behavioural approaches 

• Endocrinology: ADDRESS-2 - An 
incident and high risk type 1 
diabetes cohort - After Diagnosis 
Diabetes Research Support 
System-2 

 

Womens’ Service’s 

• Infectious Diseases: UK CHIC - 
The clinical outcomes, response to 
treatment and epidemic dynamics 
of HIV-1 in the UK: continued 
follow-up of the UK Collaborative 
HIV Cohort (CHIC) Study and the 
UK HIV Drug Resistance Database 
(UK HDRD) 

• Early Birth: TABLET - A 
Randomised Controlled Trial of the 
Efficacy and Mechanism of 
Levothyroxine Treatment on 
Pregnancy and Neonatal 
Outcomes in Women with Thyroid 
Antibodies 

• Neonatal: Marble - Magnetic 
Resonance Biomarkers in 

Neonatal Encephalopathy A 
Prospective Multi-Country 
Observational Study 

• Obs & Gynae: Femme - A 
randomised trial of treating fibroids 
with either Embolisation or 
Myomectomy to measure the effect 
on quality of life, among women 
wishing to avoid hysterectomy 

• Paediatrics: PREDNOS – Long 
term tapering versus standard 
prednisolone (steroid) therapy for 
the treatment of the initial episode 
of childhood nephrotic syndrome: 
national multicentre randomised 
double blind trial 

 

Therapies 

• Dignity - UK Inpatient Survey to 
Evaluate the Validity and Reliability 

of an international Patient Dignity 
Scale (iPDS) 
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Care Quality Commission (CQC) Registration, routine  inspections 
and Intelligent Monitoring Reports 

The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against Ashford and 
St. Peter’s NHS Foundation Trust during 2013/14.  

Ashford and St. Peter’s NHS Foundation Trust has not participated in any special reviews or    
investigations by the Care Quality Commission during the reporting period. 

 

Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) pa yment 
framework  

Commissioning for Quality and Innovation, otherwise known as the CQUIN payment 
framework, is a National programme introduced in 2009 by the Department of Health. It was 
announced as part of the package of measured contained in the Darzi Review, High Quality 
Care for All. 
 
CQUIN is a quality improvement scheme which links a proportion of the hospitals income to 
the achievement of certain quality outcomes and improvement goals. It is a national 
programme for all healthcare providers, with both nationally determined and locally agreed 
improvement goals. 
 
CQUIN aims to drive quality improvement through incentivising and rewarding excellence. 
Payments are used to deliver real benefits for patients and improvement quality. 
 
For 2013/14 the Trust CQUIN programme was worth 2.5% of the hospital contract, this is 
approximately £5m of the Trust’s income. The CQUIN programme is monitored through the 
Trusts Programme Management Office (PMO), with progress and achievements reported to 
the Trust Executive Committee monthly. 
 
 
Prequalificationise 

New for 2013/14, the Trust was required to ‘qualify’ for the CQUIN programme by developing 
plans demonstrating their commitment to delivering innovations during the year as set out in 
Innovation Health and Wealth, Accelerating Adoption and Diffusion in the NHS (Department 
of Health, 2011). During 2013/14 the Trust focused on the following innovations; 

•••• Intra-operative Fluid Management (IOFM) - implementation of new innovative 
technology which enables the monitoring of a patients fluid levels during surgery for 
high risk procedures. 

 

•••• Digital First - increasing the use of digital technology to reduce the need for 
inappropriate face-to-face contacts. 
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•••• Carers for People with Dementia - ensuring carers for people with dementia are 
signposted to relevant advice and information. 

 

National CQUIN Goals 

There were four national goals set by the Department of Health and the NHS Commissioning 
Board. The National goals reflect areas where there is widespread need for improvement 
across the NHS. This enables the collection of national data, sharing of best practice and 
benchmarking. 

 

•••• Friends and Family Test - to improve the experience of patients though use of timely, 
granular feedback from patients about their experience.  

•••• NHS Safety Thermometer - to reduce harm. The Safety Thermometer allows frontline 
teams to measure how safe their services are and to deliver improvement locally. 

•••• Dementia - to incentivise the identification of patients with dementia and other causes 
of cognitive impairment alongside their other medical conditions, to prompt 
appropriate referral and follow up after they leave hospital and to ensure that 
hospitals deliver high quality care to people with dementia and support their carers. 

•••• Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) - to reduce avoidable death, disability and chronic 
ill health from venous thromboembolism (VTE). 

 

Local CQUIN Goals 

A number of local CQUIN goals were set in partnership with North West Surrey CCG. 

•••• Supporting Effective Discharge - to improve the quality and safety of the patient 
experience by effective discharge practice. 

•••• Reduction in Emergency Re-admissions - to prevent unnecessary re-admissions by 
ensuring optimal care for patients in the acute setting and on discharge.  

•••• End of Life Care - enabling people to die in a place of their choosing requires 
individuals and their families to be involved in decision making and planning for the 
end of life and for appropriate community based support. 

•••• Improved outcomes for people with Diabetes - to improve clinical outcomes for 
acutely unwell diabetics. Increased awareness and understanding of caring for 
people with diabetes through compliance with “Think Glucose” guidance. 

•••• Oral Nutritional Supplements - to support improvement in nutritional support provided 
to patients. 

 

Specialised Commissioning CQUIN Goals 

NHS England commission specialised services and set CQUIN goals relating to the 
specialised services provided at the hospital. 
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•••• Neonatal Intensive Care – Retinopathy of Prematurity Screening - to achieve an 
increase in screening of babies for retinopathy of prematurity. 

•••• Neonatal Intensive Care – Total Parenteral Nutrition - inadequate nutrition in the first 
weeks of life of premature infants results in growth failure that is often difficult to 
correct and may lead to permanent detrimental effects. 

 

Performance 

The Trust is expected to achieve 82% of the CQUIN goals in 2013/14. This is an increase on 
2012/13 performance. 

For further details of the 2013/14 CQUIN programme, along with details of the 2012/13 
CQUIN results and the goals for the coming year, please see the Trust website 
http://www.ashfordstpeters.nhs.uk/quality/cquin  

 

Data Quality  

Good quality information is very important in underpinning the effective delivery of the best 
patient care.  

Ashford & St Peter's Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during 2013/14 to the 
Secondary Uses service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included in the 
latest published data. Details for the percentage of records in the published data are shown in the 
table below and compared with 2012/13:  

 

Information governance assessment 

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Information Governance Toolkit 
Score for 2013/14 was 70% and was graded green. 

Clinical coding 

Clinical coders translate the medical terminology written by clinicians into a standard 
(international) code to describe a patient’s diagnosis and treatment. The accuracy of this 
coding is a fundamental indicator of the accuracy of the patient records and also contributes 
to costing and monitoring hospital activity and performance. 

  2012/13 2013/14 

  Inpatients A&E Outpatients Inpatients A&E Outpatients 

General Practitioner Registration 
Code  99.8% 99.7% 99.7% 99.8% 99.5% 99.6% 

NHS Number 98.9% 95.1% 98.3% 99.4% 97.6% 99.1% 
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For 2013-14 Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was not subject to the 
external Payment by Results clinical coding audit. 

The quality of coded data is internally monitored through Information Governance (IG) 
Clinical Coding Audits. Accuracy figures for the 2013/14 IG audit showed a level 2 score.  

The results should not be extrapolated further than the actual sample audited. 

 October 2013  

Primary diagnosis correct 96.00% 

Secondary diagnoses correct 95.92% 

Primary procedure correct 94.00% 

Secondary procedures correct 85.34% 

 

An internal PbR audit was also carried out for January 2014 inpatient admitted patient care, 
with the following accuracy figures: 

 January 2014  

Primary diagnosis correct 88.50% 

Secondary diagnoses correct 97.30% 

Primary procedure correct 97.00% 

Secondary procedures correct 99.30% 

 

Financial analysis   % 

Pre-audit sample price £251,369  

Post-audit sample price £258,245  

Price of gross change £10,100 4.0 

Price of net change £6,876 2.7 

Number of FCE with HRG change 14 7.0 

Number of spells with HRG change 11 6.8 

 

The potential underpayment to the Trust has been resolved as all identified errors have been 
rectified on Trust system prior to monthly reporting and claims management submission date 
for January 2014 
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National Quality Board Core Quality Indicators 2012 /13 
In 2009, the Department of Health 
established the National Quality Board 
(NQB) bringing the Department of Health, 
the Care Quality Commission (CQC), 
Monitor, the National Institute for Health 
and Clinical Excellence (NICE) and the 
National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) 
together to look at the risks and 
opportunities for quality and safety across 
the whole health system. 

The National Quality Board has 
recommended mandatory reporting of the 
following core set of quality indicators 
which closely align with the NHS Outcomes 
Framework. The data is available from the 
Health and Social Care Information Centre 
(http://www.hscic.gov.uk/searchcatalogue). 

 

 

Domain 1: Preventing people from dying prematurely  

Domain 2: Enhancing quality of life for people with  long-term conditions   

1. Summary hospital-level mortality indicator (SHMI )    

The SHMI gives an indication for each hospital trust in England whether the observed 
number of deaths within 30 days of discharge from hospital was ‘higher than expected’, 
‘lower than expected’ or ‘as expected’ when compared to the national baseline.  

Depending on the SHMI value, trusts are banded between 1 and 3 to indicate whether their 
SHMI is low (3), average (2) or high (1) compared to other trusts. (Banding is shown in 
brackets in the table below).  

How did we perform?  The data in the table below are for two periods: July 2012 to June 
2013 and Oct 2012 to Sept 2013 

 

                                                           
34 Palliative Care Indicator - This is an indicator designed to accompany the SHMI. The SHMI makes 
no adjustments for palliative care. This indicator gives a measure of the deaths occurring under 
palliative care conditions for each provider reported in the SHMI. 

  
SHMI value 

Palliative Care 34 Rate 
(%) 

Deaths in hospital 
(%) 

Deaths out of hospital 
(%) 

Period July 2012 
to June 

2013 

Oct 2012 
to Sept 

2013 

July 2012 
to June 

2013 

Oct 2012 
to Sept 

2013 

July 2012 
to June 

2013 

Oct 2012 
to Sept 

2013 

July 2012 
to June 

2013 

Oct 2012 
to Sept 

2013 

ASPH (2) 0.940 0.946 31.3 32 68.4 68.3 31.6 31.8 

National (2) 1.00 1.00 20.5 21.2 73.3 73.1 26.7 26.9 

Lowest (3) 0.626 0.630 0 0 63.5 63.1 18.0 18.5 

Highest (1) 1.156 1.186 44.1 44.8 82 81.5 36.5 36.9 
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Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust considers th at this data is as described for the 
following reasons:  

The Dr Foster Good Hospital Guide 2013 confirms low mortality rates at Ashford & St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. The Trust was named by Dr Foster as being one of the top 
performing hospitals for having low mortality rates including at the weekends. 

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust intends to t ake the following actions to 
improve this score, and so the quality of its servi ces by: 

The Trust has implemented a programme with an aim to review every death. The Medical 
Director along with the Divisional Directors will monitor Divisions within 2014/15 to ensure 
that this occurs.  

 

Domain 3: Helping people to recover from episodes o f ill health or 
following injury 

2. Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs) Qualit y Account Extract  

Patient Reported Outcome Measures, PROMs, provide an indication of a patient’s health 
status or health-related quality of life from the patient’s perspective. This information is 
gathered from a questionnaire that patients complete before and after surgery. Patients 
undergoing hip and knee replacement and groin hernia and varicose veins procedures are 
invited to take part in this mandatory, national study.  

How did we perform?  

The table below shows provisional data35 for Apr 2012 to March 2013 and final data for Apr 
2011 to March 2012. The indicator used is the EQ-5D index casemix adjusted health gain.36  

  Groin hernia Hip replacement Knee replacement Varicose veins 

Period 2011-12 2012-13 2011-12 2012-13  2011-12 2012-13 2011-12 2012-13 

ASPH 0.093 0.119 0.406 0.428 0.297 0.278 N/A N/A 

National 0.087 0.085 0.416 0.428 0.302 0.319 0.094 0.093 

Lowest -0.002 0.015 0.306 0.319 0.180 0.195 0.047 0.023 

Highest 0.143 0.157 0.532 0.543 0.385 0.409 0.167 0.175 

 

                                                           
35 The data is provisional and may be incomplete or contain errors for which no adjustments have yet 
been made. Counts produced from provisional data are likely to be lower than those generated for the 
same period in the final dataset.         
      
36 For details refer to: 
http://www.euroqol.org/fileadmin/user_upload/Documenten/PDF/Folders_Flyers/UserGuide_EQ-5D-
3L.pdf  



 

121 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust considers th at this data is as described for the 
following reasons. 

Practice is within the national range for these procedures. For varicose veins we submit too 
few patients therefore do not have a sufficient sample size to compare with other Trusts. This 
reduction in surgery for varicose veins follows the recommendation by our local commissioning 
body to offer treatment only to patients with more complex conditions.     

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust intends to t ake the following actions to 
improve this score, and so the quality of its servi ces by: 

There is on-going work reviewing patient level data to identify where improvements to patient 
outcomes can be made.  This includes improving patient experience.  

  

3. Emergency readmission to hospital within 28 days  of discharge  

Previous analyses have shown wide variation between similar NHS organisations in 
emergency readmission rates. Not all emergency readmissions are likely to be part of the 
originally planned treatment and some may be potentially avoidable. These figures are 
published to help prevent potentially avoidable readmissions by seeing comparative figures 
and learning lessons from organisations with low readmission rates.  

How did we perform?  

The table below shows the latest data available from the NHS Information Centre. The 
figures are presented as: indirectly age, sex, method of admission, diagnosis, procedure 
standardised percent.  

• For readmissions under the age of 15 there is some improvement (3.05%) but this is not 
significant.   

• For readmissions aged 15 and over there is moderate deterioration (-5.08%) at 90% 
confidence.    

 

Age 0 to 14 Age 15 or over 

  2011-12 2010-11 2011-12 2010-11 

ASPH 6.30 6.68 11.51 12.62 

National Ave 10.13 10.15 11.45 11.42 

Lowest 3.75 5.85 6.63 7.63 

Highest - 15.94 17.15 12.94 
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Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust considers th at this data is as described for the 
following reasons  

We have made some improvements in performance. The Trust continues to work to reduce 
our rate of readmissions for older people.  

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust intends to t ake the following actions to 
improve this score, and so the quality of its servi ces by (also please see page 89) 

• Automating the LACE score to enable every patient admitted to the Trust to be 
assessed for readmission risk 

• Continuation of the teachback technique and roll out to more specialities 

• Continuation and further training of the Ambulance readmission prevention tool 
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Domain 4: Ensuring that people have a positive expe rience of care 

4. Responsiveness to the personal needs of patients   

 Patient experience is a key measure of the quality of care. At Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals we 
continually strive to be more response to the needs of our patients, including needs for privacy, 
information and involvement in decisions about care and treatment.   

How did we perform?  

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) reviews answers to five questions in the national inpatient 
survey to provide an indication of the standard of patient experience. This measure includes:  

• Access and waiting 
• Safe, high quality, coordinated care 
• Better information, more choice 
• Building closer relationships 
• Clean, comfortable place to be 

 

 2012/13 2013/14 

  ASPH ASPH 80th Percentile  

Access and waiting 82.2 81.7 87.1 

Safe, high quality, coordinated care 60.9 60.8 68.9 

Better information, more choice 64.7 62.5 71.8 

Building closer relationships 83.2 83.2 86.8 

Clean, comfortable place to be 77.3 77.3 82.2 

Overall 73.7 73.7 78.9 

 

Data from NHS England: http://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/pat-exp/sup-
info/ 

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust considers th at this data is as described for the 
following reasons  

Overall our inpatient survey for 2013-14 indicates that we are ‘about the same as other trusts’, 
which means that patient experience was no better or worse than expected by the CQC.  

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust intends to t ake the following actions to improve this 
score, and so the quality of its services by  

Results have been fed back to staff and the Trust Board. All these areas continue to be high priority 
for quality improvement within wards and services.  
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5. Patient recommendation to the Trust  

The below graphs shows patient feedback on “how likely patients are you to recommend our 
ward/A&E department to friends and family if they needed similar care or treatment?"  

Friends and Family Test Score for Inpatients           Friends and Family Test Score for A&E 

             

 

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust considers th at this data is as described for the 
following reasons  

The Trust recognises that for the A&E department we are performing under the national average 
and seeks to address this in 2014/15. 

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust intends to t ake the following actions to improve this 
score, and so the quality of its services by  

There will be a greater focus on individual wards monitoring their own returns and performance in 
2014/15, giving greater local ownership. The ward’s individual performance will be prominent in all 
wards reporting mechanisms.  
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Domain 5: Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting 
them from avoidable harm 

6. Percentage of admitted patients risk-assessed fo r venous thromboembolism (also  
see pages 21-23 and 36)  
 

VTE (deep vein thrombosis and pulmonary embolism) can cause death and long-term morbidity, but 
many cases of VTE acquired in healthcare settings are preventable through effective risk assessment 
and prophylaxis. 

How did we perform?  

Measure is the percentage of admitted patients who were risk-assessed for VTE: results are shown 
for April to December 2013  (also see page 83 as VTE is one of our main improvement priorities).    

 Apr -June 
12 

July -Sept 
12 

Oct-Dec 
12 

Apr -June 
13 

July -Sept 
13 

Oct-Dec 
13 

ASPH 90.4% 91.3% 93.7% 95.20% 95.47% 96.33% 

National 93.4% 93.8% 94.1% 95.48% 95.84% 95.79% 

Lowest 80.8% 80.9% 84.6% 78.78% 81.70% 74.09% 

Highest 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 

Data from NHS England: http://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/vte/vte-risk 
assessment-2013-14/  

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust considers th at this data is as described for the 
following reasons  

We managed to achieve the CQUIN target for 2013/14.  

 

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust intends to t ake the following actions to improve this 
score, and so the quality of its services by  

• Introduction of Intermittent Pneumatic Compression (IPC) for Stroke Patients  

o There is a new body of evidence suggesting that IPC is an effective method of 
reducing VTE in a variety of patients who are immobile after stroke.  This is 
significant as thromboprophylaxis is predominantly contraindicated in this cohort of 
patients.  The VTE Prevention Specialist Nurse will design and lead an 
implementation programme.  The aim is to reduce avoidable harm from preventable 
HAT and improve outcomes in this group of patients 
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• Development of Competencies and Care plans 

o The VTE Prevention Nurse Specialist will launch VTE specific competencies in 
conjunction with the practice development team. The purpose of the competencies is 
to provide a framework for the transfer of theoretical knowledge into practice. To 
ensure practice remains evidenced based and current, a programme of revalidation 
has been introduced. 

• Development of Patient Information App 

o Current guidance recommends that patients should be offered verbal and written 
information on VTE prevention as part of the admission and discharge process. The 
VTE Prevention Specialist Nurse in conjunction with the communications team will be 
exploring a patient information smart phone app. 

 

7. Rate of C. Difficile 

The Department of Health issued revised guidance in early March 2012 on a new testing protocol for 
C.difficile. The new protocol will bring about more consistent testing and reporting of cases of C.difficile 
infection.  

How did we perform?  

Measure is the rate of C.difficile infections per 100,000 bed days amongst patients aged two years 
and over.  

 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 

ASPH 71 31 21 10.5 8.5 

National 55 37 29 21.8 17.3 

Lowest - - - 51.6 1.2 

Highest - - - 0 30.6 

 

Data from Public Health England: 
http://www.hpa.org.uk/Topics/InfectiousDiseases/InfectionsAZ/ClostridiumDifficile/EpidemiologicalD
ata/MandatorySurveillance/cdiffMandatoryReportingScheme/  

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust considers th at this data is as described for the 
following reasons:  

• All cases of diarrhoea are isolated within two hours.  

• Enhanced levels of environmental cleaning are instigated in affected areas. 

• Improved cleaning products have been introduced. 

• Improved antibiotic stewardship including changing the antibiotic treatment for pneumonia 
patients 
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• Weekly C.difficile ward rounds and twice weekly antibiotic ward rounds 

• Accurate documentation 
 

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust intends to t ake the following actions to improve this 
score, and so the quality of its services by:  

• Continuing to raise awareness of how to prevent C.difficile 
• Continuing to undertake clinical audit of antibiotic prescribing to ensure prescribing is 

appropriate 
 

8. Rate of patient safety incidents and percentage resulting in severe harm or death.  

An open reporting and learning culture is important to identify trends in incidents and implement 
preventative action. Based on evidence about the frequency of adverse events in hospital, it is likely 
that there is significant under-reporting. The rate of reported patient safety incidents should increase 
in the short term as the reporting culture improves. Please refer to the statement on the limited 
assurance of the data relating to this indicator.  

How did we perform? The data in the table below are for two periods: April 2013 to September 
2013 and April 2012 to September 2013. 

  Rate of Patient 
Safety Incidents 

 

No. Severe Harm % Severe Harm No. Deaths % Deaths 

Period  April to        
Sept 
2013 

April to 
Sept 
2012 

April 
to        

Sept 
2013 

April to 
Sept 
2012 

April 
to        

Sept 
2013 

April 
to Sept 

2012 

April to        
Sept 
2013 

April to 
Sept 
2012 

April to        
Sept 
2013 

April to 
Sept 
2012 

ASPH 5.62 6.68 4 1 0.2% 0% 4 3 0.2% 0.1% 

National 7.23 6.7 - 671 0.5% 0.6% - 204 - 0.2% 

 

Comment –  Benchmarking against National Targets does not give an accurate picture as Trusts fall 
into 3 categories, in which we are a medium acute organisation. Our status in terms of reporting has 
fallen into the lowest category however it is similar to local Trusts including The Royal Surrey 
County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and Frimley Park Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.  

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust considers th at this data is as described for the 
following reasons:  

There has been a fall in Patient Safety incidents which is, at least in part, due to incident 
categorisation and the introduction of computerised reporting. 

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust intends to t ake the following actions to improve this 
score, and so the quality of its services by: 



 

128 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

• Conducting a survey of staff on the safety culture of the organisation with reporting to Trust 
Board, then follow with the recommended actions determined by the findings of the survey 
apropos the safety culture. 

• Regular deep dive audits into the accuracy of reporting to reduce the poor incident 
categorisation. 

• Implement improvements to the process of reporting and conduct user group forums to improve 
utilisation of computerised incident reporting system 

 

9. Staff recommendation of the Trust    

These indicators have been produced from the annual NHS National Staff Survey. Results are 
shown for 2013, 2012 and the national average (mean) for the percentage of staff who would 
recommend the Trust as a provider to their family or friends and the care of patients/service users 
is my organisation’s top priority.  

How did we perform in 2013?  

The table below shows how we compare with previous results for 2012 and with other acute trusts.  
For both 2012 and 2013 our results lie below the national figures.   

Question  Trust 2013  

(%) 

Average 
(median) for 
acute trusts 

(%) 

Trust 2012  

(%) 

Q12a  “Care of patients/service users 
is my organisation’s top priority  

68% 68% 61% 

Q12b “My organisation acts on 
concerns raised by patients/service 
users 

68% 71% 62% 

Q12c “I would recommend my 
organisation as a place to work” 

54% 59% 48% 

Q12d “If a friend or relative needed 
treatment, I would be happy with the 
standard of care provided by this 
organisation” 

62% 64% 54% 

 

Further results are available from the 2013 National NHS staff survey - Results from Ashford and St 
Peter's Hospitals NHS Foundation 

http://www.nhsstaffsurveys.com/Caches/Files/NHS_staff_survey_2013_RTK_full.pdf  
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Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust considers th at this data is as described for the 
following reasons  

The Trust is encouraged by the improvements shown in the indicators above however recognises 
that some of these fall below the national average.   

Ashford & St. Peter’s Foundation Trust intends to t ake the following actions to improve this 
score, and so the quality of its services by  

During 2013 /14, the Trust implemented a staff experience and culture plan in recognition of the 
need to set a refreshed ‘cultural tone’ for the Trust, and as an action plan from the 2012 National 
Staff Survey. The programme of work is focusing on 4 key priorities – citizenship, leadership, 
teamwork, employee experience. Work will continue in year 2. 
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Further performance information 

The following tables outline our performance against indicators we have chosen for 2013/14 for 
patient safety (see page 80), clinical effectiveness (page 99) and patient experience (page 75). 
These include national and local targets and, where available data for 2012/13. 

 

Table: Quality Performance Dashboard (taken from the Trust Board paper 1st May 2014) 

 

For indicator definitions  

(T*) Target Type: N, National; L, Local  

 

Delivering or exceeding Target   Improvement Month on Month 

Underachieving Target    Month in Line with Last Month 

Failing Target   Deterioration Month on Month 

 



 

 

Other performance indicators 

 
Threshold April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14

18 weeks - admitted > 90% 90.1% 91.6% 91.6% 92.7% 92.3% 92.8% 94.1% 85.3% 85.7% 81.9% 80.2% 80.6%

18 weeks - non-admitted > 95% 98.2% 98.6% 98.4% 98.0% 97.8% 97.5% 97.4% 96.9% 97.9% 94.9% 95.88% 96.19%

18 weeks - incomplete pathways > 92% 97.7% 98.24% 98.35% 98.73% 98.31% 97.94% 97.89% 97.16% 95.47% 94.31% 94.07% 94.54%

Percentage of diagnostic waits < 6 weeks > 99% 100% 100% 99.91% 99.95% 100% 99.70% 100% N/A N/A 97.50% 98.6% 98.5%

A&E Indicators - Total time spent in A&E 
department

> 95% 93.50% 94.80% 98.07% 96.89% 97.70% 94.20% 95.15% 95.98% 96.12% 94.19% 93.03% 96.26%

Cancer - 2 week rule > 93% 96.40% 98.30% 97.10% 97.90% 96.60% 95.30% 97.90% 97.90% 95.20% 94.00% 97.20% 95.90%

Breast symptomatic - seen within 2 weeks of 
referral

> 93% 96.40% 98.0% 99.0% 100.00% 93.20% 97.00% 93.80% 98.10% 95.50% 97.20% 97.10% 97.90%

Cancer - diagnosis to 1st definitive treatment 
within 31 days

> 96% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 99% 100% 100% 100.00% 97.80% 100.00% 98.70%

Cancer - second or subsequent cancer treatment 
(surgery) within 31 days

> 94% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Cancer - second or subsequent cancer treatment 
(drug treatments) within 31 days

> 98% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Cancer - urgent GP referral to 1st definitive 
treatment for cancer within 62 days

> 85% 87.9% 87.7% 94.8% 87.30% 91.00% 90.40% 90% 90.60% 92.10% 93.60% 87.30% 86.00%

Cancer - NHS Cancer Screening Service referrals 
to first definitive treatment in 62 days

> 90% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 90.09% 100.00% 93.80% 100.00% 100.00%

Cancer - Consultant upgrade to first definitive 
treatment for cancer within 62 days

> 85% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100.00% 80.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Stroke - patients spending 90% of time on stroke 
unit

> 80% 86% 67% 76% 85% 82% 80% 71% 86% 76% 71% 74% 71%

Stroke - High risk TIA treated within 24 hrs > 60% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 70% 64% 60%

Stroke - Low risk TIA treated within 7 days 100% 100% 100% 91% 82% 67% 95% 100% 100% 85% 83% 100% 100%

Stroke - Patients admitted to unit within 4 hrs > 90% 41% 57% 63% 59% 58% 46% 48% 60% 43% 49% 53% 55%

Stroke - Patients scanned within 24 hrs 100% 100% 96% 100% 98% 100% 100% 94% 97% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Stroke - Patients thrombolysed
> 10% - See 
above

11% 26% 20% 14% 12% 15% 28% 19% 16% 18% 17% 6%

Stroke - % of eligible patients being thrombolysed 100%
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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Charts 1 to 4: Safety Thermometer 

Chart 1 Percentage patients with new harms 

 

Chart 2  Indicence of new CAUTI 

 

Chart 3 Incidence of new pressure ulcers 

 

Chart 4 Percentage of falls with harm 
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Part 4 - Statements on the engagement process for 
the development of the quality accounts  

Ashford & St. Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trus t Council of Governors 

The Council of Governors, particularly through its Patient Experience Group, welcomes the 
opportunity to comment on the Quality Report.  The Patient Experience Group has a 
responsibility to report and offer advice to the Council on the Trust’s Quality Account and 
particularly those parts relating to the patient experience. 

The Patient Experience Group is pleased to note the progress and procedures introduced 
during the past year in priority areas and the further improvements in service, and therefore 
patient experience, planned for the coming year.  The top three priorities listed are still 
considered vitally important and are supported.  The Patient Experience Group has been 
pleased to be closely involved with the Patients Association survey of carers of patients with 
dementia, noting that supporting carers is part of Priority 1. 

It is noted that the Patient Experience Group has an important role in monitoring progress 
and receiving reports on quality and safety improvements overall, for onward transmission to 
the Council of Governors.   

Several Governors have appreciated being able to take part in the quarterly Quality Account 
Workshops in the year and to have the opportunity to make contributions and meet 
stakeholders.  Some have attended staff study and research and development days and 
have made visits to wards and departments.  Such involvement is seen as an important part 
of their role and assists them in discharging their duties and responsibilities as Governors. 

Keith Bradley, Governor and Chair of the Patient Exp erience Group 

06/05/2014 

 

Healthwatch Surrey 

Surrey Healthwatch wish to record their gratitude and appreciation at being invited to 
participate in the stakeholder workshops leading up to this Account. It is unfortunate that 
each year we are asked to provide comment on an incomplete document;  we have not seen 
the CEO's contribution, nor the values to replace "TBC" in Tables 2 and 3 of Part 3, or to fill 
in the blanks in the final pages of Part 3. Nevertheless, it is clear that there is much to merit 
commendation. The requirement of candour emphasised in the Francis report is certainly 
met; the hospital even feels guilty at not having reduced the number of complaints far 
enough, though in reality the patients may be acquiring greater cultural confidence, in itself 
admirable. A better benchmark might be the reduction in causes for legitimate complaint.  

The layout, format and length seem wholly appropriate, and it is good to see aims and 
ambitions moving on from goals successfully achieved to new and more demanding tasks. 
Improving the discharge process is emphasised, even though the problem may lie outside 
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hospital competence - perhaps with social services. It is disappointing though that getting the 
desired number of discharges by 2 pm or 3 pm is proving so difficult; and in view of recent 
concerns, perhaps discharges after 11 pm should be scrutinised in future. 

The footnotes to Part 3 are excellent; more might have been welcome in earlier pages, for 
example to explain the mysterious expression "Nurse Tissue Viability". A note would seem 
needed to explain the very low value of 13% against the entry for Varicose Veins. The 
hospital are right to continue focussing on patient falls, where values each year obstinately 
fail to meet targets. 

Peter Hughes, HealthWatch Surrey  

27/05/2014 

 

Surrey County Council Health Scrutiny Committee 

The Health Scrutiny Committee is pleased to be offered the opportunity to comment on 
Ashford and St. Peter's Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s Quality Account for 2013/14. The 
Trust is thanked for its working with the Health Scrutiny Committee over the last year via a 
sub-group of two Committee members. This group met with the Trust to monitor its quality 
priorities and help develop its priorities for 2014/15.  

A reference to the proposed merger between the Trust and the Royal Surrey County 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust would be welcomed in the report as this is undoubtedly an 
important development for patients in Surrey. A glossary of terms to aid public reading of the 
report would also be encouraged.  

The Committee commends the Trust for achieving or surpassing the targets for three 
priorities that were set in the 2013/14 Quality Account but also notes that it missed or 
partially achieved the targets set for the remaining six priorities. The descriptions of what 
was done to met the priorities and the measurements for improvement are clearly set out for 
the reader. 

 In reviewing the report the Committee would like to highlight the following:  

That in priority 2 discharges should be appropriate with enough support for patients leaving 
the hospital who need it as well as timely  

• Could further detail be provided on the Ward Liaison role?  
• Expectation that the Trust will improve its consistency of electronic discharge 

summary provision and, in the long-term, should aim for 100% of discharges to take 
place before 15:00.  

• What were the results of the programme that sought to review every death?  
• Reference is made to out-of-date policies – do the remaining 20% require refreshing?  
• The disappointing results in all three indicators for priority 7  
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The Committee is supportive of the continuing focus on the priorities in the quality account 
for 2014/15 with some revised targets and will continue to work with the Trust to understand 
and monitor its priorities.  

 

Surrey Health Scrutiny Committee 

27/05/2014  

 

NHS North West Surrey Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).    

On behalf of NHS North West Surrey CCG I would like to thank you for submitting your draft 
Quality Account for review. We have reviewed the Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust draft Quality Account document for 2013 – 2014 and are satisfied that this 
gives an overall accurate account and analysis of the quality of services. This is in line with 
the data supplied by Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust during the year 
and reviewed as part of your performance under the contract with NHS North West Surrey 
CCG.  
 
As lead commissioner we will continue to work with you to ensure that data accuracy at all 
levels remains a key priority and to raise the profile for quality improvement and regularly 
review the continuous improvement cycle. The Trust is commended for their continued good 
work and emphasis on quality of patient care and in particular the engagement of CCG and 
wider stakeholders in the quarterly workshops to review progress, update on work in 
progress and future planning. The priorities for 2014/15 continue to focus on key areas of 
quality and patient safety and have been further developed with input from clinicians and 
commissioners.  
The account identifies progress against all previous priorities and specifically achievement in 
relation to:  

• Improvement of care of patients with dementia and supporting carers 

• Improvement of all aspects of communication with patients  

• Improvement of harm-free care as measured within the Safety Thermometer  

 
Having mapped against the quality report requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual 
Reporting Manual for 2012/13, I would like to share our more specific observations as 
outlined in the attached document. 

Clare Stone, Head of Quality / Chief Nurse NHS Nort h West Surrey CCG 

20/05/2014  
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2013/14 Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in  respect of 
the Quality Report 

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service 
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. 
Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of 
annual quality reports (which incorporate the above legal requirements) and on the 
arrangements that NHS foundation trust boards should put in place to support the data 
quality for the preparation of the quality report.  

In preparing the quality report, Directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves that:  

• the content of the quality report meets the requirements set out in the NHS 
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;  

• the content of the quality report is not inconsistent with internal and external sources 
of information, including:  

• board minutes and papers for the period April 2013 to 27 May 2014;  

• papers relating to quality reported to the board over the period April 2013 to May 
2014;  

• feedback from the commissioners, dated 20 May 2014;  

• feedback from Governors, dated 06 May 2014;  

• feedback from local Healthwatch organisations, dated 27 May 2014;  

• the Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority 
Social Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated May 2014; 

• the  national patient survey 2013; the national staff survey 2013;  

• the Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment, 
dated 15 April 2014;  

• Care Quality Commission quality and risk profiles/Intelligent Monitoring Reports, 
dated October 2013 and March 2014;  

• the quality report presents a balanced picture of the NHS foundation trust’s 
performance over the period covered;  

• the performance information reported in the quality report is reliable and accurate;  

• there are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of 
performance included in the quality report, and these controls are subject to review to 
confirm that they are working effectively in practice;  

• the data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the quality report is 
robust and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed 
definitions, is subject to appropriate scrutiny and review; and the quality report has 
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been prepared in accordance with Monitor’s annual reporting guidance (which 
incorporates the Quality Accounts regulations) (published at 
www.monitor.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual ) as well as the standards to support 
data quality for the preparation of the quality report (available at 
www.monitor.gov.uk/sites/all/modules/fckeditor/plugins/ktbrowser/_openTKFile.php?i
d=3275 ).  

 

The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the 
above requirements in preparing the quality report.  

 

By order of the board  

 

 

Aileen McLeish 

Chairman 

27 May 2014 

 

 

Andrew Liles 

Chief Executive 

27 May 2014 
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2013 - 14 Limited Assurance Opinion on the Content of the Quality 
Report and Mandated Performance Indicators 

We have been engaged by the Council of Governors of Ashford and St. Peter’s Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust to perform an independent assurance engagement in respect of 
Ashford and St. Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s Quality Report for the year ended 
31 March 2014 (the “Quality Report”) and certain performance indicators contained therein.  

 

Scope and subject matter  

The indicators for the year ended 31 March 2014 subject to limited assurance consist of the 
national priority indicators as mandated by Monitor: 

• Clostridium Difficile – all cases of Clostridium Difficile positive diarrhoea in patients aged 
two years or over   that  are attributed to the Trust; and  

• Emergency readmissions within 28 days of discharge from hospital. 

We refer to these national priority indicators collectively as the “indicators”. 

 

Respective responsibilities of the Directors and au ditors  

The Directors are responsible for the content and the preparation of the Quality Report in 
accordance with the criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 
issued by Monitor.  

Our responsibility is to form a conclusion, based on limited assurance procedures, on 
whether anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe that:  

• the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set out 
in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;  

• the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources - specified in 
the Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on Quality Reports; and  

• the indicators in the Quality Report identified as having been the subject of limited 
assurance in the Quality Report are not reasonably stated in all material respects in 
accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and the six 
dimensions of data quality set out in the Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on 
Quality Reports.  

We read the Quality Report and consider whether it addresses the content requirements of 
the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual, and consider the implications for our 
report if we become aware of any material omissions.  

We read the other information contained in the Quality Report and consider whether it is 
materially inconsistent with: 

• Board minutes for the period April 2013 to May 2014; 



 

139 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

• Papers relating to Quality reported to the Board over the period April 2013 to May 2014; 

• Feedback from the Commissioners dated May 2014; 

• Feedback from local Healthwatch organisations dated May 2014;  

• The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority Social 
Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, 2013/14; 

• The 2013/14 national patient survey; 

• The 2013/14 national staff survey; 

• Care Quality Commission quality and risk profiles/intelligent monitoring reports 2013/14; 
and 

• The 2013/14 Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control 
environment. 

We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent 
misstatements or material inconsistencies with those documents (collectively, the 
“documents”). Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.  

We are in compliance with the applicable independence and competency requirements of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) Code of Ethics. Our 
team comprised assurance practitioners and relevant subject matter experts. 

This report, including the conclusion, has been prepared solely for the Council of Governors 
of Ashford and St. Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust as a body, to assist the Council 
of Governors in reporting Ashford and St. Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s quality 
agenda, performance and activities. We permit the disclosure of this report within the Annual 
Report for the year ended 31 March 2014, to enable the Council of Governors to 
demonstrate they have discharged their governance responsibilities by commissioning an 
independent assurance report in connection with the indicators. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
Council of Governors as a body and Ashford and St. Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust for our work or this report save where terms are expressly agreed and with our prior 
consent in writing.  

Assurance work performed  

We conducted this limited assurance engagement in accordance with International Standard 
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) – ‘Assurance Engagements other than Audits 
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information’ issued by the International Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board (‘ISAE 3000’). Our limited assurance procedures included:  

• Evaluating the design and implementation of the key processes and controls for 
managing and reporting the indicators. 

• Making enquiries of management. 

• Testing key management controls. 

• Limited testing, on a selective basis, of the data used to calculate the indicator back to 
supporting documentation. 
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• Comparing the content requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting 
Manual to the categories reported in the Quality Report. 

• Reading the documents. 

A limited assurance engagement is smaller in scope than a reasonable assurance 
engagement.  The nature, timing and extent of procedures for gathering sufficient 
appropriate evidence are deliberately limited relative to a reasonable assurance 
engagement. 

Limitations  

Non-financial performance information is subject to more inherent limitations than financial 
information, given the characteristics of the subject matter and the methods used for 
determining such information. 

The absence of a significant body of established practice on which to draw allows for the 
selection of different but acceptable measurement techniques which can result in materially 
different measurements and can impact comparability.  The precision of different 
measurement techniques may also vary.  Furthermore, the nature and methods used to 
determine such information, as well as the measurement criteria and the precision thereof, 
may change over time.  It is important to read the Quality Report in the context of the criteria 
set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual. 

The scope of our assurance work has not included governance over quality or non-
mandated indicators which have been determined locally by Ashford and St. Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. 

Conclusion  

Based on the results of our procedures, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to 
believe that, for the year ended 31 March 2014:  

• the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set out 
in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;  

• the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources specified 
above; and  

• the indicators in the Quality Report subject to limited assurance have not been 
reasonably stated in all material respects in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust 
Annual Reporting Manual. 

 

KPMG LLP, Statutory Audit or 

15 Canada Square 

Canary Wharf 

London 

E14 5GL 

 

29 May 2014 
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4.  NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance 
 

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust recognises that our 
capability as a Trust Board of Directors 
and Council of Governors is critical to the 
success of the Hospitals. Our ability to do 
what we do, and to do it well, will help us 
to serve our patients and our community.  

The Trust strives to continuously improve 
its processes, in line with key national 
guidance, to ensure safe, high quality 
services for our patients, and to provide a 
clear framework within which our staff can 
thrive. 

Each year we review our governance 
arrangements against the provisions of 

Monitor’s Code of Governance which sets 
the standard for best practice and the 
following disclosures give a clear and 
comprehensive picture of the Trust’s 
governance arrangements and how we 
apply the main principles. 

It is the responsibility of the Board of 
Directors to confirm that the Trust 
complies with the provisions of the Code 
of Governance or, where it does not, to 
provide an explanation which justifies 
departure from the Code in particular 
circumstances. For the year ending 31 
March 2014 the Trust complied with all the 
provisions of the Code of Governance 
published by Monitor in 2013.  

 

Board of Directors and the Council of Governors 

The Board has agreed a Trust 
Governance Framework which describes 
the roles of the Board and the Council. 
This confirms that the Council will carry 
out its statutory duties (further detail is 
given in the section on the Council below) 
and also be consulted on the Trust’s 
forward plans. 

The Board has agreed to meet formally 
and in public at least nine times per year, 
and considers items under four broad 
agenda headings: 

• Quality and safety 
• Performance 
• Strategy and planning 
• Regulatory 

 
In addition the Board meets in closed 
session, having published a framework 
setting out the types of matters normally 
dealt with in private. These typically 

include matters relating to individuals or 
matters of a commercial nature. 
The Unitary Board of Directors is 
responsible for ensuring the Trust 
complies with its License and mandatory 
guidance issued by Monitor, its 
Constitution, relevant statutory 
requirements and contractual obligations. 
The Board of Directors sets the Trust’s 
strategic aims, taking into consideration 
the views of the Council of Governors. The 
Board of Directors as a whole is 
responsible for ensuring the quality and 
safety of healthcare services, education, 
training and research delivered by the 
Trust. 

The Council of Governors represents the 
interests of the local community, both 
members of the public and staff who are 
Foundation Trust members, and local 
stakeholders. The Council of Governors is 
not responsible for the day-to-day 
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management of the organisation which is 
the responsibility of the Board of Directors, 
but the Council holds the Board to account 
via the Non-Executive Directors. 

The Board has approved a formal Scheme 
of Delegation of Authority and 
Responsibility and within this Scheme 

there is a Schedule of Matters Reserved 
for the Board. This Scheme forms an 
important part of the Trust’s system of 
internal controls.  

In the event of a dispute between the 
Board and the Council a disputes 
procedure is described in the Constitution. 

 

Composition of the Board  

The Board is made up of the Chairman, 
six Non-Executive Directors and six 
Executive Directors. The Head of 
Corporate Affairs attends all Board 
meetings as company secretary. 

In October 2013 Peter Taylor retired as a 
Non-Executive Director and the Senior 
Independent Director.  

Carolyn Simons was appointed as a Non-
Executive Director with effect from 1st 
November 2013. 

Clive Goodwin was appointed in January 
2014 as Senior Independent Director. 

In May 2013 Raj Bhamber, Director of 
Workforce and Organisational 
Development left the Trust to take up a 
new post in the NHS and was replaced by 
Louise McKenzie as Director of Workforce 
Transformation. 

In April 2014 Andrew Liles announced that 
he would be stepping down from his role 
as Chief Executive on 31st August 2014 to 
pursue a career in health consultancy. 

 

Introducing our Board of Directors 

Aileen McLeish, Chairman 

Aileen McLeish has been 
Chairman of Ashford and 
St Peter’s Hospitals since 
October 2008 having been 
a Non-executive of the 
Trust since November 
2005.  She obtained a 

degree in Mechanical Sciences from 
Girton College, Cambridge.  During her 
career Aileen has worked at Unilever PLC 
and H J Heinz Co Ltd in the UK where she 
became Group Financial Controller.  She 
then transferred to the not for profit sector 
as Director of Finance at Historic Royal 
Palaces followed by a move to WWF-UK 

as Director of Resources.  Aileen is a 
Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts, Fellow 
of the Institute of Directors, as well as a 
Fellow of the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants.   
 

In addition to chairing the Board of 
Directors and the Council of Governors, 
Aileen chairs the Nominations Committees 
(for both Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors) and is a member of 
the Remuneration Committee (Executive 
Directors). She is also Chairman of The 
Lightbox and Deputy Chairman of The 
Mount School, York. 
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Professor Philip Beesley, Non-executive Director an d Deputy Chairman 

Philip joined the Board in 
July 2008 and was 
appointed as the Deputy 
Chairman by the Council 
of Governors with effect 
from 11th February 2011.  

Philip is Professor of Neuroscience and 
was previously Dean of Science and Vice 
Principal for Research at Royal Holloway 
University of London. By training, Philip is 
a biological scientist specialising in 
neuroscience and has been closely 
involved in the development of biomedical 
science at Royal Holloway and in the  

development of collaborative work with St. 
George’s University of London and 
Kingston University.  In his role as Dean of 
Science Philip is responsible for managing 
the seven Science Departments at Royal 
Holloway and is a member of the 
College’s Senior Management Team.   
 
Philip chairs the Integrated Governance 
and Assurance Committee and the Clinical 
Excellence Awards Committee, and is a 
member of the Workforce & OD 
Committee. 

 

Sue Ells, Non-executive Director 

Sue joined the Board in 
February 2009. Sue Ells 
has worked as a 
management consultant 
for more than 20 years.  
Her specialism is 
transformation, change 

management and organisational 
development.  Aligning with business 
strategy, Sue has designed, managed and 
personally delivered a cross-section of 
change programmes in UK, Europe, US 
and Asian cultures and has a track record 
in developing high performing teams, 
 

 coaching senior individuals and running 
audits of why major programmes and 
organisational changes fail, so that 
lessons can be learnt and future success 
assured. Sue has a degree in psychology, 
an MBA, and is a member of the British 
Psychological Society’s Occupational and 
Coaching Divisions.   
 

Sue chairs the Workforce & Organisational 
Development Committee and is a member 
of the Remuneration and Nominations 
Committees.  
 

Jim Gollan , Non-executive Director 

Jim joined the Board in 
March 2011 and was re-
appointed by the Council of 
Governors for a further 
three year term in March 
2014.  Jim’s career until 

2010 was in banking (Lloyds TSB, 
Standard Chartered), investment 
management (Gartmore), financial 
markets (virt-x, Eurex) and management 
consultancy (KPMG). His executive Board 
experience comprises four roles as CFO, 

two as CEO and one as Chairman.  He 
has worked in the UK, Asia and Europe. 
He is a Chartered Accountant and 
graduate of Bristol University. He is also a 
Non-Executive Director of Bank of 
America Merrill Lynch, FXCM Securities 
Ltd, Trustee and Treasurer of the Brain 
Research Trust and a member of the 
Finance Committee of the Open 
University.   Jim chairs the Finance 
Committee and is a member of the Audit 
Committee. 
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Clive Goodwin Non-executive Director 

Clive joined the Board in 
March 2011 and was re-
appointed by the Council 
of Governors for a further 
three year term in March 
2014. Clive was 
appointed Senior 

Independent Director with effect from 31st 
January 2014.  He graduated from the 
University of Salford with a Bachelor of 
Science degree in Modern Languages and 
International Business. With 14 years of 
operating at Board level, he was a 

Commercial Director at British Telecom 
from 2008 to 2013 before moving to 
Vodafone Group Plc. as Global Head of 
Commercial Voice.  He became a member 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
in 1997. 
 
Clive is a member of the Finance 
Committee and is the Senior Independent 
Director. 
 

 

Terry Price, Non-executive Director 

Terry joined the Board in 
September 2008.  Terry 
Price has wide ranging 
Executive and NED 
experience in both the 
public and voluntary 
sectors, holding a number 

of roles with Thameswey Group Ltd and 
Woking Borough Homes Ltd, East 
Thames Housing Group, the Office of the 
Independent Adjudicator for Higher 
Education Ltd, and Community Building 
Services Ltd (a subsidiary of Affinity 
Sutton Housing).  
 
 

He is also a member of the Audit 
Committee for the National Fire Service 
College and the Immigration Services 
Commissioner, and is a member of the 
Audit and Standards Committee of 
Elmbridge Borough Council.  In the 
voluntary sector Terry is Chair of the 
Board of Governors at Esher Sixth Form 
College. Terry is a fully qualified CIPFA 
accountant.  
 
Terry is the Chair of the Audit Committee, 
and a member of both the Integrated 
Governance Assurance Committee and 
the Clinical Governance Committee.  
 

Carolyn Simons, Non-executive Director

Carolyn joined the Board in 
November 2013.  Her 
executive career 
specialised in retail, and 
roles included working for 
Boots in buying and 
marketing, several years in 

pan European management consulting 
specialising in retail, Managing Director of 
a publicly quoted retail business and 
Commercial Director for Homebase.  Her 

current portfolio includes working with the 
Pennies Foundation on the Electronic 
Charity Box, a new way of charity 
fundraising, and chairing Hadassah UK, 
which supports the Hadassah Medical 
Organisation in Jerusalem. 
 
Carolyn is a member of the Integrated 
Governance and Assurance Committee 
and the Workforce & OD Committee. 
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Andrew Liles, Chief Executive  

Andrew Liles joined the 
Trust in January 2009 from 
the Royal West Sussex NHS 
Trust, where he had been 
Chief Executive for three 
years.  After University he 

became an NHS Management Trainee for 
two years, completing his training in 1992.  
Since then his career has progressed 
through general management and 
operational posts in acute NHS Trusts and 
Executive Director posts in Winchester, 

Southampton and Epsom and St Helier.  
Andrew is the Chief Executive lead for 
leadership and talent management for the 
NHS in the South East, is Chairman of the 
Surrey and Sussex Research Network and 
sits on the Board of the Kent, Surrey and 
Sussex Deanery. 

Andrew announced his decision to step 
down as Chief Executive in April 2014 and 
will leave the Trust in September 2014. 

 

Valerie Bartlett, Deputy Chief Executive 

Valerie joined the Trust in 
2009 and has nearly 15 
years of Board level 
experience within the NHS, 
including 4 years as a Chief 
Executive of a mental 

health trust and 3 years as Director of 
Service Delivery at the Royal Cornwall 
Hospitals NHS Trust.  Graduating from 
Oxford, and with an MBA from Henley 
Management College, Valerie also has 

experience of working outside the NHS, in 
both local government and the voluntary 
sector.  Valerie’s experience within the 
acute sector of the NHS includes leading 
on significant service redesign 
programmes and delivering programmes 
of substantial financial recovery and 
significant performance improvement. 

 

Dr David Fluck, Medical Director 

David obtained his MBBS, 
MRCP (UK) and FRCP 
(UK) from the University of 
London. He trained at a 
number of hospitals in 
London and the South 

East, including St Bartholomew's, Guys 
Hospital, and the Hammersmith Medical 
School. He held Registrar positions at 
Whipps Cross and the London Chest 
Hospital and was a Research Fellow at St 
Mary's Hospital.  He joined Ashford & St 
Peter’s in 1996 as a Consultant 
Cardiologist, and was instrumental in 
developing services such as the Rapid 

Access Chest Pain Clinics and trans-
oesophageal echocardiography.  
 

He has held the position of Consultant 
Cardiology at St George’s Hospital since 
1996 and has been an Honorary Clinical 
Senior Lecturer at Imperial College of 
Science, Technology and Medicine since 
2001, and Postgradute Tutor from 2002 - 
2006. He was the Clinical Lead on the 
West Surrey Cardiac Network, from 2005 
to 2008. He became the Clinical Director 
for Medicine in 2006, and was appointed 
to Deputy Medical Director in 2010, before 
being appointed to his current role of 
Medical Director in 2012.  
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Simon Marshall, Director of Finance and Information  

Simon Marshall has a 
degree in Economics and is 
a Fellow of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance 
Accountants. Following 10 
years working with 
PricewaterhouseCoopers on 

finance assignments across central 
government, local government, health, 

education and charitable sectors he joined 
the NHS in 2002. Starting as Finance 
Director for Hounslow PCT, Simon moved 
in 2005 to become the Finance Director 
for the West Middlesex University Hospital 
NHS Trust. Simon joined the Trust in May 
2012. 

 

Louise McKenzie, Director of Workforce Transformati on 

Louise McKenzie joined the 
Trust in April 2013. She is a 
Member of the Chartered 
Institute of Personnel 
Development and holds a 
degree in Public 
Administration and 

Economics. Louise has worked in the NHS 
since 1994, primarily in the acute sector, 
in a number of senior HR roles including 
Head of Operational HR at Guys & St 

Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust, Director 
of HR at Bromley Hospitals NHS Trust, 
and most recently as Director of HR & OD 
at South London Healthcare NHS Trust. In 
her previous role she was a member of 
the London Partnership Forum working 
with senior NHS managers and trade 
union organisations on workforce policy 
implementation and complex change 
management programmes. 

 

Suzanne Rankin, Chief Nurse 

Suzanne joined the Trust in 
December 2010. Suzanne 
began her nursing and 
management career with the 
Royal Navy, including 
deployment during the 1990 

Gulf War; a spell as Senior Nursing Officer 
at NATO Headquarters in Lisbon; and 
Nursing Officer in charge of the 56-bed 
Trauma and Orthopaedic Unit at the 
former Royal Hospital Haslar in Gosport, 
Hampshire. Suzanne graduated with an 

MA in Defence Studies including 
advanced staff and command training 
from the Joint Services Command and 
Staff College in 2005.  
Suzanne joined the Ministry of Defence in 
2008 where she supported and advised 
the Surgeon General on nursing 
leadership and professional matters, and 
spent time in Iraq and Afghanistan. Prior 
to joining the Trust she was Deputy Chief 
Nurse for NHS South Central. 

 

Significant Commitments of the Trust Chairman 

Aileen McLeish is a Governor of The 
Mount School, York and Chairman of 
Woking Museum and Arts and Crafts 
Centre (The Lightbox). She is a member 

of both the Foundation Trust Network’s 
Quality Working Group. She is also a 
member of the Advisory Group for Career 
Savvy Women. 
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Balance of Board Membership and Independence 

The Board of Directors is satisfied that its 
balance of knowledge, skills and 
experience is appropriate to the Board and 
its sub-committees. This conclusion is 
supported by the results of a skills audit of 
the Board conducted at the 
commencement of the appointment 
process for a new non-executive director 
in mid-2013. The skills and competencies 
of the Board were also assessed in 
conjunction with the re-appointment of Jim 
Gollan and Clive Goodwin by the Council 
of Governors in March 2014. 

The Board has evaluated the 
circumstances and relationships of 
individual Non-Executive Directors which 
are relevant to the determination of the 
presumption of independence. The Board 
determines all of its Non-Executive 
Directors to be independent in character 
and judgement. 

All Non-executive Directors, including the 
Chairman, have made declarations 
concerning their independence with the 
last annual review taking place in May 
2014.  

 

Performance evaluation 

The Board recognises that a regular 
evaluation of its collective and individual 
director performance is critical to 
continuous development and high 
performance. The Board worked in 
2012/13 with an external consultancy to 
undertake a Board development 
programme. In 2013/14 the Board have 
implemented the recommendations of this 
programme including the introduction of a 
values based behaviours programme, a 
strategy re-fresh with significant Board 
involvement and the embedding of the 
culture programme throughout the 
organisation through ‘Team ASPH’ and an 
accredited internal coaching programme. 
 
The Board of Directors have designed and 
implemented robust performance 
evaluation processes, structures and 
systems in accordance with the Code of 
Effective Corporate Governance within the 
public sector and the Guide to statutory 
duties for NHS Foundation Trust 
Governors (published by Monitor).  The 
Senior Independent Director is the 
Chairman of the Board of Directors’ 
Remuneration Committee which oversees 

the remuneration and performance of 
Executive Directors.  The Chairman of the 
Trust undertakes the appraisal of the Chief 
Executive and the Non-executive 
Directors. The appraisal of the Non-
executive Directors was conducted by the 
Chairman in accordance with the process 
agreed by the Council of Governors. The 
Chief Executive undertakes the appraisal 
of the Executive Directors.   

The Senior Independent Director has led 
the process for the appraisal of the 
Chairman in accordance with the process 
agreed by the Council of Governors. The 
outcome of the evaluation has been 
discussed and endorsed by the 
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee 
and reported to the Council of Governors.   

In addition the performance of members of 
the Board is assessed in terms of the 
following: 

• Attendance at Board and 
Committee meetings 

• Independence of individual 
directors 
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• An effective contribution to the 
Board and Committees through the 
range and diversity of experience 
and skills 

• Strategic decision making and 
delivery of the Trust’s forward plan 

The Council of Governors holds the Non-
Executive Directors independently and 
collectively to account for the performance 

of the Board, and does this through 
receiving performance information and a 
process of constructive challenge at 
Council of Governor meetings and 
seminars with the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors. 

 

Access to the Register of Directors’ Interests 

Members of the public can gain access to 
the Register of Directors’ Interests by 
making a request to the Trust secretary, 
either at St Peter’s Hospital, Guildford Rd, 

Chertsey, KT16 0PZ , or via email 
george.roe@asph.nhs.uk or on 01932 
723110. 

 

Board meetings 

The Board met in open and closed session nine times during 2013/14 and in closed session 
10 times (an additional closed session was arranged due to the timetable for submission of 
the annual report and accounts in May 2013).  Directors’ attendance was as follows: 

Name End of term of office Open Board 
Meetings attended 

Closed Board 
Meetings attended 

Non-Executive Directors   

Philip Beesley 15th July 2015 6 of 9 7 of 10 

Sue Ells 8th February 2016 8 of 9 9 of 10 

Jim Gollan* 30th March 2017 9 of 9  7 of 10 

Clive Goodwin* 30th March 2017 5 of 9 6 of 10 

Aileen McLeish 30th September 2015 9 of 9 10 of 10 

Terry Price 13th September 2015 8 of 9 9 of 10 

Carolyn Simons** 1st November 2016 3 of 3 3 of 3 

Peter Taylor*** 31st October 2013 6 of 6 7 of 7 

*Jim Gollan & Clive Goodwin were re-appointed by the Council of Governors at their meeting on 4th March 2014. 
** Carolyn Simons was appointed with effect from 1st November 2013. 
*** Peter Taylor retired on 31st October 2013. 
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Executive Directors Position Open Board 
Meetings attended 

Closed Board 
Meetings attended 

Valerie Bartlett Deputy Chief Executive 8 of 9 9 of 10 

Raj Bhamber* Director of Workforce 
and Organisational 
Development 

0 of 1 0 of 1 

David Fluck Medical Director 7 of 9 7 of 10 

Andrew Liles Chief Executive 9 of 9 10 of 10 

Simon Marshall Director of Finance & 
Information 

9 of 9 10 of 10 

Louise McKenzie** Director of Workforce 
Transformation 

7 of 8 8 of 9 

Suzanne Rankin Chief Nurse 8 of 9 9 of 10 

 

* Raj Bhamber left the Trust in May 2013 
**Louise McKenzie joined the Trust in May 2013 
 

 

Board Sub Committees 

The Board of Directors has the following sub committees: 

• Audit Committee 
• Finance Committee 
• Integrated Governance and Assurance Committee (IGAC) 
• Nominations Committee (Executive Directors) 
• Remuneration Committee (Executive Directors) 
• Strategy Committee 
• Workforce and Organisational Development Committee 

 

Audit Committee  

Membership and Attendance 

The Audit Committee is chaired by Non-
Executive Director Terry Price, and 
includes two other Non-Executive 
Directors. Internal Audit (TIAA), External 

Audit (KPMG LLP) and the Local Counter 
Fraud Specialist (Gateway Assure Ltd) are 
all invited to attend the meetings. 
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Discharging its responsibilities 

The Terms of Reference of the Audit 
Committee are approved by the Trust 
Board and these set out the duties and 
key responsibilities. The Committee 
prepares an annual report to the Trust 
Board setting out its operations during the 
year. 

The Audit Committee assures the Trust 
Board that there is an effective system of 
integrated governance, risk management 
and internal control across the whole of 
the Trust’s activities that supports the 

achievement of the organisation’s 
objectives. In addition financial reporting 
and counter fraud measures are also 
reviewed.  In doing this the Audit 
Committee primarily utilises the work of 
internal audit, external audit and other 
external bodies.  The Audit Committee 
approves the annual work plans of internal 
audit, external audit and the Local Counter 
Fraud Specialist.  The Trust does not have 
an internal audit function with TIAA 
providing this function for the Trust.  

 

Policy for Safeguarding External Auditors’ Independence 

The external auditors were reappointed by 
the Council of Governors, following a 
tender exercise, at their meeting on 17th 
May 2012. 

In so far as the Trust has purchased work 
from its external auditors outside of the 
Audit Code in 2013/14, the external 
auditors’ objectivity and independence 
have been safeguarded. 

 

Responsibility for Preparing the Annual Accounts 

The Chief Executive is the Trust’s 
designated Accounting Officer with the 
duty to prepare the financial statement for 

each financial period in accordance with 
the National Health Service Act 2006.  

 
 

Finance Committee 

The Committee is chaired by Non-
executive Director Jim Gollan, and 
includes two other Non-Executive 
Directors, the Deputy Chief Executive and 
the Director of Finance and Information.  

The Finance Committee’s role is to review 
the financial performance, position, risks 
and decision-making of the Trust. It gives 
assurance to the Board that this process 
of review is satisfactory and draws matters 
of importance to their attention.  

 

Nominations Committee (Executive Directors) 

The Nominations Committee comprises 
the Trust Chairman, who chairs the 
Committee, the Senior Independent 
Director and two further Non-Executive 
Directors. 

The Committee has been established to 
appoint the Executive Directors including 
Interim appointments. The Committee is 
also responsible for evaluating the 
balance of skills, knowledge and 
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experience on the Board of Directors and, 
in the light of this evaluation, preparing a 
description of the role and capabilities 

required for the appointment of Executive 
Directors. 

 

Remuneration Committee (Executive Directors) 

A description of the work of the 
Remuneration Committee can be found 
within the Remuneration Report on p. 163. 
Attendance at meetings by its members is 

set out in the table below.  The Committee 
is chaired by Senior Independent Director, 
Clive Goodwin (chaired by Peter Taylor 
until 31st October 2013). 

 

Integrated Governance and Assurance Committee 

The Committee is chaired by Non-
executive Director Philip Beesley, and 
includes two other Non-executive 
Directors (including the Chair of the Audit 
Committee) and all the Executive 
Directors. 

The Integrated Governance Assurance 
Committee has a duty to ensure that the 
Trust’s governance systems, behaviours 

and processes relating to risk 
management, clinical and non-clinical 
governance, and the achievement of 
organisational objectives are effective, and 
provide the Board with the assurance 
required to govern effectively. The 
Committee works in association with the 
Audit Committee in matters of corporate 
governance. 

 

Strategy Committee  

The Committee is chaired by the Trust 
Chairman and membership includes the 
chairman of the Finance Committee and 
one other Non-Executive Director plus the 
Chief Executive, the Director of Finance 
and Information and the Medical Director. 
All other Board members are invited to 

attend the Committee but do not form part 
of the quorum. 

The Committee’s role is to take a longer 
term view and formulate strategy for the 
organisation including major service 
developments, partnerships, mergers and 
acquisitions.  

Workforce and Organisational Development Committee  

The Committee is chaired by Non-
executive Director, Sue Ells and 
membership includes two other Non-
executive directors plus the Chief 
Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive, the 
Director of Workforce Transformation, the 
Chief Nurse, Medical Director and Chief of 
Patient Safety.  

The Committee’s role is to provide 
assurance to the Board on workforce 
supply and demand, the development and 

delivery of the Trust’s workforce, 
organisational development, education 
and training and employee wellbeing 
strategies and a detailed review and 
challenge of the workforce and 
organisational development aspects of the 
Board Assurance Framework. 
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Details of Directors’ membership of the other Board sub committees and  the number of meetings they attended are (including attendance at 
formal Council of Governors meetings): 

  Audit 

Committee 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Finance 

Committee 

Integrated Governance 

and Assurance Committee 

Nominations 

Committee 

Strategy Committee 

Member of/in attendance 

Workforce & Organisational 

Development Committee 

Council of Governors 

(in attendance) 

Valerie Bartlett n/a n/a 3 of 11 4 of 11 n/a 8 of 10 1 of 4 4 of 4 

Philip Beesley n/a n/a n/a 10 of 11 n/a 9 of 10 3 of 4 2 of 4 

Raj Bhamber* n/a n/a n/a 1 of 1 n/a 0 of 1 n/a 0 of 0 

Sue Ells n/a 1 of 1 n/a n/a 1 of 1 9 of 10 4 of 4 3 of 4 

David Fluck n/a n/a n/a 7 of 11 n/a 7 of 10 2 of 4 2 of 4 

Jim Gollan 4 of 5 n/a 11 of 11 n/a n/a 6 of 10 n/a 3 of 4 

Clive Goodwin 1 of 1 1 of 1 9 of 11 n/a 1 of 1 7 of 10 n/a 1 of 4 

Andrew Liles n/a n/a n/a 9 of 11 n/a 10 of 10 3 of 4 3 of 4 

Simon Marshall n/a n/a 11 of 11 7 of 11 n/a 9 of 10 n/a 4 of 4 

Louise 

McKenzie** 

n/a 
n/a n/a 6 of 10 n/a 

8 of 9 4 of 4 
3 of 4 

Aileen McLeish n/a 1 of 1 n/a n/a 1 of 1 9 of 10 n/a 4 of 4 

Terry Price 5 of 5 n/a 4 of 4 10 of 11 n/a 8 of 10 n/a 4 of 4 

Suzanne Rankin n/a n/a n/a 10 of 11 n/a 8 of 10 2 of 4 4 of 4 

Carolyn 

Simons*** 

n/a 
n/a n/a 2 of 2 n/a 

4 of 4 1 of 1 
2 of 2 

Peter Taylor**** 2 of 3 1 of 1 5 of 6 n/a 1 of 1 6 of 6 n/a 2 of 2 
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Council of Governors 

How the Board of Directors and the Council of Gover nors operate 

The Board recognises the value and 
importance of engaging with Governors in 
order that the Governors may properly 
fulfil their role as a conduit between the 
Board and Ashford and St. Peter’s 
Hospitals’ stakeholders.  

The Board of Directors is responsible for 
the effective running of the organisation, 
whilst the Council of Governors holds the 
Non-Executive Directors to account for the 
performance of the Board. The Council 
does not delegate any of its statutory 
decision making to its committees or 
individual Governors, since the 
Constitution provides for committees to 
undertake advisory work only, with all 
decisions requiring ratification in a general 
Council meeting. 

In addition to the role of listening to, and 
reflecting back, the views of the 
membership to the Board and vice versa, 
the Council of Governors exercises 
statutory duties enshrined in law. These 

include the appointment of, and, if 
necessary, the removal of Non-Executive 
Directors and determining their 
remuneration. The Council also appoints 
the External Auditor, and ratifies the 
appointment of the Chief Executive. The 
Council approves any changes to the 
Trust Constitution and any significant 
transactions the Trust may wish to enter 
into as defined within the Constitution. The 
Council has the right to be presented with 
the Annual Report and Accounts and to be 
consulted on forward plans being made by 
the Board. These roles provide a clear 
context for the Board to run the Trust, the 
execution of which is achieved through the 
Chief Executive and his Executive Team.  

The Governors have been consulted on 
the development of the Annual Plan 
2014/15 at two workshops held in October 
2013 and February 2014. Governors have 
also been involved in agreeing the 
priorities for the Quality Accounts. 

 

Understanding the views of the Council and Members 

Engagement by the Board with Governors 
takes many forms. In 2012/13 the Board 
and Governors further developed their 
working relationship with agreement that 
each of the Council meetings would focus 
on a Trust Strategic Objective providing a 
more in-depth discussion on the key 
priorities of the Trust moving forwards. In 
2013/14 this working relationship has 
been built on with constructive discussion 
on a number of matters both in and out of 
Council meeting. As well as the quarterly 
Council meetings the Board and 
Governors also meet at least twice a year 
to discuss strategic issues and input into 
the Trust business plan. 

There are regular seminars and informal 
meetings open to all Governors and 
hosted by the Chairman and Chief 
Executive. All Governors have a ‘buddy’ 
Director who is available as a point of 
contact to advise and support in addition 
to that routinely offered by the 
Membership Office. 

All Directors are encouraged to attend the 
Council of Governors’ formal meetings. 
Governors have continued to take up the 
opportunity to attend the open Board 
meetings.
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Composition of the Council 

There are 27 Governors including: 

� 17 public governors covering 8 
constituencies; 

� five staff governors covering five 
staff constituencies; and 

� five appointed governors from 
partnership organisations. 

The Chairman of the Board is also the 
Chairman of the Council of Governors. 
The Council of Governors re-appointed 
David Frank (Public Governor for Surrey 
Heath) as the Lead Governor in December 
2013 for a further two year period. 

The Council meets formally four times 
each year.  Details of the membership of 
the Council and the attendance of 
Governors are included in the table 
‘Register of Governors’. Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors are also invited to 
attend the Council meetings. 

Governors’ initial terms of office started 
from the day that the Trust was authorised 
as a Foundation Trust; 1st December 
2010. Both the elected and appointed 
Governors hold office for three years but 
for the initial period seven Governors were 
appointed for two years to ensure that not 
all Council members were due for re-
election/appointment at the same date. 

Election to these seven Council seats took 
place in October 2012. Further elections 
were due for 15 seats in October 2013. 
Successful candidates were elected for a 
three year term of office commencing on 
1st December 2013 until 30th November 
2016. Eight Governors were elected for a 
further three year term uncontested. 
Elections were held for the following 
constituencies: 

 

Constituency  Date of election  Total eligible to vote  Turnout (%)  

 

Spelthorne 24th October 2013 1,682 32.3% 

Trust Volunteers 24th October 2013 295 37.6% 

Woking & Guildford 24th October 2013 2,061 31.8% 

 

We would particularly like to acknowledge 
the contribution made by all Governors 
who stood down in 2013: public Governor 
for Hounslow, Michele Low; public 
Governor for Spelthorne, Linda Abbot; 
public Governor for Woking, Dr Howard 
Manuel, and staff Governor (Volunteers) 
Diana Manthorpe.  Since the year end 
Susan Lockwood, public Governor for 
Runnymede has resigned with effect from 
1st July 2013 as she is moving out of the 
area. 

In early 2013 the Council of Governors 
and Board of Directors approved changes 
to the publically elected composition of the 
Council based on out-patient attendances 
to ensure adequate representation. This 
resulted in an additional two seats in the 
constituency of Elmbridge and one less 
seat for the newly merged constituencies 
of Woking and Guildford. These changes 
took effect from 1st December 2013 
following the elections held in October 
2013. 
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Access to the Register of Interests 

All Governors are required to comply with 
the Trust’s code of conduct and declare 
any interests that may result in a potential 
conflict of interest in their role as Governor 
of the Trust. Members of the public can 
gain access to the Register of Governors’ 

Interests by making a request via the Trust 
secretary, at St Peter’s Hospital, Guildford 
Rd, Chertsey, KT16 0PZ , or via email 
george.roe@asph.nhs.uk or by telephone 
on 01932 723110. 

 

Contacting a Governor 

Members who wish to contact their 
Governor can do this via the membership 
office at St Peter’s Hospital, Guildford 
Road, Chertsey, KT16 0PZ or calling 

01932 723110. In addition, a special e-
based communication form is available via 
www.ashfordstpeters.nhs.uk  

 

Statutory Council of Governors’ Committees 

The Council of Governors has two Committees carrying out specific statutory duties. Details 
are given below. 

1. Nomination and Appointments Committee  

The Nominations and Appointments 
Committee has been established to 
provide the Council of Governors with 
independent and objective 
recommendations in respect of the names 
of those individuals they consider suitable 
for appointment as Non-Executive Director 
to the Board of Directors. 

The Committee met on three occasions 
during 2013/14 recommending to the 
Council the re-appointment of two Non-
Executive Directors: Jim Gollan and Clive 
Goodwin and the appointment of Carolyn 
Simons as Non-executive Director. 

Membership and attendance is given below: 

Nominations and                                             
Appointments Committee  

Meetings attended  

Maurice Cohen (Public Governor – Woking) 1 of 3 

Godfrey Freemantle (Public Governor – Hounslow) 3 of 3 

Sue Harris (Staff Governor – Nursing and 
Midwifery)* 

2 of 2 

Chris Howorth (Appointed Governor – Royal 
Holloway) 

2 of 3 

Steve McCarthy (Public Governor – Spelthorne) 2 of 3 
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Aileen McLeish (Trust and Committee Chairman) 3 of 3 

Diana Manthorpe (Staff Governor – Volunteers)** 1 of 2 

Peter Taylor (Senior Independent Director)*** 1 of 2 

*Joined Committee in June 2013 
**Term ended 30th November 2013  
***Retired 31st October 2013 

 

2. Remuneration and Appraisal Committee 

The Remuneration and Appraisal 
Committee has been set up to make 
recommendations to the Council of 
Governors concerning the remuneration 
and terms of appointment of any Non-
Executive Director and to endorse their 
appraisals. 

The Committee met three times in 
2013/14 reviewing the outcomes of the 
year end appraisals for 2012/13 and the 
mid-year 2013/14 reviews for Clive 
Goodwin and Jim Gollan.  

 

Membership and attendance is given below: 

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee  Meetings attended 

David Frank (Lead Governor and Committee Chairman, 
Public Governor – Surrey Heath) 

3 of 3 

Margaret Lenton (Public Governor – Windsor and 
Maidenhead) 

2 of 3 

Michèle Low (Public Governor – Hounslow)* 2 of 2 

Hugh Meares (Appointed Governor - Runnymede 
Borough Council) 

2 of 3 

Barbara Mogensen (Public Governor – Elmbridge)** 1 of 1 

Paul Wills (Staff Governor - Healthcare Assistants / 
Allied Health Professionals / Healthcare Scientists) 

3 of 3 

*Term ended 30th November 2013  
**Joined Committee in December 2013 
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Foundation Trust membership 

Members fall into two constituencies: 

Public Constituency; anyone living in the 
Boroughs of Elmbridge, Runnymede, 
Spelthorne, Woking and parts of the 
following Boroughs; Guildford, Hounslow, 
Richmond upon Thames Surrey Heath 
and Windsor and Maidenhead. These 9 
‘areas’ (as of 1st December 2013 Woking 
and Guildford are one constituency) are 
defined by electoral wards, each of which 
can elect one or more Governors as set 
out in the Constitution. Full details of the 
electoral wards included can be viewed on 
the Trust’s website. 

 

 

Staff Constituency; any permanent 
member of staff, including registered 
volunteers, can be a staff member. There 
are five classes which each elect one 
Governor; nursing and midwifery, medical 
and dental, 
ancillary/admin/clerical/managerial, allied 
health professionals and volunteers. Staff 
are automatically members unless they 
decide to opt out. 

Membership numbers as at 31 March 
2014 

Public: 6,777  

Staff:  3,522  

Total:  10,299  

 

Developing our membership  

The Membership and Community 
Engagement Group of the Council of 
Governors was set up in March 2011 and 
leads on developing and implementing  
the Membership Strategy together with 
improving two way communications 
between Governors and members.  The 
Strategy was reviewed in early 2013 and 
contains targets for membership with a 
particular focus on areas where we know 
the Trust needs to develop a more 
representative membership:- 

•••• To increase membership in the 
marginally underrepresented areas 
of Elmbridge and Hounslow; and 

•••• To increase membership in the 14-
16 age group. 

In addressing these priorities, the Trust 
continues to be mindful of hard to reach 
groups.  The first student event was 
arranged in October 2013 with students 
from local schools being invited to attend 
presentations from staff from various 

areas of the hospital.  This enabled further 
recruitment from the 14 – 16 age group. 

The Group has been keen to encourage 
membership engagement activities and 
also considers ways of facilitating two way 
communications with members.  All 
Governors send a personalised annual 
report to their constituents and feedback is 
also encouraged through the Governor 
contact form on the Trust’s website and 
via personal communications either written 
or spoken. The Trust holds a number of 
Members’ Health Events throughout the 
year which provide a presentation and 
question and answer session on a number 
of health-related topics.  Events held 
between April 2013 and March 2014 
focussed on Diet and Nutrition, Weight-
loss Surgery, Maternity, Students, 
Vascular Surgery and Eye Treatments and 
Surgery. The Trust receives extremely 
positive feedback on the content of these 
events and the opportunity it provides for 
Members to converse with Governors.  
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The Trust piloted a number of different 
engagement strategies in 2013/14 to 
reach out to members. In February 2014 
the Trust conducted an electronic survey 
which was sent to those members in 
Spelthorne who the Trust holds e-mail 
addresses for (772) requesting feedback 
on various aspects of their recent 
experience with the hospitals.  90 
responded (12%) with the results being 

discussed at the Governors’ Patient 
Experience Group. In March 2014 the 
Trust also held a drop in session for 
Runnymede members to meet their 
elected Governors at a local town hall. 
Whilst this event was well publicised it 
highlighted to the Trust that this was not a 
suitable method of engagement as the 
event was not well attended.   

 

 

Register of Council of Governors  

 Name (Constituency / Organisation) 
Date elected or 

appointed 
Term of 
office 

Meetings            
attended 

Ms Linda Abbott (Public – Spelthorne) 1st Dec 2010 
3 Years to 
30/11/13 

2 of 2 

Mr Roderick Archer (Public – Elmbridge) 1st Dec 2013 
3 Years to 
30/11/16 

2 of 2 

Mr Simon Bhadye (Public – Spelthorne) 
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

3 of 4 

Mr Keith Bradley (Public – Woking) 
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Mr Brian Catt (Public – Spelthorne) 
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
To 30/11/16 

3 of 4 

Dr Maurice Cohen (Public – Woking)  
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

3 of 4 

Mr Richard Docketty (Staff – Volunteers) 1st Dec 2013 
3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

2 of 2 

Mr David Frank (Public – Surrey Heath)  
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Mr Godfrey Freemantle (Public – Hounslow)  
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Dr Ann Gallagher (Stakeholder – University of 
Surrey) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

2 of 4 

Mr Keith Goodger (Public – Richmond) 
1st Dec 2012 
(2nd term) 

3 Years to 
30/11/15 

3 of 4 

Mr Arun Gupta (Staff – Medical and Dental ) 1st Dec 2012 
3 Years to 
30/11/15 

4 of 4 

Mrs Sue Harris (Staff- Nursing and Midwifery) 
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

4 of 4 
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 Name (Constituency / Organisation) 
Date elected or 

appointed 
Term of 
office 

Meetings            
attended 

Mr Chris Howorth (Stakeholder – Royal 
Holloway University of London) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term)  

3 Years 
to 30/11/16  

4 of 4 

Mrs Samantha Lamb (Staff – Admin and 
Clerical / Ancillary) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

2 of 4 

Mrs Margaret Lenton (Public – Windsor and 
Maidenhead) 

1st Dec 2012 
(2nd term) 

3 Years to 
30/11/15 

4 of 4 

Mrs Susan Lockwood (Public – Runnymede) 1st Dec 2012 
3 Years 
to 30/11/15 

4 of 4 

Ms Michèle Low (Public – Hounslow)  1st Dec 2010 
3 Years to 
30/11/13 

2 of 2 

Mr Steve McCarthy (Public – Elmbridge) 
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Mrs Diana Manthorpe (Staff – Volunteers)  1st Dec 2010 
3 Years 
to 30/11/13 

2 of 4 

Dr Howard Manuel (Public – Woking) 1st Dec 2010 
3 Years 
to 30/11/13 

2 of 2 

Cllr. Hugh Meares (Stakeholder – Runnymede 
Borough Council)  

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

3 of 4 

Ms Barbara Mogensen (Public – Elmbridge) 1st Dec 2013 
3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

2 of 2 

Mrs Judith Moore (Public – Guildford) 
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Cllr. Jean Pinkerton (Stakeholder – Spelthorne 
Borough Council) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Mr Andrew Ryland (Public – Runnymede) 
1st Dec 2012 
(2nd term) 

3 Years to 
30/11/15 

3 of 4 

Ms Denise Saliagopoulos (Public – Spelthorne) 1st Dec 2013 
3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

1 of 2 

Cllr. Michael Smith (Stakeholder - Woking 
Borough Council) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

1 of 4 

Mr Bhupendra Vyas (Public – Hounslow) 1st Dec 2013 
3 Years 
to 30/11/16 

0 of 2 

Mrs Tracy Ward (Public – Runnymede) 1st Dec 2012 
3 Years 
to 30/11/15 

3 of 4 

Ms Linda Abbott (Public – Spelthorne) 1st Dec 2010 
3 Years to 
30/11/13 

2 of 2 
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 5. Financial Report and Accounts  
 

 

Financial review 
 
For the year to 31 March 2014 the Trust achieved a surplus of £1.4m against a plan of 
£3.0m. An analysis is set out below – this is in the format reported to Monitor as part of the 
Compliance Framework and as such differs slightly from the Annual Accounts analysis. 
 
 2013/14 2012/13 
 Plan 

£m 
Actual  

£m 
Var 
£m 

Plan 
£m 

Actual  
£m 

Var 
£m 

Income  
Clinical Income  
Non-Clinical Income 

 
216.5 
16.1 

 
229.1 
16.6 

 
12.6 
0.5 

 
208.6 
17.2 

 
216.1 
16.1 

 
7.5 

-1.1 

Total Income  232.6 245.7 13.1 225.8 232.2 6.4 
Expenses  
Pay Costs  
Non-Pay Costs 

 
-143.2 
-72.0 

 
-150.7 
-79.9 

 
-7.5 
-7.9 

 

 
-138.1 
-70.7 

 
-141.7 
-74.2 

 
-3.6 
-3.5 

 
Total Expenses  -215.2 -230.6 -15.4 -208.8 -215.9 -7.1 
EBITDA  17.4 15.1 -2.3 17.0 16.3 -0.7 
Depreciation & Amortisation 
Impairments 
Charitable contributions 
Interest (net) 
Dividend on PDC 

-8.9 
-0.5 
0.2 

-0.1 
-5.1 

-8.6 
- 

0.2 
-0.2 
-5.1 

0.3 
0.5 

- 
-0.1 

- 

-8.0 
-1.0 
0.2 

-0.1 
-4.8 

-8.0 
- 

0.1 
-0.1 
-4.9 

- 
1.0 

-0.1 
- 

-0.1 

       

Net surplus  3.0 1.4 -1.6 3.3 3.4 0.1 

 

Key movements year on year are set out 
below:  

•••• NHS clinical income increased by 
£13.0m (6.0%) year on year, 
despite a decrease in the national 
Payment by Results tariff for 
2013/14. The largest increase in 
NHS clinical income occurred in 
elective activity which increased by 
£4.5m (9.0%). 

•••• Pay costs were £9.0m (6.4%) 
higher than 2012/13. Reductions 
from cost improvement 

programmes were offset by the 
costs of meeting the increased 
activity levels (in general, 
increased activity has been 
covered by using agency staff 
which incur a premium) and 
incremental pay awards. In 
addition high cost medical agency 
generated an overspend in the 
Trust’s Accident & Emergency 
department as the Trust looked to 
improve its emergency pathway 
and performance against the A&E 
target.  
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•••• Non-pay costs were £5.7m (7.7%) 
higher than 2012/13 which was 
mainly in clinical supplies used in 
delivering the additional income, as 
well as slippage in some cost 
improvement schemes and 
outsourcing to address 18 week 
pathway issues. Drug costs were 
up £2.4m (15.9%), in part due to 
activity, and also due to an 
increase in authorised excluded 
drug costs, which are directly 
recovered through income at full 
cost. In addition the Trust procured 
intermediate care beds in the 
community on behalf of our host 
CCG at a cost of £0.7m. 

 

•••• The above led to a decreased 
EBITDA performance which 
reduced by £1.2m (7.4%) year on 
year. The EBITDA margin is now 
6.2% compared to 7.0% in 
2012/13. 

Income from the provision of goods and 
services for the purpose of health services 
in England exceeded income from the 
provision of other services. Income from 
other services is used to support health 
services at the Trust. Further details on 
income can be found in notes 3 and 4 of 
the Annual Accounts which follow later on 
in this Annual Report. 

 The cost improvement programme (CIP) 
delivered £10.1m of savings in 2013/14 
against a plan of £11.8m, with slippage 
occurring in procurement CIP’s as well as 
agency CIP’s not achieving due to 
additional activity having to be met. 

The Trust spent £15.7m on purchased 
capital during the period compared to 
£9.0m in 2012/13. The major areas of 
investment were:  

•••• cardiac catheterisation lab and 
equipment £2.2m; 

•••• replacing imaging equipment 
£2.1m; 

•••• energy efficiency £1.6m; 

•••• construction of a midwifery led unit 
(opened May 2014) £1.4m; and 

•••• completion of the Ashford Hospital 
outpatients refurbishment £1.1m. 

The majority of the capital programme was 
funded by internally generated resources; 
however the Trust also entered into some 
finance leases and also received £1.6m of 
Department of Health funding for the 
energy efficiency scheme. 

Cash balances fluctuated throughout the 
financial year as the Trust over-performed 
in activity terms, incurring costs, but did 
not receive payment for the bulk of this 
over-performance until March 2014. The 
Trust ended the financial year with a cash 
balance of £11.1m. 

Monitor implemented a Risk Assessment 
Framework on 1 October 2013 to replace 
the previous Compliance Framework. As a 
result of this the Financial Risk Rating was 
also replaced by the Continuity of Service 
Risk Rating. The Trust’s financial 
performance for the whole of the 2013/14 
financial year was given a Continuity of 
Service Risk Rating of 3, against a plan of 
4. The Continuity of Service Risk Ratings 
are given between 1 and 4, where 4 is ‘low 
risk’. The metrics making up this rating are 
set out in the table below along with the 
measure for 2012/13 under the old 
system. 
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2013/14 

 
2012/13 

  
Metric  

 
Score  

 

  
Metric 

 
Score  

      
Debt Service Cover (50%) 2.47x 3 EBITDA margin (%) 7.0% 3 
Liquidity (50%) (*) -2.4 3 EBITDA against plan (%) 95.9% 4 
   Net return after financing 

(%) 
2.1% 4 

   I&E surplus margin (%) 1.4% 3 
   Liquidity ratio (days) 23.3 3 
      
Weighted score  3.0 Weighted score  3.3 
      
Continuity of Service Risk 
Rating 

 3 Financial Risk Rating  3 

      
* Liquidity ratios are calculated and measured differently under each framework 

 

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this 
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts. 
 

2014/15 Plan 

The 2014/15 financial year will provide further challenges for the Trust as the economic 
climate gets tougher, public finances tighten further and activity levels and complexity 
continue to increase. The Trust Board has approved and submitted to Monitor an annual 
budget that will deliver a surplus of £1.5m on planned income of £250.4m and a cost 
improvement programme of £14.9m. 

This will deliver a Continuity of Service Risk Rating of 3. 
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Remuneration Report 
 

Remuneration Committee and Policy on Remuneration o f Senior Managers 

The Remuneration Committee consists of 
four Non-Executive Directors chaired by 
Senior Independent Director, Clive 
Goodwin and attended by Aileen McLeish, 
Sue Ells and Carolyn Simons. The 
previous Senior Independent Director, 
Peter Taylor, left in October 2013. The 
Committee met once during this reporting 
period with attendance set out on page 
152. 

The Remuneration Committee sets the 
policy, and the level, for remuneration and 
terms and conditions of the Executive 
Directors of the Trust. The Committee 
receives an annual report on the 

performance of Executive Directors. 
Mindful of its duties in managing public 
funds its policy is set to balance the need 
to appoint and retain Executive Directors 
within the Trust. In doing so it considers 
benchmarked information from external 
consultants where required. All Executive 
Directors contracts were open-ended with 
notice periods of three to six months. 
There were no contracts containing a 
provision for compensation over and 
above legal entitlement for early 
termination. During 2013/14 all Executive 
Directors were paid through the Trust’s 
payroll. 

 

Remuneration of Chairman and Non-Executive Director s 

The remuneration of the Chairman and 
Non-Executive Directors is agreed by the 
Council of Governors following review by 

its Remuneration and Appraisal 
Committee. Details of this Committee               
are set out on page 156. 

 

Expenses  

In 2013/14 the Trust paid out a total of 
£4,586 (2012/13 - £6,709) in expense 
payments to 8 (2012/13 - 10) Trust Board 
members. Further analysis of these 
expenses by Trust Board member is 
available on the Trust website at 
www.ashfordstpeters.nhs.uk/about-
us/about-the-trust/trust-board. 
 
The role of Governor of a Foundation 
Trust is voluntary but the NHS Act and the 

Constitution states that the Trust ‘may pay 
travelling and other expenses to members 
of the Council of Governors at rates 
decided by the Trust’. The Trust has a 
policy on such reimbursement and this 
was last reviewed and approved in March 
2012. In 2013/14 a total of £1,172 
(2012/13 - £712) was paid out in such 
expenses to 9 (2012/13 – 5) Governors. 

 

Median Salary 

The median remuneration of the Trust is 
£27,901 (2012/13 £26,556). This 
calculation is based on the full-time 
equivalent staff of the Trust on an 
annualised basis. The median is the total 

remuneration of the staff member lying in 
the middle of a linear distribution of the 
total staff of the Trust. Remuneration 
includes all aspects of pay and excludes 
employers’ pension contributions. 
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The mid-point of the banded remuneration 
of the highest paid Director is £182,500 
(2012/13 - £177,500). 

The ratio between the highest paid 
Director and the median salary is 6.5 
(2012/13 - 6.7). 

 

Salary and pension entitlements of senior managers for the year to 31 March 
2014 

The tables on the next page set out remuneration and pension benefit details for the 
reporting period. 
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A) Remuneration 
 2013-14 2012-13 
Name and Title  Salary  

(bands of 
£5,000) 

 

Other 
Remuneration  

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Benefits  in 
Kind 

(Rounded 
to the 

nearest 
£100) 

All 
pension- 
related 

benefits 
(bands of 

£2,500) 

Total 
(bands of 

£5,000) 

Salary  
(bands of 

£5,000) 
 

Other 
Remuneration  

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Benefits in 
Kind 

(Rounded 
to the 

nearest 
£100) 

All 
pension- 
related 
benefits 

(band s of 
£2,500) 

Total 
(bands of 

£5,000) 

Executive Team  £000 £000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00 £000 £000 
Andrew Liles, Chief Executive 180-185 - 46 30.0-32.5 215-220 175-180 - 36 20.0-22.5 200-205 
John Headley, Director of Finance & Information 
(to 13 May 2012)  

- - - - - 15-20 - 6 0-2.5 15-20 

Simon Marshall, Director of Finance & Information 
(from 14 May 2012) 

125-130 - 28 25.0-27.5 155-160 110-115 - 26 37.5-40.0 150-155 

Dr David Fluck 
Medical Director (from 1 December 2012) 
Acting Medical Director (to 30 November 2012) 

40-45 120-125 - 60.0-62.5 225-230 30-35 130-135 - 30.0-32.5 195-200 

Valerie Bartlett, Deputy Chief Executive 130-135 - 42 25.0-27.5 165-170 130-135 - 32 (2.5)-(5.0) 125-130 
Raj Bhamber 
Director of Workforce and Organisational 
Development (to 6 May 2013) 

10-15 - - 2.5-5.0 10-15 110-115 - - 5.0-7.5 115-120 

Louise McKenzie, Director of Workforce 
Transformation (from 29 April 2013) 

110-115 - 23 27.5-30.0 145-150 - - - - - 

Suzanne Rankin, Chief Nurse  115-120 - 47 - 120-125 110-115 - - - 110-115 
Chairman and Non -Executives            

Aileen McLeish, Chairman 40-45 - - - 40-45 40-45 - - - 40-45 
Peter Taylor 
Non-Executive Director (to 31 October 2013) 

5-10 - - - 5-10 10-15 - - - 10-15 

Carolyn Simons 
Non-Executive Director (from 1 November 2013) 

5-10 - - - 5-10 - - - - - 

Philip Beesley, Non-Executive Director  10-15 - - - 10-15 10-15 - - - 10-15 
Terry Price, Non-Executive Director  10-15 - - - 10-15 10-15 - - - 10-15 
Sue Ells, Non-Executive Director  10-15 - - - 10-15 10-15 - - - 10-15 
Jim Gollan, Non-Executive Director  10-15 - - - 10-15 10-15 - - - 10-15 
Clive Goodwin, Non-Executive Director  10-15 - - - 10-15 10-15 - - - 10-15 

 

a) Amount shown under Other Remuneration for Dr David Fluck relate to medical 
work as a Consultant at the Trust. 

b) Benefits in kind relate to benefits for lease cars (please note that these costs are 
shown in £ hundreds and not £ thousands in line with Monitor guidance). 

c) There were no annual performance-related bonuses paid.   
d) There were no long-term performance-related bonuses paid. 

e) There were no payments for compensation for loss of office. 
f)  Non-Executive Directors waive remuneration due for chairing sub-Committees of 

the Trust Board. No other remuneration was waived by directors, no allowances 
were paid in lieu and there were no payments in respect of golden hello’s. 
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B)  Pension Benefits 

Name and Title  Real increase 
in pension at 

age 60   
 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

Real increase in 
lump sum at 

age 60   
 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

Total accrued 
pension at age 

60 at  
31 March 2014 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Lump sum at 
age 60 related 

to accrued 
pension at  
31 March 

2014 
(bands of 

£5,000) 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 
Value at 

1 April 2013 
 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 
Value at  
31 March 

2014 
 

Real 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 
in  

Cash 
Equivalent  
Transfer 

Value 

Employer’s 
Contribution 

to 
Stakeholder 

Pension 
(to nearest 

£100) 
 

Executive Team  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00 
         
Andrew Liles  2.5-5.0 7.5-10.0 35-40 110-115 556 628 21 - 
Chief Executive         
Simon Marshall 
Director of Finance & Information  

0.0-2.5 5.0-7.5 15-20 55-60 236 284 18 - 

Dr David Fluck 
Medical Director  

5.0-7.5 15.0-17.5 60-65 180-185 994 1,147 51 - 

Valerie Bartlett 
Deputy Chief Executive  

0.0-2.5 5.0-7.5 40-45 130-135 726 807 21 - 

Raj Bhamber 
Director of Workforce and Organisational Development 
(to 6 May 2013) 

0.0-2.5 0.0-2.5 20-25 65-70 327 391 2 - 

Louise McKenzie 
Director of Workforce Transformation (from 29 April 
2013) 

2.5-5.0 7.5-10.0 25-30 75-80 313 370 18 - 

Suzanne Rankin 
Chief Nurse  

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - 

 
Notes: 

a) Suzanne Rankin opted out of the NHS Pension scheme on 1 November 2011. 
b) As Non-Executive Directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive Directors. 
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Cash Equivalent Transfer Values 

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) 
is the actuarially assessed capital value of 
the pension scheme benefits accrued by a 
member at a particular point in time. The 
benefits valued are the member’s accrued 
benefits and any contingent spouse’s 
pension payable from the scheme.  A 
CETV is a payment made by a pension 
scheme, or arrangement to secure 
pension benefits in another pension 
scheme or arrangement when the member 
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer 
the benefits accrued in their former 
scheme.  The pension figures shown 
relate to the benefits that the individual 
has accrued as a consequence of their 

total membership of the pension scheme, 
not just their service in a senior capacity to 
which the disclosure applies.  The CETV 
figures and other pension details include 
the value of any pension benefits in 
another scheme or arrangement which the 
individual has transferred to the NHS 
pension scheme.  They also include any 
additional pension benefit accrued to the 
member as a result of their purchasing 
additional years of pension service in the 
scheme at their own cost.  CETVs are 
calculated within the guidelines and 
framework prescribed by the Institute and 
Faculty of Actuaries. 

 

Real Increase in CETV 

This reflects the increase in CETV 
effectively funded by the employer.  It 
takes account of the increase in accrued 
pension due to inflation, contributions paid 
by the employee (including the value of 

any benefits transferred from another 
pension scheme or arrangement) and 
uses common market valuation factors for 
the start and end of the period. 

 

Off Payroll Engagements 

As a result of the Review of Tax 
Arrangements of Public Sector appointees 
published by the Chief Secretary to the 
Treasury in 2012, the Trust is required to 
disclose the number of off-payroll 
engagements at a cost of over £220 per 
day and which last for longer than six 
months. Disclosures are set out in the 
tables below. 

For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 
March 2014, for more than £220 per day 
and that last longer than six months: 

 

 

 

 

Off Payroll Engagements No 

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2014 8 
Of which, the number that have existed:  
   for less than one year at the time of reporting 1 
   for between one and two years at the time of reporting 3 
   for between two and three years at the time of reporting 3 
   for between three and four years at the time of reporting 1 
   for four or more years at the time of reporting - 



 

168 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

All existing off-payroll engagements have 
at some point been subject to risk 
assessment as to whether assurance is 
required that the individual is paying the 

right amount of tax, and where necessary, 
that assurance is being sought. 
 

 

 

 

 No 
 

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, 
between 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 4 

Number of new engagements which include contractual clauses giving the 
Trust the right to request assurance in relation to income tax and National 
Insurance obligations 

- 

Number for whom assurance has been requested 2 
Of which:  
   assurance has been received - 
   assurance has not been received 2 
   Engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being received - 

 

During the financial year one of these four transferred to the Trust’s payroll and a second 
ceased working for the Trust. Assurance is being sought from the remaining two, but hadn’t 
been received at the time of this report. 
 

All Trust Board members were paid through the Trust’s payroll. 

 

 

 

 

 

Andrew Liles 
Accounting Officer 
27 May 2014 
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Statement of the Chief Executive’s Responsibilities  as the 
Accounting Officer of Ashford and St Peter’s Hospit als NHS 
Foundation Trust 
 

The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief 
Executive is the Accounting Officer of the 
NHS Foundation Trust. The relevant 
responsibilities of the accounting officer, 
including their responsibility for the propriety 
and regularity of public finances for which 
they are answerable, and for the keeping of 
proper accounts, are set out in the NHS 
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer 
Memorandum issued by Monitor. 
 
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has 
directed Ashford and St. Peter’s Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust to prepare for each 
financial year a statement of accounts in the 
form and on the basis set out in the Accounts 
Direction. The accounts are prepared on an 
accruals basis and must give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of Ashford and St. 
Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and 
of its income and expenditure, total 
recognised gains and losses and cash flows 
for the financial year. 

 
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the 
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to: 
 

•••• observe the Accounts Direction 
issued by Monitor, including the 
relevant accounting and disclosure 
requirements, and apply suitable 
accounting policies on a consistent 
basis; 

•••• make judgements and estimates on a 
reasonable basis; 

•••• state whether applicable accounting 
standards as set out in the NHS 

Foundation Trust Annual Reporting 
Manual have been followed, and 
disclose and explain any material 
departures in the financial statements;  

•••• ensure that the use of public funds 
complies with the relevant legislation, 
delegated authorities and guidance; 
and 

•••• prepare the financial statements on a 
going concern basis. 

 
The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS Foundation Trust and to enable 
him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act. 
The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS Foundation 
Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 
 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in 
Monitor's NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum. 
 

 
Andrew Liles, Chief Executive, 27 May 2014 
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Annual Governance  Statement 2013/14 

Scope of responsibility 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility 
for maintaining a sound system of internal 
control that supports the achievement of the 
NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims and 
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public 
funds and departmental assets for which I am 
personally responsible, in accordance with the 
responsibilities assigned to me. I am also 

responsible for ensuring that the NHS 
Foundation Trust is administered prudently 
and economically and that resources are 
applied efficiently and effectively. I also 
acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in 
the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer 
Memorandum. 

The purpose of the system of internal control 

The system of internal control is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level rather than 
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives; it can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The 
system of internal control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to identify and 
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the 
policies, aims and objectives of Ashford and 

St. Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, to 
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being 
realised and the impact should they be 
realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically. The system of 
internal control has been in place in Ashford 
and St. Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 
up to the date of approval of the annual 
report and accounts. 

Capacity to handle risk 

Risk Management is a corporate responsibility 
and the Trust Board has ultimate responsibility 
for ensuring that effective processes are in 
place. The Trust Board is committed to the 
continuous development of a framework to 
manage risks in a structured and focused way 
in order to protect patients, staff and the public 
from harm and to protect the Trust from losses 
or damage to its reputation. 

The Trust’s approach to risk is set out in the 
Quality, Safety and Risk Management 
Strategy, which identifies the roles and 
responsibilities of Directors, managers and 
staff in relation to identification and 
management of risks. 

All senior managers and Directors are trained 
in risk management on joining the organisation 
and subsequently on a periodic basis in 

accordance with the Trust’s Mandatory 
Training policy. 

Through the Integrated Governance 
Assurance Committee (IGAC), which is 
chaired by a Non-Executive Director and 
which I attend together with the Chair of the 
Audit Committee, Internal Audit, Executive 
Directors and senior managers, the Trust 
seeks to learn and share good practice 
through rigorous assessment of the Trust Risk 
Register and the Board Assurance 
Framework, and to cascade this information 
both to and from relevant Divisional teams 
through constructive challenge, training and 
support. 
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The risk and control framework 

The current Quality, Safety and Risk 
Management Strategy was the result of an 
extensive review and consultation by senior 
managers, clinicians and staff across the Trust 
in 2012 and is a five year strategy.   

Management decide, taking into account the 
grading of each risk, whether it is appropriate 
to tolerate, transfer, terminate or treat the risk. 
The rating for each risk will be matched to a 
certain level of management within the 
organisation. 

All Divisions monitor their quality and financial 
risks on a monthly basis with IGAC and the 
Trust Board monitoring the high scoring risks 

every three months. A risk assessment matrix 
is used to ensure a consistent approach is 
taken to assessing and responding to risks 
identified. The Trust’s strategic framework is 
based on four key strategic objectives: 

•••• Best Outcomes; 

•••• Excellent Experience; 

•••• Skilled and Motivated Teams; and 

•••• Top Productivity. 

The key risks to delivering these objectives are 
captured within the Board Assurance 
Framework and are as follows: 

 

Ctd overleaf 

 

 

 

Objective 1 - Best Outcomes                                                  
Key Risks  

1.1 If the quality governance and impact assessment processes fail during the design of CIPs this could 
lead to poor quality of care. 

1.2 If divergent and multiple organisational priorities compete with and undermine staff engagement 
leading to a distraction from the focus on high quality care. 

1.3 If there is poor capacity and flow in the emergency pathway and insufficient frequency in senior 
decision making this could result in poor outcomes and patient experience. 

1.4 If the Trust workforce was not appropriately aligned to demand and acuity, agency usage and pay 
costs, resulting in poor patient outcomes. 

Objective 2 - Excellent Experience  
Key Risks  

2.1 The Friends and Family results are not used as a driver for improvement leading to persistently poor 
experience. 

2.2 Lack of awareness of key issues relating to vulnerable groups may lead to compassionless care and 
poor patient experience. 

2.3 If the Trust fails to adopt the culture of a listening, kind and compassionate organisation in dealing with 
complaints then our patients, within the course of their care and treatment, will have a poor 
experience. 

2.4 Administrative delays and cancellations to appointments leading to poor patient experience. 

Objective 3 - Skilled, Motivated Teams  
Key Risks 

3.1 The inability to recruit and retain high calibre staff would lead to lack of skilled and motivated teams. 

3.2 If individuals and teams do not feel valued or motivated resulting in poor patient care and staff 
experience and ineffective team working. 
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All Trust policies undergo a quality impact 
assessment. All Cost Improvement Plans are 
assessed in line with the quality and safety 
impact assessment policy. 

 

The Quality Governance Committee (QGC) 
has responsibility for overseeing progress 
and assurance for clinical quality standards. 
Divisions report to the QGC annually with a 
full report on clinical governance activities. 
The Committee receives quarterly exception 
reports from each Division describing 
variance from the quality plan trajectories 
with quality, experience, workforce and 
safety indicators and an action plan to get 
back on track. The Committee co-ordinates 
relevant benchmarking activities relating to 
key reports from the Care Quality 
Commission. The QGC has responsibility for 
overseeing the Committees or Groups shown 
under the QGC arm of the Quality, Safety 
and Risk Management structure. 

 

The Risk Scrutiny Committee (RSC) has 
responsibility for overseeing the Committees 
or Groups shown in the safety and risk arm 
of the Quality, Safety and Risk Management 
structure. The Committee will ensure 
adequate assurance is provided to IGAC to 
assure the Committee, Audit Committee and 
Trust Board that all regulation requirements 
are being met, or being actioned, where 
appropriate. The Committee reviews 
Divisions’ risk registers at every quarterly 
meeting to provide input into action plans 

and progress, and to ensure risks are 
appropriately mitigated. Where further 
actions are required, the Committee requests 
an update on those actions at the next 
meeting or earlier if required. The RSC has 
responsibility for reviewing the organisation 
wide risk register and providing a level of 
scrutiny and support to ensure risks are 
appropriately mitigated and actions are 
progressing. The RSC has responsibility for 
considering the themes identified from 
incident reporting, and ensuring Divisions 
and Departments’ issues and learning 
relating to clinical incidents are shared 
across the Divisions and wider organisation. 
The Committee ensures that risks identified 
by other safety committees are discussed 
and wider action taken if necessary. This is 
co-ordinated by the Chief of Patient Safety. 

 

IGAC receives reports from the Quality 
Governance Committee, the Risk Scrutiny 
Committee and the Patient Experience 
Monitoring Group. Below this there are 
divisional quality governance meetings, quality 
improvement discussions and specialty level 
performance reviews. These meetings support 
staff engagement and empowerment on 
quality, driving review of data and performance 
and encouraging a quality-focused culture 
throughout the Trust. During the year the Trust 
devolved its quality governance and quality 
improvement functions to the Clinical Divisions 
resulting in each Division having a quality lead 
supported by a quality team. 

Objective 4: Top Productivity  
Key Risks 

 4.1 Poor alignment of the clinical workforce around the Trust’s efficiency improvement programme could 
lead to insufficient productivity. 

4.2 A failure to deliver the clinical quality incentives (CQUINS), the performance standards or to respond to 
the admission thresholds/readmission caps/ambulance turnaround penalties within the 2014/15 
contract leads to an under recovery of income and reduction in productivity. 

4.3 A failure to deliver 2014/15 CIPs to the level required and/or pay and non-pay expenditure exceed 
budget without a compensating increase in income may lead to a reduction in productivity. 

4.4 Financial or service pressures on third party providers of health and social care or commissioners 
cause operational difficulties or to enforcement of contract levers more aggressively than expected 
leading to reduced income and inability to achieve top productivity. 

 



 

173 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Compliance with, and delivery of, the quality 
indicators within Trust contracts is actively 
monitored through a robust process with 
monthly internal scrutiny at a corporate level to 
manage the potential and active risks to 
quality and the delivery of clinical services.  

 

In respect of data quality, the Trust participates 
in the national data assurance audit as part of 
the Payment by Results Data Assurance 
Framework.  This audit provides the Trust with 
assurances about the accuracy of data 
collected and coded.  To ensure compliance 
and the appropriate management of data, the 
Trust has dedicated Data Quality and Clinical 
Coding Teams which proactively engage 
clinicians and clerical staff to encourage best 
practice in data entry and coding. These 
teams also address quality issues and 
processes that are in place to ensure timely 
identification of data quality issues and the 
remedial steps required.  Training on the 
Trust’s Patient Administration System and 
other key systems is mandatory at Induction, 
and is followed up by an ongoing programme 
of training sessions that is available to staff 
throughout the year.   

 

The Trust has a well-developed Information 
Governance Framework to ensure that its 
obligations are discharged appropriately.  
Through the implementation of this 
Framework, the Trust is committed to: 

•••• establish an environment that 
facilitates the secure sharing, 
protection, preservation and availability 
of person identifiable and corporation 
information; and 

•••• deliver a set of rules, measures and 
procedures that determine the 
physical, procedural and logical 
security controls imposed on the 
management, distribution and 
protection of assets. 

 

The Trust has established governance 
arrangements to manage risks to data. The 
Information Governance Steering Group 
(IGSG) is responsible for all aspects of 
Information Governance. The Group reports, 
through the RSC, to IGAC and, ultimately, the 
Trust Board.   

 

There are clear lines of accountability from the 
Chief Executive through all levels of staff and 
externally with our third party suppliers. 
Compliance with the Trust’s Information 
Governance Framework is compulsory.  All 
staff are required to undertake Information 
Governance training annually either through 
face to face or online training.  Any data 
related incidents are reported through the 
Trust’s existing incident management process. 

 

The Trust annually undertakes a self-
assessment of compliance and supporting 
evidence against the 45 standards contained 
in the NHS Information Governance Toolkit. 
This self-assessment and evidence is 
independently scrutinised and verified by 
Internal Audit to provide assurances to the 
Trust Board on compliance. The Trust 
achieved Level 2 and above across all 45 
requirements.  

 

The Foundation Trust is fully compliant with 
the registration requirements of the Care 
Quality Commission. 

 

As an employer with staff entitled to 
membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, 
control measures are in place to ensure all 
employer obligations contained within the 
Scheme regulations are complied with. This 
includes ensuring that deductions from salary, 
employer’s contributions and payments into 
the Scheme are in accordance with the 
Scheme rules, and that member Pension 
Scheme records are accurately updated in 
accordance with the timescales detailed in 
the Regulations. 



 

174 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

 

Control measures are in place to ensure that 
all the organisation’s obligations under 
equality, diversity and human rights 
legislation are complied with. 

 

The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk 
assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery 
Plans are in place in accordance with 

emergency preparedness and civil 
contingency requirements, as based on 
UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure 
that this organisation’s obligations under the 
Climate Change Act and the Adaptation 
Reporting requirements are complied with. 

 

 

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources 

The resources of the Trust are managed 
through various measures, including an 
established and tested budgetary control 
system, the consistent application of internal 
financial controls and effective procurement 
and tendering procedures. 

 

The Finance Committee is a sub-committee 
of the Trust Board and meets monthly, 
chaired by a Non-Executive Director. It 
reviews operational performance and finance 
reports as well as progress against the cost 
improvement programme. The Trust Board 
obtains assurance from the Finance 
Committee in respect of financial and 
budgetary management across the Trust. 

 

Each Division has a Divisional Director who 
is a clinician and who is actively involved in 
the business and devolved financial 
management of clinical services. Divisional 
scorecards are used to assess each 
Divisions performance, at a specialty and 
ward level, and these are reviewed at 
performance reviews held with Executive 
Directors. 

 

The Trust has continued to use and further 
develop Service Line Reporting (SLR) and 
Patient Level Costing during the year and 
there are clinical specialty leads within 
Divisions amongst whose responsibilities is 
the use and review of this data. These leads 
attend the performance reviews where SLR 
data is also discussed.  

 

Business cases and the financial evaluation 
of new investments are reviewed on a 
monthly basis, with subsequent approval by 
the Trust Executive Committee, Finance 
Committee or Trust Board according to the 
Scheme of Delegation. Service line 
information is used in support of clinical 
business cases.  

 

Our Internal Auditors include value for money 
considerations in their audit scope and action 
points. 
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Annual Quality Report 

The Directors are required under the Health 
Act 2009 and the National Health Service 
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as 
amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for 
each financial year. Monitor has issued 
guidance to NHS Foundation Trust boards on 
the form and content of annual Quality 
Reports which incorporate the above legal 
requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust 
Annual Reporting Manual 2013/14. 

The Board is assured that the Quality Report 
presents a balanced view and that there are 
appropriate controls in place to ensure the 
accuracy of data. 

The monthly quality report to the Trust Board 
provides assurance on a small number of key 
quality priorities, both local and national, 
relating to patient safety and experience and 
clinical effectiveness. On a quarterly basis the 
report includes the Quality Account dashboard 
and progress with the key priorities identified 
within the Quality Account. 

Stakeholder scrutiny and review of progress 
occurred during workshop sessions held 
during the year with reports back to the Trust 
Board. Our stakeholders include 
commissioners, governors and patient 
representatives from the Patient Panel. The 
CCG have provided a statement confirming 
that the draft Quality Account has been 
reviewed, that it is a "fair reflection" of the work 
at the Trust and includes the mandatory 
elements required. Further comments indicate 
"an overall accurate account and analysis of 
the quality of services" and that this correlates 

with data supplied by the Trust to the CCG 
during the year and reviewed as part of the 
Trust’s performance contract. 

A range of other reports and dashboards 
enable the Trust Board to monitor 
performance regularly and provide assurance 
on the final outcome data for the year. The 
Balanced Scorecard comprises four quadrants 
covering: quality of patient care and treatment, 
delivering joined-up healthcare, maintaining 
and developing a high performing workforce 
and sustaining financial viability. This 
scorecard is a high level, visual, summary of 
key data and targets; results are seen at a 
glance due to RAG rating — Red (failing), 
Amber (underachieving), Green (delivering or 
exceeding the target). The Trust has also 
purchased services from CHKS to enable 
easy access to key quality and performance 
data. CHKS data is regularly reviewed and 
monitored by the Clinical Outcomes Steering 
Group, chaired by the Medical Director.  

KPMG LLP provides external assurance on the 
Quality Accounts by issuing a limited 
assurance report (limited in scope) on 
compliance with the Regulations (included in 
the Quality Accounts). Data quality and 
accuracy in the Quality Report is also 
subjected to an external audit by KPMG LLP 
as well as by our internal auditors, TIAA.

 

Review of effectiveness 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility 
for reviewing the effectiveness of the system 
of internal control. My review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control 
is informed by the work of the internal 
auditors, clinical audit and the executive 
managers and clinical leads within the NHS 

Foundation Trust who have responsibility for 
the development and maintenance of the 
internal control framework. I have drawn on 
the content of the Quality Report attached to 
this Annual Report and other performance 
information available to me. My review is 
also informed by comments made by the 
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external auditors in their management letter 
and other reports. I have been advised on 
the implications of the result of my review of 
the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control by the Trust Board, the Audit 
Committee and IGAC, and a plan to address 
weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place. 

The following information highlights some of 
the key methods that the Trust Board uses to 
be assured its system of internal control is 
effective.  

The Trust Board  ensures the effectiveness 
of the system of internal control through clear 
accountability and reporting arrangements. 
The Trust Board has reviewed its Standing 
Financial Instructions and Scheme of 
Delegation during the year. 

The Trust Board has reviewed the Board 
Assurance Framework on a quarterly basis 
and also receives regular information from 
IGAC on the operation of the Board 
Assurance Framework. In addition, the Trust 
Board has received regular reports on 
incidents, claims, complaint trends and 
Health and Safety. 

The Trust Board has established the Audit 
Committee and IGAC with specific focus on 
risk management; the Chairs of these 
Committees report to the Trust Board at the 
first available Trust Board meeting after each 
committee meeting. Urgent matters are 
escalated by the Committee chair to the 
Trust Board as deemed appropriate. 

The Audit Committee  is a formal sub-
committee of the Trust Board and is 
accountable to the Trust Board for reviewing 
the establishment and maintenance of an 
effective system of internal control and risk 
management. The Committee meets at least 
four times per year. The Audit Committee 
approves the Annual Audit plans for internal 
and external audit activities and ensures that 
recommendations to improve weaknesses in 
control arising from audits are actioned by 
executive management. The Annual Internal 
Audit Plan enables the Trust Board to be 

reassured that key internal financial controls 
and other matters relating to risk are 
regularly reviewed. During the year, the 
Committee has reviewed internal and 
external audit reports, Local Counter Fraud 
Specialist reports and policies and reviewed 
progress on meeting the requirements of the 
Assurance Framework. 

The Integrated Governance Assurance 
Committee  (IGAC) has a duty to ensure that 
the Trust’s governance systems, behaviours 
and processes relating to risk management, 
clinical and non-clinical governance, and the 
achievement of organisational objectives are 
effective, and provide the Trust Board with 
the assurance required to govern effectively. 
The Committee met 11 times in the year and 
has been reviewing key areas of risk to 
ensure the Trust Board can have sufficient 
assurance. The Committee is supported by a 
range of groups including the Quality 
Governance Committee and Risk Scrutiny 
Committee and Patient Experience 
Monitoring Group. 

Over the year the Committee has reviewed 
progress on compliance with CQC Essential 
Standards and the transfer to the new 
inspection regime and risk rating. 

The Committee is monitoring the progress 
and effectiveness of the Quality, Safety and 
Risk Management Strategy 2012 to 2017. 

The Finance Committee’s  remit is to review 
the financial performance, position, risks and 
decision-making of the Trust. To the Trust 
Board it gives assurance that this process of 
review is satisfactory and draws matters of 
importance to their attention. In 2013/14 the 
Committee’s remit has been widened to 
include review of the Trust’s operational 
performance and the resultant impact on the 
Trust’s financial position. 

Executive Directors  have clear 
responsibilities for internal control and risk 
management within their area of control. 
They also have corporate responsibility as 
Trust Board members. 
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Internal Audit : The Trust has contracted 
with TIAA (formerly Parkhill Internal Audit 
Services) as the providers of internal audit 
services since 1st April 2012.  The contract 
specifies that the delivery of the internal audit 
function will continue to be in compliance 
with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards and those of the Institute of 
Internal Auditors (UK). 

The annual opinion provided by the Head of 
Internal Audit for 2013/14 stated that 
significant assurance  can be given that 
there is a generally sound system of control 
designed to meet the organisation’s 
objectives and that controls are generally 
being applied consistently. 

External agencies:  Our Maternity Services 
continue to hold the highest standard for 
patient safety, CNST Level 3 (Clinical 
Negligence Scheme for Trusts) by the NHS 
Litigation Authority. The process of risk 
accreditation is still under review nationally.  

The Trust is compliant with all CQC Essential 
Standards.  

The Trust failed to meet the four hour waiting 
time target in quarter four 2013/14 and the 
admitted Referral to Treatment Time target in 
quarter three and four of 2013/14. The Trust 
Board has a good understanding of the 
internal control issues which led, in part, to 
these failures and the actions in place to 
address them. Detailed action plans have 
been agreed with our Commissioners 
alongside trajectories to achievement with 
performance against trajectories being 
reported to the Trust Board on a monthly 
basis. Despite failure of the admitted Referral 
to Treatment Time target in quarter three of 
2013/14 Monitor issued the Trust with a 
green governance risk rating following their 
quarter three review in February and March 
2014. 

 
 

 
 

 

Conclusion 

I am reporting two significant internal control issues within the NHS Foundation Trust, being the 
failure to meet the four hour waiting time target in quarter four of 2013/14 and the admitted 
Referral to Treatment Time target in quarter three and four of 2013/14. 
 

 

 
 

Andrew Liles 

Chief Executive 

27 May 2014 
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 Annual Accounts 
 

1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014 
 

Foreword to the Accounts 

These Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014 have been prepared in accordance with                 
paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act 2006. 

 

Andrew Liles 
Accounting Officer 
Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
27 May 2014 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVE RNORS 

We have audited the financial statements of 
Ashford and St. Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 
March 2014 on pages 180-219.  These 
financial statements have been prepared 
under applicable law and the NHS 
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 
2013/14. 

This report is made solely to the Council of 
Governors of Ashford and St. Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in 
accordance with Schedule 10 of the National 

Health Service Act 2006.  Our audit work has 
been undertaken so that we might state to 
the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a 
body, those matters we are required to state 
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other 
purpose.  To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the 
Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, 
for our audit work, for this report or for the 
opinions we have formed. 

 
 

Respective responsibilities of the accounting offic er and the auditor 

As described more fully in the Statement of 
Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities on page 
169 the accounting officer is responsible for 
the preparation of financial statements which 
give a true and fair view.  Our responsibility is 
to audit, and express an opinion on, the 
financial statements in accordance with 

applicable law and International Standards on 
Auditing (UK and Ireland).  Those standards 
require us to comply with the Auditing 
Practice’s Board’s Ethical Standards for 
Auditors. 

 
 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are 
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free from material misstatement, whether 
caused by fraud or error. This includes an 
assessment of whether the accounting 
policies are appropriate to the Trust’s 
circumstances and have been consistently 
applied and adequately disclosed, the 
reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by the accounting officer and 
the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

In addition we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the annual report to 
identify material inconsistencies with the 
audited financial statements and to identify 
any information that is apparently materially 
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent 
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the 
course of performing the audit.  If we become 
aware of any apparent material 
misstatements or inconsistencies we 
consider the implications for our report. 

Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

���� give a true and fair view of the state of 
Ashford and St. Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust’s affairs as at 31 March 
2014 and of its income and expenditure 
for the year then ended; and 

 

���� have been prepared in accordance with 
the NHS Foundation Trust Annual 
Reporting Manual 2013/14. 

 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Audit Co de for NHS Foundation                  
Trusts 

In our opinion the information given in the 
Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for the 
financial year for which the financial 

statements are prepared is consistent with 
the financial statements. 

 

Matters on which we are required to report by excep tion 

We have nothing to report where under the 
Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts we 
are required to report to you if, in our opinion, 
the Annual Governance Statement does not 
reflect the disclosure requirements set out in 
the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting 
Manual, is misleading or is not consistent 
with our knowledge of the Trust and other 

information of which we are aware from our 
audit of the financial statements.  

We are not required to assess, nor have we 
assessed, whether all risks and controls have 
been addressed by the Annual Governance 
Statement or that risks are satisfactorily 
addressed by internal controls. 

 

Certificate 

We certify that we have completed the audit 
of the accounts of Ashford and St. Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in 
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 

5 of Part 2 of the National Health Service Act 
2006 and the Audit Code for NHS Foundation 
Trusts issued by Monitor. 

 

Philip Johnstone for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor 

Chartered Accountants                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
15 Canada Square  
London, E14 5GL 

29 May 2014
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014 

    

Note 

 

2013/14 

 

2012/13 

  £’000 £’000 

INCOME    
    
Income from patient care activities 3 229,131 216,123 

Other operating income 4 16,766 16,147 

Operating expenses 6 (239,161) (223,933) 

  _______ _______ 

OPERATING SURPLUS  6,736 8,337 

FINANCE COSTS:     

Finance income 12 63 122 

Finance expense 13 (258) (234) 

Public dividend capital dividends payable  (5,149) (4,868) 

  ______ ______ 

RETAINED SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR    1,392   3,357   

Other Comprehensive Income:    

 

Impairment losses on property plant and 
equipment 

 (688) - 

  _____ _____ 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 
YEAR 

    704  3,357  

    

 

The notes on pages 184 to 219 form part of these accounts.  
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2014  

  

Note 
 

31/03/14 
 

31/03/13 
 

       £’000      £’000 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    

Property, plant and equipment 14 161,053 154,443 
Intangible assets 15 1,107 1,129 
Trade and other receivables 19 978 965 
  _______ _______ 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  163,138 156,537 

CURRENT ASSETS    
Inventories                      18 4,299 4,374 
Trade and other receivables 19 16,068 12,135 
Cash and cash equivalents                        20 11,065 15,239 
  _______ _______ 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   31,432 31,748 

  _______ _______ 
TOTAL ASSETS :   194,570 188,285 
CURRENT LIABILITIES     
Trade and other payables 21 (26,930) (27,044) 
Other liabilities 21 (340) (357) 
Borrowings 22 (1,029) (484) 
Provisions 25 (358) (491) 
  _______ _______ 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   (28,657) (28,376)  

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES   165,913 159,909 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES      
Borrowings 22 (5,090) (1,362) 
Provisions 25 (392) (464) 
  _______ _______ 
TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED   160,431 158,083 
FINANCED BY TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY:     
Public dividend capital  87,578 85,934 
Income and expenditure reserve  6,118 4,671 
Revaluation reserve  66,735 67,478 
  _______ _______ 
TOTAL TAXPAYERS’ EQUI TY  160,431 158,083 
    

 
The financial statements on pages 180 to 219 were approved by the Board on 27 May 2014 and     
signed on its behalf by: 
 

 
Andrew Liles, Accounting Officer 
Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, 27 May 2014



 

182 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY FOR THE Y EAR ENDED                          
31 MARCH 2014 
   Public 

Dividend 
Capital 
(PDC) 

Retained 
Earnings  

Revaluation 
Reserve  

Total  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
BALANCE AT 1 APRIL 2013 85,934 4,671 67,478 158,083 

CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS EQUITY FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014 

    

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year - 1,392 - 1,392 

Impairments - - (688) (688) 

Transfers between reserves - 55 (55) - 

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment 

- - - - 

Public Dividend Capital received 1,644 - - 1,644 

 ______ ______ ______ _______ 

BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2014  87,578 6,118 66,735 160,431 

 ______ ______ ______ _______ 

   Public 
Dividend 

Capital 
(PDC) 

Retained 
Earnings 

 

Revaluation  
Reserve  

 

Total  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
BALANCE AT 1 APRIL 2012 85,784   1,311 67,481 154,576 

CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS EQUITY FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013  

    

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year - 3,357 - 3,357 

Transfers between reserves - 3 (3) - 

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 

- - - - 

Public Dividend Capital received 150 - - 150 

 ______ ______ ______ _______ 

BALANCE AT 31 MARCH  2013 85,934 4,671 67,478 158,083 



 

183 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH  2014 

 Note 2013/14 2012/13 

  £’000 £’000 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Operating surplus  6,736 8,337 
Depreciation and amortisation  8,597 8,041 
Impairments  - - 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  75 (714) 
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables  (3,953) (98) 
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  582 (53) 
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities  (17) 4 
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 25 (205) (514) 
Other movements in operating cash flows  (210) 1 
  ______ ______ 

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

 11,605 15,004 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Interest received  66 120 
(Payments) for property, plant and equipment  (11,340) (8,039) 
  ______ ______ 

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

  

(11,274) 

 

(7,919)  

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) BEFORE 
FINANCING 

  

331 

 

7,085  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Public Dividend Capital received  1,644 150 
Loans repaid to the DH  - (2,450) 
Capital element of finance lease rental payments  (739) (449) 
Interest paid  - (94) 
Interest element of finance lease  (290) (115) 
Dividends paid  (5,120) (4,973) 
  _______ _______ 

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

 (4,505) (7,931) 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 

 (4,174) (846) 

CASH (AND) CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 

 15,239 16,085 

  _______ _______ 
CASH (AND) CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 20 11,065   15,239 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 31 MARCH 2014  
 

1. Accounting policies 
 

Monitor has directed that the financial 
statements of NHS Foundation Trusts shall 
meet the accounting requirements of the 
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting 
Manual (ARM) which shall be agreed with 
HM Treasury. Consequently, the following 
financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the 2013/14 NHS 
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual  

 

issued by Monitor. The accounting policies 
contained in that manual follow International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual 
(FReM) to the extent that they are 
meaningful and appropriate to NHS 
Foundation Trusts. The accounting policies 
have been applied consistently in dealing 
with items considered material in relation to 
the accounts. 

1.1 Accounting convention 

These accounts have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention modified to 
account for the revaluation of property, plant 

and equipment, intangible assets, 
inventories and certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities 

 

1.2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the Trust’s accounting 
policies, management is required to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from 
other sources.  The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that 
are considered to be relevant.  Actual results 
may differ from those estimates and the 

estimates and underlying assumptions are 
continually reviewed.  Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in the 
period of the revision and future periods if 
the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 

 

 

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

There were no areas of critical judgements, 
apart from those involving estimations (see 
below) that management has made in the 
process of applying the Trust’s accounting 

policies and that have a significant effect on 
the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements.  

 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty  

There are no key assumptions concerning 
the future, and other key sources of 
estimation uncertainty at the end of the 
reporting period, that have a significant risk 

of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year 
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1.3 Income 

Income in respect of services provided is 
recognised when, and to the extent that, 
performance occurs, and is measured at the 
fair value of the consideration receivable.  
The main source of revenue for the Trust is 
from commissioners for healthcare services.  
Income relating to patient care spells that are 
part-completed at the year-end are 
apportioned across the financial years on the 
basis of length of stay at the end of the 
reporting period compared to expected total 
length of stay. 

Where income is received for a specific 
activity that is to be delivered in the following 
year, that income is deferred. 

The Trust receives income under the NHS 
Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to 
reclaim the cost of treating injured individuals 
to whom personal injury compensation has 
subsequently been paid e.g. by an insurer.  
The Trust recognises the income when it 
receives notification from the Department of 
Work and Pension's Compensation 
Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged 
a compensation claim. The income is 
measured at the agreed tariff for the 
treatments provided to the injured individual, 
less a provision for unsuccessful 
compensation claims and doubtful debts. 

1.4 Expenditure on employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Salaries, wages and employment-related 
payments are recognised in the period in 
which the service is received from 
employees. The cost of leave earned but not 
taken by employees at the end of the period 
is recognised in the financial statements to 
the extent that employees are permitted to 
carry forward leave into the following period. 

Pension costs 

Past and present employees are covered by 
the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  
The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit 
scheme that covers NHS employers, 
General Practices and other bodies, allowed 
under the direction of the Secretary of State, 
in England and Wales. The scheme is not 
designed to be run in a way that would 
enable NHS bodies to identify their share of 

the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. 
Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if 
it were a defined contribution scheme: the 
cost to the NHS body of participating in the 
scheme is taken as equal to the 
contributions payable to the scheme for the 
accounting period.   

For early retirements other than those due to 
ill health the additional pension liabilities are 
not funded by the scheme. The full amount 
of the liability for the additional costs is 
charged to operating expenses at the time 
the Trust commits itself to the retirement, 
regardless of the method of payment 

The National Employment Savings Scheme 
(NEST) is a defined contribution pension 
scheme that was created as part of the 
government’s workplace pensions reforms 
under the Pensions Act 2008. Contributions 
to this scheme started in 2013/14 for 
applicable employees who are not members 
of the NHS Pensions Scheme. 

1.5 Expenditure on other goods and services 

Expenditure on other goods and services is 
recognised when, and to the extent that, they 
have been received and is measured at the 
fair value of those goods and services.  
Expenditure is recognised in operating 

expenses except where it results in the 
creation of a non-current asset such as 
property, plant and equipment. 
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1.6 Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition 

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised 
if: 

•••• it is held for use in delivering services 
or for administrative purposes; 

•••• it is probable that future economic 
benefits will flow to, or service 
potential will be supplied to, the 
Trust; 

•••• it is expected to be used for more 
than one financial year; 

•••• the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably; and 
◊ the item has cost of at least 

£5,000; or 
◊ Collectively, a number of items 

have a cost of at least £5,000 and 
individually have a cost of more 
than £250, where the assets are 
functionally interdependent, they 
had broadly simultaneous 

purchase dates, are anticipated to 
have simultaneous disposal dates 
and are under single managerial 
control; or 

◊ Items form part of the initial 
equipping and setting-up cost of a 
new building, ward or unit, 
irrespective of their individual or 
collective cost. 

Where a large asset, for example a building, 
includes a number of components with 
significantly different asset lives, the 
components are treated as separate assets 
and depreciated over their own useful 
economic lives. 

 

 

 

 

Valuation 

All property, plant and equipment are 
measured initially at cost, representing the 
cost directly attributable to acquiring or 
constructing the asset and bringing it to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended 
by management. All assets are measured 
subsequently at fair value. 

Land and buildings used for the Trust’s 
services, or for administrative purposes, are 
stated in the Statement of Financial Position 
at their revalued amounts, being the fair 
value at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses.  Revaluations are 
performed with sufficient regularity to ensure 
that carrying amounts are not materially 
different from those that would be 
determined at the end of the reporting 
period.  Fair values are determined as 
follows: 

•••• Land and non-specialised buildings – 
market value for existing use 

•••• Specialised buildings – depreciated 
replacement cost 

 

Until 31 March 2008, the depreciated 
replacement cost of specialised buildings 
has been estimated for an exact 
replacement of the asset in its present 
location. HM Treasury has adopted a 
standard approach to depreciated 
replacement cost valuations based on 
modern equivalent assets and, where it 
would meet the location requirements of the 
service being provided, an alternative site 
can be valued. 

Properties in the course of construction for 
service or administration purposes are 
carried at cost, less any impairment loss. 
Cost includes professional fees but not 
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borrowing costs, which are recognised as 
expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 
for assets held at fair value.  Assets are 
revalued and depreciation commences when 
they are brought into use. 

Until 31 March 2008, fixtures and equipment 
were carried at replacement cost, as 
assessed by indexation and depreciation of 
historic cost. From 1 April 2008 indexation 
has ceased. The carrying value of existing 
assets at that date will be written off over 
their remaining useful lives and new fixtures 
and equipment are carried at depreciated 
historic cost as this is not considered to be 
materially different from fair value.  

 

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to 
the Revaluation Reserve except when it 
reverses an impairment for the same asset 
previously recognised in expenditure, in 
which case it is credited to expenditure to the 
extent of the decrease previously charged 
there. A revaluation decrease that does not 

result from a loss of economic value or 
service potential is recognised as an 
impairment charged to the Revaluation 
Reserve to the extent that there is a balance 
on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, 
to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise 
from a clear consumption of economic 
benefit should be taken to expenditure. 
Gains and losses recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve are reported as other 
comprehensive income in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.   

 

The Trust charges depreciation on revalued 
assets based on their revalued amount and 
not their cost. IAS 16 is not prescriptive on 
the accounting policy to be adopted by 
reporting entities in respect of this 
adjustment, and as the Trust does not have 
complete records of the historical cost of its 
assets, it now transfers such balances only 
on ultimate disposal.  

 

 

Subsequent expenditure 

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an 
asset beyond its original specification, the 
directly attributable cost is capitalised.  
Where subsequent expenditure restores the 

asset to its original specification, the 
expenditure is capitalised and any existing 
carrying value of the item replaced is written-
out and charged to operating expenses. 

 

1.7 Intangible assets 

Recognition 

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets 
without physical substance, which are capable of 
sale separately from the rest of the Trust’s 
business or which arise from contractual or other 
legal rights.  

They are recognised only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to, or service 
potential be provided to, the Trust; where the cost 
of the asset can be measured reliably, and where 
the cost is at least £5,000.   

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially 
recognised at fair value. Software that is integral 
to the operating of hardware, for example an 
operating system, is capitalised as part of the 
relevant item of property, plant and equipment. 
Software that is not integral to the operation of 
hardware, for example application software, is 
capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on 
research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an 
operating expense in the period in which it is 
incurred. Internally-generated assets are 
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recognised if, and only if, all of the following have 
been demonstrated: 

•••• the technical feasibility of completing the 
intangible asset so that it will be available 
for use; 

•••• the intention to complete the intangible 
asset and use it; 

•••• the ability to sell or use the intangible 
asset; 

•••• how the intangible asset will generate 
probable future economic benefits or 
service potential; 

•••• the availability of adequate technical, 
financial and other resources to complete 
the intangible asset and sell or use it; 
and 

•••• the ability to measure reliably the 
expenditure attributable to the intangible 
asset during its development.  

 

Measurement 

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible assets is the sum of the 
expenditure incurred from the date when the 
criteria above are initially met. Where no 
internally-generated intangible asset can be 
recognised, the expenditure is recognised in 
the period in which it is incurred. 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets 
are carried at fair value by reference to an 
active market, or, where no active market  

exists, at amortised replacement cost 
(modern equivalent assets basis), indexed 
for relevant price increases, as a proxy for 
fair value. Internally-developed software is 
held at historic cost to reflect the opposing 
effects of increases in development costs 
and technological advances.   

 

 

 

1.8 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 

Freehold land, properties under construction, 
and assets held for sale are not depreciated. 

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are 
charged to write off the costs or valuation of 
property, plant and equipment and intangible 
non-current assets, less any residual value, 
over their estimated useful lives, in a manner 
that reflects the consumption of economic 
benefits or service potential of the assets. 
The estimated useful life of an asset is the 
period over which the Trust expects to obtain 
economic benefits or service potential from 
the asset. This is specific to the Trust and 
may be shorter than the physical life of the 
asset itself. Estimated useful lives and 
residual values are reviewed each year end, 
with the effect of any changes recognised on 
a prospective basis. Assets held under 

finance leases are depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives.  

At each reporting period end, the Trust 
checks whether there is any indication that 
any of its tangible or intangible non-current 
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If 
there is indication of an impairment loss, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated 
to determine whether there has been a loss 
and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not 
yet available for use are tested for 
impairment annually.   

A revaluation decrease that does not result 
from a loss of economic value or service 
potential is recognised as an impairment 
charged to the Revaluation Reserve to the 
extent that there is a balance on the reserve 
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for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. 
Impairment losses that arise from a clear 
consumption of economic benefit should be 
taken to expenditure. Where an impairment 
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to the 
revised estimate of the recoverable amount 
but capped at the amount that would have 
been determined had there been no initial 
impairment loss. The reversal of the  

impairment loss is credited to expenditure to 
the extent of the decrease previously 
charged there and thereafter to the 
Revaluation Reserve. 

 

 

 

 

1.9 Donated and grant funded assets 

Donated and grant funded property, plant 
and equipment assets are capitalised at their 
fair value on receipt. The donation/grant is 
credited to income at the same time, unless 
the donor has imposed a condition that the 
future economic benefits embodied in the 
grant are to be consumed in a manner 
specified by the donor, in which case, the 
donation/grant is deferred within liabilities 
and is carried forward to future financial 
years to the extent that the condition has not 
yet been met. 

The donated and grant funded assets are 
subsequently accounted for in the same 
manner as other items of property, plant and 
equipment. 

 

 

 

 

 

1.10 Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets are classified as held for 
sale if their carrying amount will be 
recovered principally through a sale 
transaction rather than through continuing 
use. This condition is regarded as met when 
the sale is highly probable, the asset is 
available for immediate sale in its present 
condition and management is committed to 
the sale, which is expected to qualify for 
recognition as a completed sale within one 
year from the date of classification. Non-
current assets held for sale are measured at 
the lower of their previous carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell. Fair value is 
open market value including alternative 
uses. 

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an 
asset is the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying amount and is 

recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. On disposal, the 
balance for the asset on the Revaluation 
Reserve is transferred to Retained Earnings. 
For donated and government-granted 
assets, a transfer is made to or from the 
relevant reserve to the profit/loss on disposal 
account so that no profit or loss is 
recognised in income or expenses. The 
remaining surplus or deficit in the Donated 
Asset is then transferred to Retained 
Earnings.  

Property, plant and equipment that is to be 
scrapped or demolished does not qualify for 
recognition as held for sale.  Instead, it is 
retained as an operational asset and its 
economic life is adjusted.  The asset is de-
recognised when it is scrapped or 
demolished. 
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1.11  Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases 
when substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership are transferred to the lessee. 
All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. 

The Trust as lessee 

Property, plant and equipment held under 
finance leases are initially recognised, at the 
inception of the lease, at fair value or, if 
lower, at the present value of the minimum 
lease payments, with a matching liability for 
the lease obligation to the lessor.  Lease 
payments are apportioned between finance 
charges and reduction of the lease obligation 
so as to achieve a constant rate on interest 
on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are recognised in 
calculating the Trust’s surplus/deficit. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as 
an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. Lease incentives are recognised 
initially as a liability and subsequently as a 
reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 

Contingent rentals are recognised as an 
expense in the period in which they are 
incurred. 

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the 
land and building components are separated 
and individually assessed as to whether they 
are operating or finance leases.  

 

 

1.12  Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value using the weighted 
average cost formula. 

This is considered to be a reasonable 
approximation to fair value due to the high 
turnover of stocks.   

   

1.13  Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any 
financial institution repayable without penalty on 
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash 
equivalents are investments that mature in 3 
months or less from the date of acquisition and 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash with insignificant risk of change in value.   

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash 
equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and that form an 
integral part of the Trust’s cash management. 

 

1.14  Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Trust 
has a present legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
the Trust will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation. The 
amount recognised as a provision is the best 
estimate of the expenditure required to settle 
the obligation at the end of the reporting 

period, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties. Where the effect of the time 
value of money is significant, the estimated 
risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted 
using the short-; medium-; and/or long-term 
real discount rates published by HM 
Treasury for the financial year, except for 
early retirement provisions and injury benefit 
provisions which both use the HM Treasury’s 
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pension discount rate of 1.80% (2012/13: 
2.35%) in real terms.  These rates are as 
follows where the real rate is 2.2% (2012/13: 
2.2%):  

•••• Short-term; real rate minus 1.90% 
(2012/13: real rate minus 1.80%) 

•••• Medium-term; real rate minus 0.65% 
(2012/13: real rate minus 1.00%) 

•••• Long-term; real rate  
 

When some or all of the economic benefits 
required to settle a provision are expected to 
be recovered from a third party, the 
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is 
virtually certain that reimbursements will be 
received and the amount of the receivable 
can be measured reliably. 

Present obligations arising under onerous 
contracts are recognised and measured as a 

provision.  An onerous contract is considered 
to exist where the Trust has a contract under 
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the 
obligations under the contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be received 
under it. 

A restructuring provision is recognised when 
the Trust has developed a detailed formal 
plan for the restructuring and has raised a 
valid expectation in those affected that it will 
carry out the restructuring by starting to 
implement the plan or announcing its main 
features to those affected by it. The 
measurement of a restructuring provision 
includes only the direct expenditures arising 
from the restructuring, which are those 
amounts that are both necessarily entailed 
by the restructuring and not associated with 
ongoing activities of the entity. 

 

1.15  Clinical negligence costs 

The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) 
operates a risk pooling scheme under which 
the Trust pays an annual contribution to the 
NHSLA which in return settles all clinical 
negligence claims.  The contribution is 
charged to expenditure. Although the 

NHSLA is administratively responsible for all 
clinical negligence cases the legal liability 
remains with the Trust. The total value of 
clinical negligence provisions carried by the 
NHSLA on behalf of the Trust is disclosed at 
note 25.  

 

1.16  Non-clinical risk pooling 

The Trust participates in the Property 
Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third 
Parties Scheme.  Both are risk pooling 
schemes under which the Trust pays an 
annual contribution to the NHS Litigation 
Authority and, in return, receives assistance 

with the costs of claims arising. The annual 
membership contributions, and any excesses 
payable in respect of particular claims are 
charged to operating expenses as and when 
they become due. 

 

1.17  Contingencies 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation 
that arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Trust, or a present obligation 
that is not recognised because it is not 
probable that a payment will be required to 
settle the obligation or the amount of the 

obligation cannot be measured sufficiently 
reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed 
unless the possibility of a payment is remote.  

A contingent asset is a possible asset that 
arises from past events and whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
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Trust. A contingent asset is disclosed where 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.   

Where the time value of money is material, 
contingencies are disclosed at their present 
value. 

 

 

1.18  Financial instruments and financial liabiliti es  

Recognition  

Financial assets and financial liabilities which 
arise from contracts for the purchase or sale 
of non-financial items (such as goods or 
services), which are entered into in 
accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, 
sale or usage requirements, are recognised 
when, and to the extent which, performance 
occurs i.e. when receipt or delivery of the 
goods or services is made.  
 

Financial assets or financial liabilities in 
respect of assets acquired or disposed of 
through finance leases are recognised and 
measured in accordance with the accounting 
policy for leases described above.  
 
All other financial assets and financial 
liabilities are recognised when the Trust 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument.  

 

De-recognition  

All financial assets are de-recognised when 
the rights to receive cash flows from the 
assets have expired or the Trust has 
transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership.  

 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when 
the obligation is discharged, cancelled or 
expires. 

 

Classification and measurement  

Financial assets are categorised as ‘fair 
value through income and expenditure’, 
‘loans and receivables’ or ‘available-for-              
sale financial assets’.  

Financial liabilities are classified as ‘fair 
value through income and expenditure’                 
or as ‘other financial liabilities’. 

  

Financial assets and financial liabilities at ‘fair value through income and expenditure’  

Financial assets and financial liabilities at ‘fair 
value through income and expenditure’ are 
financial assets or financial liabilities held for 
trading. A financial asset or financial liability is 
classified in this category if acquired 
principally for the purpose of selling in the 
short-term. Derivatives are also categorised 
as held for trading unless they are designated 
as hedges. Derivatives which are embedded 
in other contracts but which are not ‘closely-
related’ to those contracts are separated-out 
from those contracts and measured in this 
category.  

Assets and liabilities in this category are 
classified as current assets and current 
liabilities.  
 
These financial assets and financial liabilities 
are recognised initially at fair value, with 
transaction costs expensed in the income and 
expenditure account. Subsequent movements 
in the fair value are recognised as gains or 
losses in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. 
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Loans and receivables  

Loans and receivables are non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments with are not quoted in an active 
market. They are included in current assets.  
 
The trust’s loans and receivables comprise: 
cash and cash equivalents, NHS receivables, 
accrued income and ‘other receivables’.  
 
Loans and receivables are recognised initially 
at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are 
measured subsequently at amortised cost, 

using the effective interest method. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts 
exactly estimated future cash receipts through 
the expected life of the financial asset or, 
when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset.  
 
Interest on loans and receivables is calculated 
using the effective interest method and 
credited to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.  

 

Available-for-sale financial assets  

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets which are either 
designated in this category or not classified 
in any of the other categories. They are 
included in long-term assets unless the trust 
intends to dispose of them within 12 months 
of the Statement of Financial Position date.  

Available-for-sale financial assets are 
recognised initially at fair value, including 
transaction costs, and measured 

subsequently at fair value, with gains or 
losses recognised in reserves and reported 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’. 
When items classified as ‘available-for-sale’ 
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair 
value adjustments recognised are 
transferred from reserves and recognised              
in ‘Finance Costs’ in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. 

 

 

Other financial liabilities  

All other financial liabilities are recognised 
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs 
incurred, and measured subsequently at 
amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that discounts exactly estimated future cash 
payments through the expected life of the 
financial liability or, when appropriate, a 
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of 
the financial liability.  

They are included in current liabilities except 
for amounts payable more than 12 months 
after the Statement of Financial Position 

date, which are classified as long-term 
liabilities.  

Interest on financial liabilities carried at 
amortised cost is calculated using the 
effective interest method and charged to 
Finance Costs. Interest on financial liabilities 
taken out to finance property, plant and 
equipment or intangible assets is not 
capitalised as part of the cost of those 
assets.  

 

Determination of fair value  

For financial assets and financial liabilities 
carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are 

determined from quoted market prices where 
possible, otherwise by valuation techniques.  
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Impairment of financial assets  

At the Statement of Financial Position date, 
the trust assesses whether any financial 
assets, other than those held at ‘fair value 
through income and expenditure’ are 
impaired. Financial assets are impaired and 
impairment losses are recognised if, and 
only if, there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events 
which occurred after the initial recognition of 
the asset and which has an impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the asset.  

For financial assets carried at amortised              
cost, the amount of the impairment loss is 
measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present 
value of the revised future cash flows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective 
interest rate. The loss is recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
directly.  

 

1.19  Value Added Tax 

Most of the activities of the Trust are outside 
the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax 
does not apply and input tax on purchases   
is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is 
charged to the relevant expenditure category 

or included in the capitalised purchase cost 
of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged 
or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are 
stated net of VAT. 

 

1.20  Foreign currencies 

The functional and presentational currencies 
of the trust are sterling. 

A transaction which is denominated in a 
foreign currency is translated into the 
functional currency at the spot exchange rate 
on the date of the transaction. 

Where the Trust has assets or liabilities 
denominated in a foreign currency at the 
Statement of Financial Position date: 

• monetary items (other than financial 
instruments measured at ‘fair value 
through income and expenditure’) are 
translated at the spot exchange rate on 
31 March; 

• non-monetary assets and liabilities 
measured at historical cost are 

translated using the spot exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction; and 

• non-monetary assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value are translated 
using the spot exchange rate at the 
date the fair value was determined. 

 

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items 
(arising on settlement of the transaction or on 
re-translation at the Statement of Financial 
Position date) are recognised in income or 
expense in the period in which they arise. 

Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary 
assets and liabilities are recognised in the 
same manner as other gains and losses on 
these items. 

 

1.21 Corporation Tax 

The Trust has reviewed its operating activities 
and determined that as other trading activities 

are ancillary to the Trust’s core activities then 
the Trust has no liability for corporation tax. 
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1.22  Third party assets 

Assets belonging to third parties (such as 
money held on behalf of patients) are not 
recognised in the accounts since the Trust has 

no beneficial interest in them. Details of third 
party assets are given in Note 30 to the 
accounts. 

 

1.23  Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividen d 

Public Dividend Capital (PDC) is a type of 
public sector equity finance based on the 
excess of assets over liabilities at the time of 
establishment of the predecessor NHS Trust.  
HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not 
a financial instrument within the meaning of 
IAS 32. 

An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital 
utilised by the Trust, is payable to the 
Department of Health as Public Dividend 
Capital dividend. The charge is calculated at 
the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) 
on the average relevant net assets of the 
Trust during the financial year.  Relevant net 
assets are calculated as the value of all 
assets less the value of all liabilities, except 
for (i) donated assets, (ii) average daily cash 

balances held with the Government Banking 
Services (GBS) and National Loan Fund 
(NLF) deposits, excluding cash balances held 
in GBS accounts that relate to a short-term 
working capital facility, (iii) for 2013/14 only, 
net assets and liabilities transferred from 
bodies which ceased to exist on 1 April 2013 
and (iv) any PDC dividend balance receivable 
or payable.  In accordance with the 
requirements laid down by the Department of 
Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for 
the year is calculated on the actual average 
relevant net assets as set out in the ‘pre-audit’ 
version of the annual accounts.   

The dividend thus calculated is not revised 
should any adjustment to net assets occur as 
a result of the audit of the annual accounts. 

 

1.24  Losses and Special Payments 

Losses and special payments are items that 
Parliament would not have contemplated 
when it agreed funds for the health service or 
passed legislation. By their nature they are 
items that ideally should not arise. They are 
therefore subject to special control procedures 
compared with the generality of payments. 
They are divided into different categories, 
which govern the way that individual cases 
are handled. 

Losses and special payments are charged to 
the relevant functional headings in 
expenditure on an accruals basis, including 
losses which would have been made good 
through insurance cover had the Trusts not 

been bearing its own risks (with insurance 
premiums then being included as normal 
revenue expenditure). 

However the losses and special payments 
note is compiled directly from the losses and 
compensations register which reports on an 
accrual basis with the exception of provisions 
for future losses. 

 

 

1.25  Subsidiaries 

Material entities over which the Trust has the 
power to exercise control or a dominant 
influence so as to obtain economic or other 

benefits are classified as subsidiaries and are 
consolidated. Their income and expenses; 
gains and losses; assets, liabilities, equity and 
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reserves; and cash flows are consolidated in 
full into the appropriate financial statement 
lines. Appropriate adjustments are made on 
consolidation where the subsidiary’s 
accounting policies are not aligned with the 
Trust’s or where the subsidiary’s accounting 
date is before 1 January or after 30 June.  
Inter-entity balances, transactions and 
gains/losses are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. 

Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for 
sale’ are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to 
sell’.  

Following HM Treasury’s agreement to apply 
IAS 27 to NHS Charities from 1 April 2013, the 
Trust has established that as the Trust is the 
corporate trustee of the linked NHS Charity, 
The Ashford and St. Peter’s Hospitals 
Charitable Fund, it effectively has the power to 
exercise control so as to obtain economic 
benefits.  However the transactions are 
immaterial in the context of the group and 
transactions have not been consolidated.  
Details of the transactions with the charity are 
disclosed as related party transactions in note 
29.  

 

1.26  Joint ventures 

Material entities over which the Trust has joint 
control with one or more other parties so as to 
obtain economic or other benefits are classified 
as joint ventures. The Trust currently does not 
have any Joint ventures. 

Joint ventures that are classified as ‘held for sale’ 
are measured at the lower of their carrying 
amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’. 

 

1.27 Joint operations 

The Trust runs Surrey Pathology Services 
with Frimley Park Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust and Royal Surrey County Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust. This meets the definition of 
a jointly controlled operation under IAS31. 
Under the contractual arrangement pathology 
services at the three Trusts are provided 
jointly. 

The Trust accounts for its share of the assets, 
liabilities, income and expenditure arising from 

the activities of Surrey Pathology Services, 
identified in accordance with the Pathology 
service agreement.  Accordingly Frimley Park 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and Royal 
Surrey County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
also account for their share of the assets, 
liabilities, income and expenditure in their 
financial statements. 

 

1.28  Research and Development 

Research and development expenditure is 
charged against income in the year in which it 
is incurred, except insofar as development 
expenditure relates to a clearly defined project 
and the benefits of it can reasonably be 
regarded as assured. Expenditure so deferred 
is limited to the value of future benefits 

expected and is amortised through the 
Operating Cost Statement on a systematic 
basis over the period expected to benefit from 
the project. It should be revalued on the basis 
of current cost. The amortisation is calculated 
on the same basis as depreciation, on a 
quarterly basis. 
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1.29  Accounting standards issued but not yet 
adopted 

The HM Treasury FReM does not require the 
following Standards and Interpretations to be 
applied in 2013/14 The application of the 
Standards as revised would not have a 
material impact on the accounts for 2013/14 
were they applied in that year: 

 

•••• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – not likely 
to be adopted by the EU until the IASB 
has finished the rest of its financial 
instruments project;  

•••• IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial 
Statements – effective from 2014/15; 

•••• IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements – effective 
from 2014/15; 

•••• IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other 
Entities – effective from 2014/15; 

•••• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement – 
effective date of 2013/14, but not yet 
adopted by the HM Treasury; 

•••• IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements – 
effective from 2014/15; 

•••• IAS 28 Investments in Associates and 
Joint Ventures – effective from 2014/15; 
and 

•••• IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation 
– amendment (offsetting financial assets 
and liabilities) – effective from 2014/15.  

2. Operating Segments 

The Trust Board receives financial information for the Trust as a whole, making decisions based on 
this. The Trust Executive Committee meets twice monthly and consists of the Trust Executive 
Directors and Divisional Directors for the Trust’s four Clinical Divisions. Segmental analysis is 
provided below for the total of these Clinical Divisions and Other, which includes the Corporate 
areas. The key data for these operating segments is: - 

 2013/14 2012/13 

 Clinical 
Divisions 

£’000 

Other 
 

£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

Clinical 
Divisions 

£’000 

Other 
 

£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

       

Income 234,036 11,861 245,897 223,283 8,987 232,270 

       

Expenditure (192,314) (52,191) (244,505) (178,344) (50,569) (228,913) 

 _______ _______ _______ _______ _______     ______ 

Contribution    41,722 (40,330)     1,392 44,939 (41,582)     3,357 
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3. Income from patient care activities  
 

3.1 Income from activities 

   
2013/14 

 
2012/13 

 £’000 £’000 

Analysis by activity    

   

Elective income 51,615 47,150 

Non-elective income 55,653 67,455 

Outpatient income 44,274 45,607 

A & E income 11,195 10,496 

Other NHS clinical income 60,895 41,435 

Private Patient income 2,850 2,719 

Other non-protected clinical income 2,649 1,261 

 _______ _______ 

 229,131 216,123   

   

Activity by source    

   

NHS Foundation Trusts 17 - 

Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England 223,614 - 

Primary Care Trusts - 212,143 

Local Authorities 1,632 136 

Non- NHS - Private patients 2,677 2,580 

 - Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 173 139 

 - Injury cost recovery 829 814 

 - Other 189 311 

 _______ _______ 

 229,131 216,123 

   

 

In 2013/14 a new payment system was introduced for maternity pathways. This income was shown 
within Non-Elective income in 2012/13, but is now shown within Other NHS clinical income in 2013/14.   

Income from Commissioner Requested Services in 2013/14 was £219,184,000. 

Injury cost recovery income is subject to a provision for impairment of receivables of 15.8% to reflect 
expected rates of collection. 
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4. Other operating income 

  
2013/14 

 
2012/13 

 £’000 £’000 

   

Research and development 725 575 

Education and training 7,907 7,486 

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 209 53 

Non-patient care services to other bodies 1,928 2,025 

Other income:       

Car parking 1,740 1,686 

Estates recharges 612 871 

Pharmacy sales 877 882 

Nursery 1,007 968 

Profit on disposal of plant and equipment 1 - 

Other 1,760 1,601 

 ______ ______ 

 16,766 16,147 

    

5. Revenue 

Revenue is almost totally from the supply of services. Revenue from the sale of goods is immaterial. 
 

6. Operating expenses 

  
2013/14 

 
2012/13 

 £’000 £’000 

   
Services from NHS Foundation Trusts 1,107 766 

Services from NHS Trusts 561 1,269 

Services from Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS 
England 

5 - 

Services from PCTs - 101 

Services from other NHS bodies 229 124 

Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies 7,969 6,075 

Employee benefits – Executive Directors 1,069 1,021 

Employee benefits – Non-Executive Directors 129 129 

Employee benefits - staff 149,475 140,480 

Drugs costs 17,581 15,229 

Supplies and services – clinical (excluding drugs) 30,432 28,841 

Supplies and services – general 3,610 3,599 

Establishment   2,419 2,053 

Transport 535 617 

Premises    8,472 8,406 
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Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of 
receivables 

77 160 

Depreciation and amortisation 8,597 8,041 

Auditors remuneration 65 66 

NHS clinical negligence scheme 4,629 4,666 

Loss on disposal of plant and equipment - 1 

Legal fees 80 152 

Consultancy costs 1,007 1,017 

Training, courses and conferences 368 369 

Redundancy - 148 

Insurance  260 227 

Losses, ex gratia and special payments 162 5 

Other 323 371 

 _______ _______ 

 239,161 223,933 
This note includes irrecoverable VAT 

Auditors’ remuneration  

 2013/14 2012/13 
  £’000 £’000 
    
Audit services – statutory audit  47 47 

Audit services – audit related regulatory reporting  8 8 

  ___ ___ 

  55  55 
This note excludes irrecoverable VAT 

Audit Liability Cap 

An engagement letter was signed on 5th March 
2013 with KPMG. Currently the liability of KPMG, 
its members, partners and staff (whether in 
contract, negligence or otherwise) in respect of 

services provided in connection with or arising out 
of the audit is unlimited. The Trust must notify any 
claim within four years.  

 

7. Operating leases 

As lessee:   

 2013/14 2012/13 
  £’000 £’000 

Payments recognised as an expense:     
Minimum lease payments  402 432 

  ___ ___ 

Total  402  432  
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 31/03/14 31/03/13 
  £’000 £’000 

Total future minimum lease payments:     
Not later than one year  421 269 

Between one and five years  764 271 

  __ _ ____ 

Total  1,185  540  

 

 

8. Employee costs and numbers 

8.1 Employee costs 

2013/14 2012/13 
Total  Permanently  

Employed 
Other 

 
Total  Permanently  

Employed 
Other 

 
£’000       £’000       £’000 £’000       £’000       £’000 

       
Salaries and wages 113,570 107,066 6,504 107,727 102,241 5,486 

Social security costs 9,301 8,783 518 8,932 8,577 355 

Employer contributions 
to NHS Pension scheme 

13,361 12,617 744 11,633 11,171 462 

Employer contributions 
to National Employment 
Savings Scheme 
(NEST) 

1 1 - - - - 

Termination benefits - - - 148 106 42 

Agency/contract staff 14,759 - 14,759 13,209 - 13,209 

 _______ _______ ______ _______ _______ ______ 

150,992 128,467 22,525 141,649 122,095 19,554 
 

Of which £448,000 (2012/13 - £368,000) is capitalised as part of capital projects. 

 

8.2 Staff Exit Packages  

The total cost to the Trust of redundancy payments in the financial year was £nil (2012/13 - £228k) and 
for early retirement payments £nil (2012/13 - £42k). Out of the redundancy payments, £nil (2012/13 - 
£61k) was subsequently recharged to other NHS bodies.  

 

 
 



 

202 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

8.3 Average number of people employed 

2013/14 2012/13 

Total  Permanently  
Employed 

Other 
 

Total  Permanently  
Employed 

Other 
 

No. No. No. No. No. No. 
       
Medical and dental 469 469 - 442 432 10 

Administration and estates 809 809 - 805 805 - 

Healthcare assistants and other 
support staff 

452 452 - 419 419 - 

Nursing, midwifery and health 
visiting staff 

957 957 - 903 903 - 

Scientific, therapeutic and 
technical staff 

354 354 - 358 351 7 

Other 7 7 - 7 7 - 

Bank and agency staff 406 - 406 351 - 351 

 _____ _____ ___ _____ _____ ___ 

3,454 3,048 406 3,285 2,917 368 

Of which 8 (2012/13 - 7) are employed on capital projects. 

 

8.4 Directors’ remuneration 

  2013/14 2012/13 
Remuneratio n Employer’s  

Pension 
Contributions  

Employer’s  
 NI 

Benefits  
in Kind  

Total  Total  

    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Executive Directors 859 103 107 19 1,088 1,031
Non Executive Directors 120 - 9 - 129 129

Further details can be found in the Remuneration Report which forms part of the Annual Report. 
 

 

8.5 Staff sickness absence  

 2013 2012 

Total days lost 21,060 18,792 

Total staff years worked 2,974 2,880 

Average working days lost (annualised) 7.1 6.5 

The note above is based on data for the calendar year 2013 in line with national guidance.  
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9. Pension costs 

9.1  NHS Pension Scheme 

Past and present employees are covered by the 
provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details 
of the benefits payable under these provisions 
can be found on the NHS Pensions website at 
www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The scheme is an 
unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers 
NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, 
allowed under the direction of the Secretary of 
State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not 
designed to be run in a way that would enable 
NHS bodies to identify their share of the 
underlying scheme assets and liabilities. 
Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it 
were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to 
the Trust of participating in the scheme is taken 
as equal to the contributions payable to the 
scheme for the accounting period. 

In order that the defined benefit obligations 
recognised in the financial statements do not 
differ materially from those  that  would be  
determined  at the  reporting  date  by a  formal  
actuarial valuation, the  FReM  

requires that “the period between formal 
valuations shall be four years, with approximate 
assessments in intervening years”. An outline of 
these follows: 

a) Accounting valuation 

A valuation of the scheme liability is carried 
out annually by the scheme actuary as at the 
end of the reporting period. This utilises an 
actuarial assessment for the previous 
accounting period in conjunction with updated 
membership and financial data for the current 
reporting period, and are accepted as 
providing suitably robust figures for financial 
reporting purposes. The valuation of the 
scheme liability as at 31 March 2014, is based 
on valuation data as 31 March 2013, updated 
to 31 March 2014 with summary global 
member and accounting data. In undertaking 
this actuarial assessment, the methodology 
prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM 
interpretations, and the discount rate 

prescribed by HM Treasury have also been 
used. 

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the 
scheme is contained in the scheme actuary 
report, which forms part of the annual NHS 
Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension 
Accounts, published annually. These accounts 
can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website. 
Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery 
Office. 

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation 

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the 
level of liability in respect of the benefits due 
under the scheme (taking into account its recent 
demographic experience), and to recommend the 
contribution rates. 

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken 
for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for 
the year ending 31 March 2004. Consequently, a 
formal actuarial valuation would have been due 
for the year ending 31 March 2008. However, 
formal actuarial valuations for unfunded public 
service schemes were suspended by HM 
Treasury on value for money grounds while 
consideration is given to recent changes to public 
service pensions, and while future scheme terms 
are developed as part of the reforms to public 
service pension provision due in 2015. 

The Scheme Regulations were changed to allow 
contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of 
State for Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, 
and consideration of the advice of the Scheme 
Actuary and appropriate employee and employer 
representatives as deemed appropriate. 

 

The next formal valuation to be used for funding 
purposes will be carried out at as at March 2012 
and will be used to inform the contribution rates to 
be used from 1 April 2015. 
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c) Scheme provisions 

 

The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined 
benefits, which are summarised below. This 
list is an illustrative guide only, and is not 
intended to detail all the benefits provided by 
the Scheme or the specific conditions that 
must be met before these benefits can be 
obtained: 

 

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. 
Annual pensions are normally based on 
1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of 
the last three years pensionable pay for each 
year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 
section of reckonable pay per year of 
membership. Members who are practitioners 
as defined by the Scheme Regulations have 
their annual pensions based upon total 
pensionable earnings over the relevant 
pensionable service. 

 

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can 
choose to give up some of their annual 
pension for an additional tax free lump sum, 
up to a maximum amount permitted under 
HMRC rules. This new provision is known as 
“pension commutation”. 

 

Annual increases are applied to pension 
payments at rates defined by the Pensions 
(Increase) Act 1971, and are based on 
changes in retail prices in the twelve months 
ending 30 September in the previous 

calendar year. From 2011/12 the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) has been used and 
replaced the Retail Prices Index (RPI). 

 

Early payment of a pension, with 
enhancement, is available to members of the 
scheme who are permanently incapable of 
fulfilling their duties effectively through illness 
or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final 
year’s pensionable pay for death in service, 
and five times their annual pension for death 
after retirement is payable. 

 

For early retirements other than those due to 
ill health the additional pension liabilities are 
not funded by the scheme. The full amount 
of the liability for the additional costs is 
charged to the employer. 

 

Members can purchase additional service in 
the NHS Scheme and contribute to money 
purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s 
approved providers or by other Free 
Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions 
(FSAVC) providers. 

 

 

 

9.2  National Employment Savings Scheme (NEST) 

Employees who are not members of the NHS 
Pensions Scheme may join the National 
Employment Savings Scheme which is a defined 
contribution scheme: the cost to the Trust of 

participating in the scheme is taken as equal to 
the contributions payable to the scheme for the 
accounting period. 

 

10. Retirements due to ill-health 

During the year ended 31 March 2014 there 
was 1 early retirement (2012/13 - five) from 

the Trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health 
with a value of £1,000 (2012/13 - £326,000).  
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11. Better Payment Practice Code  
 

11.1 Better Payment Practice Code - measure of comp liance 

2013/14 2012/13 

Number £’000 Number £’000 
   

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 62,895 91,848 55,118 87,351 

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 56,281 79,407 46,003 74,799 

     
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid 
within target 

89.48% 86.45% 83.46% 85.63% 

     
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 1,872 18,199 1,989 17,637 

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 922 12,282 1,257 13,250 

     
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid 
within target 

49.25% 67.49% 63.20% 75.13% 

 
The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices 
by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later. 

 

12. Finance income 

 2013/14 2012/13 
£’000 £’000 

Interest revenue    

Bank accounts 63 122 

 

 

13. Finance expense    

 2013/14 2012/13 
 £’000 £’000 
Interest costs    

Interest on loans - 94 

Interest on obligations under finance leases 258 140 

 ___ ___ 

Total  258  234 
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14. Property, plant and equipment 
 

2013/14 Land  Buildings  
excluding 
dwellings 

Assets under  
construction  

and payments 
on account 

Plant & 
machinery 

Transport & 
equipment 

Information  
technology 

Furniture &  
fittings 

Total  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 
Cost or  valuation at 1 April 2013 32,700 123,061 4,170 26,374 22 8,593 3,964 198,884 
Additions purchased - 714 7,819 1,466 24 393 148 10,564 
Additions leased - 379 2,897 1,737 - - - 5,013 
Additions donated - 33 - 176 - - - 209 
Reclassifications - 6,914 (9,422) 1,694 - 452 71 (291) 
Disposals other than by sale - - - (705) - (9) (44) (758) 
Revaluation/indexation gains - - - - - - - - 
Impairments - (688) - - - - - (688) 
 ______ _______ _____ ______ __ _____ _____ _______ 
At 31 March 2014  32,700 130,413 5,464 30,742 46 9,429 4,139 212,933 
         
Depreciation at 1 April 2013  - 14,322 - 20,653 22 6,404 3,040 44,441 
Reclassifications - - - - - - - - 
Disposals other than by sale - - - (705) - (9) (44) (758) 
Impairments - - - - - - - - 
Charged during the year - 5,490 - 1,708 1 771 227 8,197 
 ______ ______ _ ______ __ _____ _____ ______ 
Depreciation at 3 1 March  2014            - 19,812 - 21,656 23 7,166 3,223 51,880 
         
Net book value at 31 March 2014  32,700 110,601 5,464 9,086 23 2,263 916 161,053 
         
Net book value  
Purchased 

 
32,700 

 
105,338 

 
5,464 

 
5,630 

 
23 

 
2,258 

 
906 

 
152,319 

Finance leased - 4,503 - 2,728 - - - 7,231 
Donated - 760 - 728 - 5 10 1,503 
 ______ ______ _____ _____ __ _____ ___ _______ 
Total at 31 March 2014  32,700 110,601 5,464 9,086 23 2,263 916 161,053 
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2012/13: Land  Buildings  
excluding 
dwellings 

Assets under  
construction  

and payments 
on account 

Plant & 
machinery 

Transport & 
equipment 

Information  
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 
Cost or  valuation at 1 April 2012 

 
32,700 

 
117,229 

 
4,315 

 
25,117 

 
22 

 
7,453 

 
3,736 

 
190,572 

Additions purchased - 636 6,991 1,190 - - 165 8,982 
Additions donated - 24 - 29 - - - 53 
Reclassifications - 5,172 (7,136) 121 - 1,140 63 (640) 
Disposals other than by sale - - - (83) - - - (83) 
Revaluation/indexation gains - - - - - - - - 
Impairments - - - - - - - - 
 ______ _______  _____ ______ ___   _____ _____ _______ 
At 31 March 2013   32,700 123,061 4,170 26,374   22 8,593 3,964  198,884  
         
Depreciation at 1 April 2012  - 9,510 - 19,192 22 5,637 2,828 37,189 
Reclassifications - - - - - - - - 
Disposals other than by sale - - - (82) - - - (82) 
Impairments - - - - - - - - 
Charged during the year - 4,812 - 1,543 - 767 212 7,334 
 ______ ______ _____ ______ ___ _____ _____ ______ 
Depreciation at 3 1 March  2013           - 14,322         - 20,653   22  6,404  3,040  44,441  
         
Net boo k value at 31 March 2013  32,700 108,739 4,170 5,721 - 2,189 924 154,443 
         
Net book value  
Purchased 

 
32,700 

 
105,587 

 
4,170 

 
4,943 

 
- 

 
2,173 

 
908 

 
150,481 

Finance leased - 2,402 - - - - - 2,402 
Donated - 750 - 778 - 16 16 1,560 
 ______ _______ _____ _____ _ _____ ____ _______ 
Total at 31 March 2013  32,700  108,739  4,170 5,721 -  2,189  924 154,443 
         
Net book value          
Protected assets 32,700 98,572 - - - - - 131,272 
Unprotected assets - 10,167 4,170 5,721 - 2,189 924 23,171 
 ______ _______ _____ _____ _ _____ ____ _______ 
Total at 31 March 2 013  32,700 108,739 4,170 5,721  - 2,189  924 154,443 
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The remaining economic lives of property, plant and equipment are: 

 

15. Intangible fixed assets 

2013/14 

Software  

   Licences  

Total  

 £’000 £’000 
   

Gross cost at 1 April 2013 5,369 5,369 
Reclassifications 291 291 
Additions purchased 87 87 
Disposals other than by sale (2,449) (2,449) 
 _____ _____ 
Gross cost at 31 March  2014 3,298 3,298 
   
Amortisation at 1 April 2013 4,240 4,240 
Charged during the year 400 400 
Disposals other than by sale (2,449) (2,449) 
 _____ _____ 
Amortisation at 3 1 March  2014 2,191 2,191 
   
Net book value    
- Purchased 1,095 1,095 
- Donated 12 12 
  _____ _____ 
Total at 3 1 March 2014  1,107 1,107 
    

2012/13 
Software  

   Licences  
Total  

 £’000 £’000 
   

 Minimum life 
(years) 

Maximum life 
(years) 

   
Land - 100 

Buildings excluding dwellings - 86 

Assets under Construction & Payments on Account - - 

Plant & Machinery - 10 

Transport Equipment - 10 

Information Technology - 5 

Furniture & Fittings - 10 
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Gross cost at 1 April 2012 4,729 4,729 
Reclassifications 640 640 
Additions purchased - - 
 _____ _____ 
Gross cost at 31 March  2013 5,369 5,369 
   
Amortisation at 1 April 2012 3,533 3,533 
Charged during the year 707 707 
 _____ _____ 
Amortisation at 3 1 March  2013 4,240 4,240 
   
Net book value    
- Purchased 1,109 1,109 
- Donated 20 20 
  _____ _____ 
Total at 3 1 March 2013  1,129 1,129 

 

The Revaluation Reserve balance for intangible assets is £nil (2012/13 - £nil).  

 

The remaining economic lives of intangible assets are: 

 Minimum life 
(years) 

Maximum life 
(years) 

   
Software - 5 

 

16. Impairments 

Impairments of property during the year to 31 March 2014 totalled £688,000 (2012/13 - 
£nil). These impairment losses were taken direct to the Revaluation Reserve. 

17. Capital commitments  

Contracted capital commitments were as follows:  

 

 

As set out in Note 24, the Trust has entered into a Managed Equipment Service contract 
for Imaging equipment and £8,160,000 is included in the above total in respect of this 
contract. 

 31/03/14 31/03/13 

 £’000 £’000 

   
Property, plant and equipment 9,089 1,925 

 _____ ___ 
Total  9,089 1,925 
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18. Inventories 
          

 31/03/14 31/03/13 

 £’000 £’000 

   

Drugs    736 666 

Consumables 3,529 3,665 

Energy 34 43 

 _____ _____ 

Total  4,299 4,374 

 

19. Trade and other receivables  

 

19.1 Trade and other receivables 

              Current              Non-current  

 31/03/14 31/03/13 31/03/14 31/03/13 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     

NHS receivables – 
revenue 

6,488 2,255 - - 

NHS receivables - capital 7 - - - 

Receivables due from NHS 
charities – Revenue 

172 87 - - 

Provision for the impairment of 
receivables 

(936) (917) - - 

Prepayments 1,489 1,238 - - 

Accrued income 5,049 5,691 - - 

VAT 384 552 - - 

Other receivables 3,415 3,218 978 965 

PDC dividend receivable - 11 - - 
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 ______ ______ ____ ____ 

Total 16,068  12,135 978  965 

 

19.2 Receivables past their due date but not impair ed 

 31/03/14 31/03/13 
 £’000 £’000 

   
By up to three months 2,610 1,381 

By three to six months 1,224 65 

By more than six months - - 

 _____ _____ 

Total  3,834 1,446  

 

19.3 Provision for impairment of receivables 

31/03/14 31/03/13 
 £’000 £’000 
   

Balance at 1 April  917 1,011 

Amount utilised (58) (254) 

Unused amounts reversed (140) (68) 

(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired 217 228 

 ____ _____ 

Balance at 31  March   936 _917 

 
20. Cash and cash equivalents  

 
 31/03/14 31/03/13 

 £’000 £’000 

   
Cash with Government Banking Service 11,015 15,189 

Commercial banks and cash in hand 50 50 

 ______ ______ 
Balance at 31 March  11,065 15,239 
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21. Trade and other payables  
  

22. Borrowings 

 Current  Non-current  

 31/03/14 31/03/13 31/03/14 31/03/13 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     

Finance lease liabilities 1,029 484 5,090 1,362 

 

23. Prudential Borrowing Limit 
  

The Prudential Borrowing Code requirements in section 41 of the NHS Act 2006 have been 
repealed with effect from 1 April 2013 by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. 

 

     Current  Non-current  

 31/03/14 31/03/13 31/03/14 31/03/13 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

NHS payables – revenue 2,259 2,393 - - 

NHS payables – capital - 15 - - 

Non NHS trade payables – 
revenue 

5,800 5,003 - - 

Non NHS trade payables  - capital 2,615 3,282 - - 

Other payables 5,918 5,280 - - 

Accruals 10,320 11,071 - - 

PDC dividend payable 18 - - - 

 ______ ______ _ _ 

Trade and other 
payables 

 26,930  27,044 -  - 

Deferred income 340 357 - - 

 ____ ____ _ _ 

Other liabilities  340  357 -  -   
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24. Finance lease obligations 
 

 

Amounts payable under finance leases:  Minimum lease  

payments 

 31/03/14 31/03/13 

 £’000 £’000 

   

Within one year 1,239 590 

Between one and five years 3,321 1,474 

Later than five years 2,351 - 

Less future finance charges (792) (218) 

 _____   _____ 

Net lease liabilities 6,119 1,846 

During the year the Trust entered into a ten year Managed Equipment Scheme for Imaging 
equipment and also entered into a ten year agreement for a Cardiac Catheterisation 
service. The property, plant and equipment under both of these schemes have been 
treated as finance lease arrangements. 

25. Provisions for liabilities and charges 

 Pensions 
relating 
to other 

staff 

Legal  
claims 

Restructuring  Other  Total  

 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

      

At 1 April 2013  403   81    89  382   955 

Arising during the year - 65 77 175 317 

Used during the year (58) (82) (166) (20) (326) 

Reversed unused - (2) - (194) (196) 

 ___ __ _ ___ ___ 

At 31 March  2014 345 62 0 343 750 

         
 
 
 
 
 



 

214 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2013-2014 

Expected timing of cashflows: 
 
In the remainder of the 
spending  

     

Period to 31 March 2015 101 62 - 195 358 

Between1 April 2015 and 31 March 
2019 

198 - - 82 280 

Later than five years 46 - - 66 112 

 

As at 31 March 2014       

Current 101 62 - 195 358 

Non-Current 244 - - 148 392 

 

As at 31 March 2013       

Current 107 81 89 214 491 

Non-Current 296 - - 168 464 

 

Clinical negligence provisions 

Included in the provisions of the NHS 
Litigation Authority at 31 March 2014 
is £51,566,000 (2012/13 - 

£44,786,000) in respect of clinical 
negligence liabilities of the Trust. 

 
Legal claim provisions 

The majority of these provisions 
relate to claims under the Liabilities to 
Third Parties Scheme and Property 
Expenses Scheme, and are 
calculated based on information 
provided by the NHS Litigation 
Authority.  The amounts involved and 

the timing of the payments represents 
their best estimate of the outcome of 
each claim against the Trust. 

In addition to these provisions, 
contingent liabilities in respect of the 
claims are given in note 26. 

 

Other provisions 

Other provisions at 31 March 2014 include: - 

• two (2012/13: two) injury benefit cases of £168,000 (2012/13: £188,000) as notified to 
the Trust by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division; and 

• allowance for Clinical Excellence Awards for consultants in respect of 2013/14 of 
£100,000. 
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26. Contingent assets/(liabilities) 
 

Other 
  
Other Contingent Liabilities for non-clinical negligence incidents total £21,000 (2012/13 - 
£33,000). 

 

27. Financial instruments  
 

27.1 Financial assets 
 

 31/03/14 31/03/13 

 Loans & 
Receivables 

Total  Loans & 
Receivables 

Total  

       £’000        £’000 £’000 

     

Trade Receivables 13,330 13,330 12,135 12,135 

Cash at bank and in hand 11,065 11,065 15,239 15,239 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Total at 31 March 2014  24,395 24,395 27,374 27,374 

 

27.2 Financial liabilities 

 
31/03/14 

 
31/03/13 

 Other  Total   Other  Total  
      £’000 £’000       £’000 £’000 

    
Trade Payables 26,930 26,930 27,044 27,044 
Other borrowings 6,119 6,119 1,846 1,846 
Other financial liabilities 340 340 357 357 
 ______ _____ ______ ______ 
Total at 31 March 2014  33,389 33,389 29,247 29,247 

 

27.3 Financial risk management 

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 
requires disclosure of the role that 
financial instruments have had during 
the period in creating or changing the 
risks a body faces in undertaking its 
activities. Because of the continuing 
service provider relationship that the 

Trust has with the Clinical 
Commissioning Groups and the way 
those Clinical Commissioning Groups 
are financed, the Trust is not exposed 
to the degree of financial risk faced by 
business entities to which the 
financial reporting standards mainly 
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apply. The Trust has limited powers 
to borrow or invest surplus funds and 
financial assets and liabilities are 
generated by day-to-day operational 
activities rather than being held to 
change the risks facing the Trust in 
undertaking its activities. 

The Trust’s treasury management 
operations are carried out by the 
finance department, within 
parameters defined formally within 
the Trust’s Standing Financial 
Instructions and policies agreed by 
the Board of Directors. Trust treasury 
activity is subject to review by the 
Trust’s internal auditors.  

Currency Risk 

The Trust is principally a domestic 
organisation with the great majority of 
transactions, assets and liabilities 
being in the UK and sterling based. 
The Trust has no overseas 
operations. The Trust therefore has 
low exposure to currency rate 
fluctuations. 

 

Interest Rate Risk 

The Trust can borrow from 
Government for capital expenditure, 
subject to affordability. The 
borrowings are for 1-25 years, in line 
with the life of the associated assets, 

and interest is charged at the National 
Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of 
the loan.  Interest charged on finance 
leased assets are at fixed rates of 
interest.  The Trust therefore has low 
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. 

Credit Risk 

Because of the majority of the Trust's 
income comes from contracts with 
other public sector bodies, the Trust 
has low exposure to credit risk. The 
maximum exposures as at 31 March 
2014 are in receivables from 
customers, as disclosed in the Trade 
and other receivables note.  The Trust 
recognises that the public sector 
funding environment, with the 
continued pressure of demand and its 
consequences for allocations for 
Clinical Commissioning Groups, leads 
to an increase in credit risk for the 
Trust. 

Liquidity risk 

The Trust's operating costs are 
incurred under contract with Clinical 
Commissioning Groups which are 
financed from resources voted 
annually by Parliament. The Trust 
funds it capital expenditure from 
internally generated funds and 
finance leases/borrowings. The Trust 
is not, therefore, exposed to 
significant liquidity risks. 

  

 

28. Events after the reporting period  

On 1st May 2014 the Trust Board 
agreed that merging with the Royal 
Surrey County Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust was the best way to 
maximise patient benefits and as 
such have agreed to start work on 

developing a Full Business Case for 
merger. With a number of important 
regulatory approvals to go through, a 
full merger, if approved, would take 
between twelve and eighteen months 
to complete. 
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29. Related party transactions  

During the year none of the 
Department of Health Ministers, Trust 
Board members or members of the 
key management staff, or parties 
related to any of them, has 
undertaken any material transactions 
with Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust. 

 

The Department of Health is regarded 
as a related party.  During the period 
Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust has had a 
significant number of material 
transactions with the Department, and 
with other entities for which the 
Department is regarded as the parent 
Department. 

 

These entities are listed below: 
 

 

NHS Supply Chain is operated by 
DHL Supply Chain Limited on behalf 
of the NHS Business Services 
Authority. Entries in the table above 
against NHS Business Services 
Authority (NHS BSA) relate to 
FP10’s. NHS BSA recovers costs it 
has incurred in reimbursing third 
parties for prescription charges. 

In addition, the Trust has had a 
number of material transactions with 
other Government Departments and 
other central and local Government 
bodies. Most of these transactions 
have been with H M Revenue and 
Customs, Surrey County Council, 
Runnymede Borough Council and 
Spelthorne Borough Council.  

 Income  
£’000 

Expenditure
£’000 

Receivables
£’000 

Payables  
£’000 

     
NHS England 33,326 98 3,910 24 
Health Education England 4,997 - - - 
Brighton and Sussex University Hospitals NHS Trust 2,939 35 - 3 
NHS North West Surrey CCG 162,202 - 2,278 - 
NHS Hounslow CCG 12,607 - 726 - 
NHS Surrey Downs CCG 4,292 - 508 - 
NHS Windsor, Ascot and Maidenhead CCG 4,089 - 214 - 
NHS Richmond CCG 1,710 - 68  
NHS Bracknell and Ascot CCG 1,528 - - - 
NHS Guildford and Waverley CCG 1,080 - - - 
NHS Surrey Heath CCG 661 - 7 - 
Western Sussex Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 501 4 123 4 
Surrey and Borders Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 976 419 591 83 
Frimley Park Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 223 12 73 1,535 
Royal Surrey County NHS Foundation Trust 24 1,307 89 505 
Epsom and St. Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust 153 599 81 36 
NHS Blood and Transplant - 1,483 - 2 
NHS Professionals - 2,250 - - 
NHS Litigation Authority - 4,797 - - 
NHS Pensions Scheme - 13,361 - 1,937 
NHS Supply Chain - 6,293 - 650 
NHS Business Services Authority - 1,333 - 223 
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The Trust has also received revenue 
and capital payments from the 
Ashford and St. Peter’s Hospitals 
Charitable Fund. The Board 
members of the Trust are also 

Trustees of this charity. The audited 
annual report and accounts of the 
Charity are available to the public on 
request. 

 

30. Third Party Assets 

The Trust held £9,000 cash at bank and in 
hand at 31 March 2014 (2012/13 - £9,000) 
which relates to monies held by the Trust on 

behalf of patients. This has been exclude/d 
from the cash and cash equivalents figure 
reported in the accounts.  

 

31. Losses and special payments 

Losses and special payments are 
transactions that Parliament would not have 
contemplated when it agreed funds for the 
health service or passed legislation.  By their 
nature they are items that ideally should not 
arise.  Payments are made in accordance 
with the HM Treasury publication “Managing 
Public Money”. 

There were 179 cases (2012/13 – 237) of 
losses and special payments totalling 
£169,000 paid in 2013/14 (2012/13 - 
£155,000). There were no cases where the 
net payment exceeded £100,000. Total costs 
included in this note are on an accruals basis 
excluding provisions for future losses. 

  
 

 
31/03/14 

 
31/03/13 

 No. of Cases  Total  No. of Cases  Total  
 £’000  £’000 
    

Losses of cash 1 - - - 
Bad debts and claims abandoned 124 59 209 87 
Ex gratia payments 54 110 28 68 
 ____ ___ ___ ___ 
Total at 31 March 2014  179 169 237 155 
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You can get copies of this report in large print an d other formats by calling                    
01932 723800 

 

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Tru st 

May 2014 

 

This report was produced by the Communications Team , Ashford and St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Guildford Road, Che rtsey, Surrey  KT16 0PZ 

 

01932 872000 

www.ashfordstpeters.nhs.uk  
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